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Corporate Information

BITES EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SORA S (F/E) Mr. KWOK Ying Shing (Chairman)
(R2024FE4 5 16 H IEZE (5 (Appointed as executive director
HITEFE - WHR2024F5H20H on 16 April 2024 and appointed
EZTEFE) as chairman on 20 May 2024)

BER A (7T AE ) Mr. LIAO Chuangiang (Chief executive officer)
(202445 H20 HEZ (T4 (Appointed as chief executive officer
TTIRABEL) on 20 May 2024)

FEBEE Mr. LI Haiming

HEELAE Mr. ZHAO Jianhua

SPBERF Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan

=S Ms. MOU Zhaohui
(BR20244F 5 520 A B F (Resigned as chief executive officer
7T AB%E) on 20 May 2024)

ARG Mr. XIE Binhong
(R2024E4 /5 16 H B#(F) (Resigned on 16 April 2024)

BAEMITES INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

RS Mr. LIU Hongbai

BHEHZL Ms. MA Xiumin

R 2 A Mr. CHEN Bin

EREEE AUDIT COMMITTEE

PR A (E ) Mr. CHEN Bin (Chairman)

BEHRL Ms. MA Xiumin

B STAE Mr. LIU Hongbai

FNEES REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Bk A (FE) Mr. LIU Hongbai (Chairman)

BEREE Mr. LIAQ Chuangiang

BEHRL Ms. MA Xiumin

PR X 5% 4= Mr. CHEN Bin

REEET NOMINATION COMMITTEE

BlEssgk g (FE) Mr. LIAO Chuangiang (Chairman)

e siabtas Mr. LIU Hongbai

BEHRL Ms. MA Xiumin

PR X 5% 4= Mr. CHEN Bin

BREAE AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

BEREA Mr. LIAO Chuangiang

REIR 4 Mr. YU Kwok Leung

DNEME COMPANY SECRETARY
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Mr. YU Kwok Leung
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC
Room 507, Block A, Kaisa Center

66 Nanyuan Road

Futian

Shenzhen

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 1901, 19/F

Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

THE CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL
SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Huaxia Bank, Nanyuan Branch

China Merchants Bank, Tianhe Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Youyi Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Huizhou Branch

LEGAL ADVISERS
As to Hong Kong law:
Sidley Austin

As to PRC law:
King & Wood Mallesons

As to Cayman Islands law:
Conyers Dill & Pearman

AUDITOR

SFAI (HK) CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

STOCK CODE
2168.HK
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2024 F E 12
Milestones in 2024

MEE?EE RS R

Active expansion and diversified business portfolios

A EFHRER
OUTSTANDING PROJECTS

bR EEnEE ﬁiﬂlﬁﬂfi S YNE
Shanghai Jiading Jiafen Shangdu Yancheng Dafeng Ginkgo Lake Park
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Liuzhou Institute of Technology South Campus China Tower Liaoning Jinzhou Branch
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Yancheng Electromechamcal Branch of 5 0 B3RS 50
Jiangsu Union Technical Institute Jiaxing Xingcheng Huayuan
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Upgraded system and premium quality
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2024 LEADING COMPANY IN PROPERTY SERVICE SATISFACTION

Awarding Unit: CRIC Property Management

In respect of the foundational service quality and service experience, the Group took
“Strengthening Foundation, Reducing Cost and Increasing Revenue” as the main
principles to maintain service quality while strictly controlling risks and bringing new
experience. The Group launched special campaigns such as “Jiarun Campaign” (=
J178)) and “Jiafen Campaign” (£ 77E)) to improve its customer services.
The Group also launched a series of quality enhancing campaigns, such as “Spring
Breeze in Kaisa 2.0" (/& /K1£E2.0), “Construction with Sincerity 2.0" (f&5 1=
2.0), “Rejuvenating with Quality” (Fa'& 2 %), “the Most Beautiful Garden” (FxFEE
#K), “the Most Beautiful Lobby” (5x3E A %), “Management Open Day” (& ¥ F X
H), “Demonstration Window" (7~#3% M) for projects under management, centering
on the “walking trails” and “driveways”. We comprehensively enhanced customer
experience by focusing on upgrading the park environment, quality renovation, service
innovation and optimization, and emotional value fulfillment.

In respect of building a safe and secured community, Kaisa Prosperity deployed a large
number of personnel to launch three special campaigns namely “100 Days of Safety
without Accident” (B HZ 2% 5 1), "No Accident in Summer Production” (2=
L2 EEME SR and “Keep Ringing the Alarm Bell” (Z$£&18), and effectively
improved the professional skills and risk prevention and handling ability of employees
regarding fire safety, as well as the fire safety awareness and emergency evacuation
abilities of property owners and residents. We effectively investigated and eliminated
the relevant risks and hazards, and safeguarded the lives and properties of property
owners and residents.

EACH BLADE, EACH TREE; EACH STEP A SCENE; PETALS SPIRAL
WHILE LEAVES ASCEND BLOSSOMS SWIRL IN FAREWELL
FLIGHTS AND FRESH LEAVES WALTZ IN NEWBORN LIGHT

Replanted at 4,274 locations, covering an area of 161,289 m2

2,994 5 - miE93,430m?

Renovated at 2,994 locations, covering an area of 93,430 m2

88,4445 - mE237,269m

Refurbished at 8,444 locations, covering an area of 237,269 m?

ARiEIZ BT ETE3,382,325n

Tree pruning area amounting to: 3,382,325 m2

Hom I SR AN &1L
EIERRIF IR LT &

AMIDST ALL CHANGES, KAISA PROSPERITY STANDS
VIGILANT, SHIELDING HOMES WITH UNWAVERING

RERNEZE COMMITMENT
EE28EAH10,00088A Directly engaged over 10,000 personnel
BEALTEEBENTK21E Resolved 271 critical hazard risks

JEE%DH;W\“IE1O4%_ MERB50#E

Handled 104 initial fire incidents and apprehended 50 theft cases

2R B135K  EEHFN&REZ285K Swiftly addressed 135 emergencies and received 285 government commendations:
EJJﬂHF’aEHJFEHj ML2BEBNEKE96.3% Rectification rate of hidden hazards reached 96.3 %
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Milestones in 2024
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K Series Living continuously enhances operational service capabilities
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Combining community living scenarios and user needs, Kaisa Prosperity integrated
community venues and resources, vigorously expanded services such as community
healthcare, community tourism and community pet care, gradually building up
the community healthcare and housekeeping brand and service system of Kaisa
Prosperity. We actively explored incremental market-oriented operational models,
focusing on enhancing the capability of providing accessible, affordable, and
sustainable quality medical services for community residents.

HREEndaE

NKEERTRTECHRENG - SR - BN - B8 &M K# - B - #HL BN RE K8 KD BRY
¥ RGeS ERG RS HERAR
The offline exhibition halls of K Series Living platform has been extended to 11 cities, including Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Shanghai, Suzhou, Chengdu,

Chongging, Foshan, Huizhou, Dongguan, Zhuhai and Changsha, realizing the integration and further upgrade of property services and value-added
Services.
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Milestones in 2024
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Collaborated with the “Yuehuanxin” platform to facilitate

circular economy
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In December 2024, Kaisa Prosperity collaborated with the “Yuehuanxin” platform to
provide more than 700 community residents with convenient, fast, preferential and
reliable “online + offline” discarded consumer product recycling solutions, leading
the trend of green consumption and promoting resource recycling. “Yuehuanxin” is
the first provincial-level “two new” official brands in China focusing on full-chain
recycling, creating a “trade-in” recycling closed loop to further release investment and
consumption potential and accelerate the development of new quality productivity.
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Honors and Awards
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I8 EE X 17 £ 2024 F 8818 Awards received by Kaisa Prosperity in 2024
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (“Kaisa Prosperity” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the"Group”), | hereby present to you the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

In 2024, in the face of a complex and severe situation marked by intensifying external
pressures, insufficient domestic demand, and mounting difficulties, all regions and
authorities pragmatically implemented the decisions and arrangements of the Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State Council, adhering to the
general principle of pursuing progress while maintaining stability, and accelerating the
establishment of a new development paradigm. In particular, a package of incremental
policies was promptly rolled out, boosting market confidence and driving a significant
economic rebound. According to preliminary statistics, the gross domestic product of
China amounted to RMB134,908.4 hillion in 2024, representing a year-on-year increase
of 5.0%. The national economy was generally stable while progressing steadily, with
new progress being made in high-quality development.

2024 was a “policy-intensive year” for the real estate industry. The central government
and relevant authorities repeatedly emphasized the importance of the real estate
industry and at the beginning of 2024, ascertained the policy direction for the real
estate market of stabilizing the market, preventing risks and promoting transformation.
On 30 April 2024, the meeting of the Political Bureau of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China reset the tone towards the real estate market, with policies
focusing on “Stabilizing the market” and “Destocking”. On 26 September 2024, the
meeting of the Political Bureau of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China further clarified the need to halt the decline of and stabilize the real estate
market, calling for strict control over the increase in housing supply, optimization
of existing stock, and improvement of quality with regard to commercial housing
construction. The meeting also called for making adjustments to policies of home
purchase restriction and reducing interest rates on existing mortgages. Subsequently,
multiple relevant government departments and local authorities rolled out favorable
policies in land use, fiscal taxation, and finance, which included abolishing restrictions
on purchase, sales and pricing, and the classification criteria distinguishing standard
from non-standard residential properties. The favorable policies also included lowering
interest rates on housing provident fund loans, reducing down payment ratios for
mortgages, lowering interest rates on existing loans, and lowering tax rates for home
replacements, forming a coordinated policy effort. The real estate industry is now
undergoing positive changes.
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The development of the real estate industry, as an upstream industry, has a profound
impact on the property management industry. In 2024, although favorable policies
for the real estate industry were frequently introduced, the real estate development
market still continued to contract gradually. Key indicators including the amount of
investment in real estate development, floor area of new construction, completed floor
area, and floor area sold of commercial properties continued to decline significantly
year-on-year, and the growth potential in scale of property management enterprises
faced challenges. Furthermore, “high-quality development” has become a consensus
in the property management industry. Property management companies proactively
abandoned projects with low collection rates, high management costs, and limited
growth potential to improve the quality of their projects under management.

Despite the challenges, the property management industry has also ushered in new
development guidance and opportunities. The “Guidance Catalogue for Industrial
Structure Adjustment (2024 Edition)” ( (EE 2B EEIEE B 8% (20245 7) ))
which was issued by the National Development and Reform Commission officially came
into effect on 1 February 2024. Property services have been included in the “Encouraged
Category — Commercial Services Industry”, and after this update, the positioning of
property services is officially categorized from “Encouraged Category — Other Services”
to “Encouraged Category — Commercial Services Industry”, which not only reflects
the continuous support from national policies on the property management industry,
but also explicitly includes non-residential properties in the category of encouraged
development for the first time. In August 2024, the State Council issued the Opinions
on Promoting High-Quality Development of Service Consumption ( € B8 7A@ i AR 7%
HESESERAER)), encouraging property service companies to collaborate
with companies engaged in elderly care, childcare, catering and housekeeping, so as
to develop a “property services + lifestyle services” model, providing guidance for the
property management industry to cultivate new growth paints in service consumption
field.

The development model of the property management industry of “Stock + Increment”
and features such as light assets and abundant cash flow remained in place. Although
the “Incremental portion” was growing at a slower rate, the overall trend is still
growing. This indicates that the fundamentals of the property management industry
remain solid even when the pace of development in the real estate market decelerates.

As one of the leading comprehensive urban service providers in China, Kaisa Prosperity
has always taken “Prosperity is underway” (3E4F IE7E 25 4E) as its guide to integrate
the pursuit of quality into the entire process of property management, and refined
various aspects of property management in a more scientific and effective manner by
means of intelligent technology. To ensure the long-term stability of our operations, we
have established the quality approach of “sincerity, rigour, pragmatism and efficiency
as well as continuous improvement” (232 @ BERE - BKESW  FE
2&3E) to continuously improve the quality of our services, which has gained the trust
and recognition of our customers, and the value of our brand has also gradually gained
recognition from the market.



3%k ANNUAL REPORT 2024

[ClEE20244F @ TP EY M THETE
MEINE - EEIE MRS R R B E R B R ITE
PREL - IR B SE T 0A 4R DA B FR Y 0 BE AN B FE Y
REEBTSE(\  ILEMSEEBY X
FES S TBE - AIFTIRAER - BRI IEALD
FMAMEE - A TEESSRIag ReMze
WO BEAKRLEEE  ZRAZERRFRS
o BOINARFREHEELCEBERS - 1%
BEAIAEERBEINE ERiEe) - TER
BEEET  BE204F128318 - £EmE
10278 8T 5K - EEEBER728(E - &5t
HEF20EADTTEERT - NEEGEETHA
B OEATL  BNWES -

BBTHBE N AEESIHEIRANEER
A WERAT2024FEMEREERDE]
(204 B EYEREELLE - SLEEX
BE | (2024 E RIS E SRR | - 20249
ERBLEBFRENEMRE] - (20240 HY)
ERBGHEBRDE] - 20247 REEWERE
JITOP201 % | ~ [20247 BU % iR i B E A 5T 1
2] (2040 BEYMERBREEELLE]
(2024 Bl HESGRI B ERBEDE] -
[0#UBERRNERYEREIEARDE]
[2024 B 70 A& @ (=W ERF HTOP20] »

HEHE
HENUFNZANALFE @ AEEZZEWE
B ARESBSEETLEARBI04EE
JC v BR20234F [FI HR & S U AR R IB £93.3% ¢ H A
WEEERBERZEARE1389458 T ¥
TRERBWHEAARKI62 188 IFEE
BERBKZEAARBIBIEETT °

HE04F12ANALEFE  AEBENEFH
HEWBFNRANBIETFEHARKISIIEE
TORDEIT 1% ENANREEAML5TETT ©

HEUFN2ANBILFE > ZREEREFA
WAREEDRGAEBIT * MEE2023F12A318 1
FEAABEHARENICEETT -

BE24F12ANEIEEE - NARIERAE
RN ABAREI46EETT - MEE2023F12
A3NBUEFERIAEEHAREIVIEETT ©

{EIRZEEIFEEAPR AR KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 11

FEREE
Chairman’s Statement

Looking back at 2024, the industry landscape underwent transformative shifts,
with market uncertainties intensifying. In the face of a complex and challenging
macroeconomic environment and industry challenges, Kaisa Prosperity consistently
embraced market changes with an open mindset and expansive strategic foresight,
capitalized on market trends, and effectively tackled various challenges, while
innovating service models and demonstrating exceptional resilience and intelligence.
Simultaneously, Kaisa Prosperity pursued new growth drivers and breakthroughs,
broadened future operational strategies, deeply explored customer needs, and was
committed to delivering differentiated and high-quality services to customers. The
Group maintained stable management scale through the dual-wheel drive of “Organic
growth + Independent expansion”, with the GFA under management reaching
approximately 102.7 million square meters as at 31 December 2024, establishing
presence in 77 cities in 20 provinces with 728 projects under management. The Group
for the first time established presence in Jiangxi Province and entered the market in
Ji'an and Ganzhou.

Through unremitting efforts, the Group was highly recognized by various sectors of the
society and was awarded 2024 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China,
2024 China Leading Property Management Companies in Terms of Characteristic
Services — Diversified Smart Businesses, 2024 Property Service Companies with
Excellent Performance, 2024 Property Service Companies with Excellent Performance
in Terms of Innovative Capability, 2024 China Top 100 Property Service Companies
in Terms of Service Capability, 2024 China Top 20 Residential Property Service
Companies, 2024 Leading Property Service Companies in Terms of Service Quality,
2024 Leading Company of China in Property Service Satisfaction and 2024 Leading
Property Service Companies in Terms of ESG Sustainability, 2024 Top 100 Property
Service Companies in Terms of Service Capability in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area and 2024 Top 20 Residential Property Service Companies in Terms of
Service Capability in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's revenue decreased by approximately
RMB58.8 million to RMB1,735.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 3.3%
as compared with that of the corresponding period in 2023. In particular, revenue from
property management services amounted to RMB1,389.4 million; revenue from value-
added services to property owners amounted to RMB162.1 million; and revenue from
value-added services to non-property owners amounted to RMB183.9 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's gross profit decreased by
approximately 7.7% to approximately RMB444.5 million from approximately RMB481.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s profit was approximately RMB25.6
million as compared with the loss of approximately RMB437.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB14.6 million as compared to a loss of approximately
RMB450.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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ENRICHMENT OF SERVICE PORTFOLIOS AND ENHANCEMENT OF
SERVICE QUALITY

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to focus on the three pillars of
“experience, efficiency, and decision-making” to develop an “empathetic + intelligent”
technology-based service system, upgraded core business brands and strengthened the
foundation of brand value. We continued to upgrade the contents of service systems
including “Service Standards for 10 Scenarios” (1 X35 & RIGIZ #), “Service
Standards for Three Windows” (= {E % M AR #51Z %), “Comprehensive Kaisa
Prosperity Service Series 1+3+5 Service Standards Manual” (2 1Ak Z51)1+3+58R 7%
IZXF i) and “Star-rated Service Standards” (£ % BRFSHZ4E). Our property service
portfolios covered 9 property types, namely residential, commercial, office buildings,
recreational stadium, schools, high-end sales offices, hospitals, urban public buildings
and cultural tourism.

In respect of the foundational service quality and service experience, the Group
took “Strengthening Foundation, Reducing Cost and Increasing Revenue” as the
main principles to maintain service quality while strictly control risks and bring new
experience. The Group launched special campaigns such as “Jiarun Campaign” (1=
JE178)) and “Jiafen Campaign” (£ 77E)) to improve its customer services.
The Group also launched a series of quality enhancing campaigns, such as “Spring
Breeze in Kaisa 2.0" (ZFER1E2.0), “Construction with Sincerity 2.0" ({58 E
2.0), “Rejuvenating with Quality” (FaE #2%F), “the Most Beautiful Garden” (£x3&[&]
#K), “the Most Beautiful Lobby” (fx3E X&), “Management Open Day” (& 32 /X
H), “Demonstration Window" (7~#3% H) for projects under management, centering
on the “walking trails” and “driveways”. We comprehensively enhanced customer
experience by focusing on upgrading the park environment, quality renovation, service
innovation and optimization, and emotional value fulfillment.

In respect of technological operation, we continued to iterate and optimize the “K
Service+” intelligent service control platform to realize refined management of
equipment and facilities as well as efficient and convenient services. On management
side, we enriched elevator management functions and realized the “three-in-one”
closed-loop management of elevators covering accounts, maintenance and repair, and
enhanced the safety standard of elevator operation. On customer side, we optimized
the online service functions and completed the development of Alipay mini program so
that customers can experience more efficient and convenient services.

In 2024, under the slogan of “Enjoy a Prosperity FUN Life” (44= 3= 4 4 J&FUN) for
community cultural services, we provided wonderful community cultural experience and
based on the four major service systems of FUN Life, FUN Neighborhood, FUN Charity,
FUN Sharing (£4/5FUN, 4#B8FUN, 242 FUN, £4=FUN), organized community
cultural activities such as “Kaisa's Neighbors” ({=#5 e {=E%%), provided five major
kinds of free services and ten kinds of convenient services, launched the charitable
Firefly Program, advocated “Guided by party building — Red property” (25|48 o 4T
B ¥ Z) to create a community cultural brand with the Group's unique characteristics.
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In respect of community building, through the creation of community cultural systems
including the “Prosperity Convention” (JEFA%Y), “Firefly Program” (& X & 5T 21),
“Kaisa's Neighbors” (FE#B1ZE53), “Child Friendly Community” (522 & #F 4L &), “Pet
Friendly Community” (EE#) /& #F4t[&) and “Starry Shining Community (B3 524T £
B 4t[&), Kaisa Prosperity actively organized community cultural activities, and
advocated the concept of providing fun for the children and security for the elderly,
and harmony between people and pets (408 FT%E - EHBFTEE - ATEMEL). Kaisa
Prosperity took practical actions to care for the elderly and provide convenience for pet-
owning families, and build a community service system with Kaisa Prosperity’s own
distinctive characteristics, thereby building a beautiful community with harmonious
neighborhood, and enhancing the happiness of property owners.

In respect of building a safe and secured community, Kaisa Prosperity deployed a large
number of personnel to launch three special campaigns namely “100 Days of Safety
without Accident” (B B Z 2 £ 1#), "No Accident in Summer Production” (£2=
LA ESEEM) and "Keep Ringing the Alarm Bell” (248K 18), and effectively
improved the professional skills and risk prevention and handling ability of employees
regarding fire safety, as well as the fire safety awareness and emergency evacuation
abilities of property owners and residents. We effectively investigated and eliminated
the relevant risks and hazards, and safeguarded the lives and properties of property
owners and residents.

With love for residents and love for life, the Group has launched social responsibility
special campaigns in cities including Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Huizhou, Jiangyin and
Huludao, and equipped some projects with AED equipment and CPR first-aid, and
assisted customers to complete multiple emergency rescues through conducting
operational trainings and emergency drills with employees as well as improving
contingent rescue plans to reduce unnatural deaths in the service space.

In respect of energy conservation and emission reduction, we continued to implement
the system and standards including the Guidelines on Management and Control of
Energy Saving ( KBEJRETBEE1FIRVEFESI) ) and the Assessment Method for
Control of Energy Consumption ( (BEFEB IR IE R EZPE%) ). By adopting a multi-
pronged approach underpinning “management + technology + policy” as well as energy
management and diversified cooperation, the Group significantly reduced energy
consumption throughout the year with the utilization of algorithmic control system
and energy-saving renovation technologies for public area lighting, water pumps and
atomized micro-sprinkler systems for greening irrigation etc. and refined daily green
operation management.
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FOCUSING ON COMMUNITY LIVING AND ASSET MANAGEMENT
AND ENHANCING OPERATIONAL SERVICE CAPABILITIES

Kaisa Prosperity continued to enhance digital capabilities by resource concentration
and business vertical development, achieving quality and efficiency enhancement.
While sustaining traditional businesses including community space operation, Kaisa
Prosperity focused on community living and assert management and continued to
enhance operational service capability, and by capitalizing on proximity-based service
advantages, achieved counter-cyclical growth for some businesses.

Focusing on existing projects, Kaisa Prosperity intensively explored demand for local
lifestyle services including community group buying, delivery service, house rental and
sales and home renovation and refurbishment. Our housekeeping services achieved
a project coverage rate of 100%, and we further enhanced profitability and customer
satisfaction through regional self-operated pilot programs. Through our flagship store
+ platform empowerment model, we innovatively launched house rental and sales as
well as partial renovation businesses, reducing cost while maintaining stable revenue
growth.

Combining community living scenarios and user needs, we integrated community
venues and resources, vigorously expanded services such as community healthcare,
community tourism and community pet care, gradually building up the community
healthcare and housekeeping brand and service system of Kaisa Prosperity. We
actively explored incremental market-oriented operational models, focusing on
enhancing the capability of providing accessible, affordable, and sustainable quality
medical services for community residents.

K Series Living platform strengthened whole-staff marketing and operational
capabilities while enhancing user reach and conversion rate on consumer side, with
an annual registered user number and monthly active rate both achieving substantial
growth. The offline exhibition halls of K Series Living platform has been extended to
11 cities, including Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Shanghai, Suzhou, Chengdu, Chongging,
Foshan, Huizhou, Dongguan, Zhuhai and Changsha, realizing the integration and further
upgrade of property services and value-added services.

Kaisa Prosperity will continue to leverage its inherent advantages and synergize
ecosystem resources to align service chains with segmented customer groups. We
developed and refined value-added service products tailored to local conditions,
progressively advancing the transformation of value-added services to property owners
towards professionalization, independence, and market orientation.
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OUTLOOK

As an industry that derives from the real estate development business, the property
management service industry has the exclusive characteristics of “Rigid demand + Long
cycle” and is also the most frequent contact point for customers. Property management
service almost penetrates into the entire aftersales market of the real estate industry,
which is of great development potential.

2025 is the final year for the “14th Five-Year” Plan and is also the most crucial year.
Kaisa Prosperity is poised to confront the challenges of the industry, and continue
to enhance service quality and provide excellent services for property owners and
residents. At the same time, we will closely follow the guidelines of national policies,
and actively and boldly explore new business areas and strive to realize a new growth
curve. We will continue to consolidate our fundamentals and sharpen our increments,
make our best efforts to achieve all-round and high-quality development, and draw up
a magnificent blueprint for “Serving Beautiful China".
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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Overall Performance

Total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024 decreased by approximately 3.3%
to approximately RMB1,735.4 million from approximately RMB1,794.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2024 decreased by approximately 7.7%
to approximately RMB444.5 million from approximately RMB481.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately RMB25.6 million as
compared to a loss of approximately RMB437.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024
was approximately RMB14.6 million as compared to a loss of approximately RMB450.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2024, the total contracted GFA and the total GFA under
management amounted to approximately 129.1 million sq.m. and 102.7 million sg.m.
respectively, representing a decrease of approximately 2.3% and an increase of
approximately 0.4%, respectively, as compared to approximately 132.1 million sg.m.
and 102.3 million sq.m. as at 31 December 2023 respectively.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As one of the leading comprehensive property management service providers in China,
the Group specializes in providing comprehensive urban integrated services to mid- to
high-end properties and focuses on the metropolitan cluster regions that are supported
by the national macro-strategic policies and have high economic development vitality.
The Group has been providing property management services for 25 years since 1999,
and since then has established a strong footprint in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau
Bay Area, Yangtze River Delta, Bohai Economic Rim, Western and Central China with
enormous potential for economic growth, covering a wide range of properties and
providing property owners and residents with tailored quality services through the one-
stop service platform to enhance their quality of life and satisfaction.

The Group's three main business lines, namely, property management services, value-
added services to property owners and value-added services to non-property owners,
form an integrated service spectrum encompassing the upstream and downstream
segments and covering the entire value chain of property management.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

As of 31 December 2024, the Group's property management services covered 77 cities
across 20 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in China, with a total GFA
under management reaching 102.7 million sq.m. and a total of 728 managed properties
projects, comprising 339 residential communities and 389 non-residential properties,
showing strong momentum in market expansion and diversified property portfolio. We
focused on public urban services and moved towards holistic management services.

The table below sets forth (i) the contracted GFA, (i) the GFA under management, and
(iii) the number of managed property projects, as of the dates indicated:

HZ12A31R8

As of 31 December

20235
2023

20244
2024

129,067
102,697

132,103
102,294
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IR B EEE Geographic Coverage .
AT B #8 RN 202412 AN B R FIMEESY  The map below illustrates the geographic coverage of our managed properties as of 31
FKHMIBEEHE December 2024:
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The table below sets forth the breakdowns of (i) the total GFA under management,
and (ii) the number of managed property projects by geographic region as of the dates
indicated:

M2A31H
As of 31 December
0245 20235
2024 2023

rE kg
EEER HEYA EFEER HE¥A
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects management projects

(FFHK) (FFAK)

(000 sg.m.) (000 sg.m.)
BEBRKER Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Bay Area 22,810 138 22,769 141
R=fAiE Yangtze River Delta 58,542 481 58,797 474
RYSEE Bohai Economic Rim 5522 38 5937 38
i Wester China 9,526 42 9,127 I
i Central China 6,297 29 5,664 26
st Total 102,697 728 102,294 720

AEEBEBAEERMABRBLE =T M5E
RS

TREJAEEW()BEETRERE 0 RiiE
EMFERE RN BB

The Group continued to expand its business through organic growth and independent
third party market development.

Set out below are the changes in (i) the total GFA under management and (ii) the
number of managed property projects as of the indicated date:

20244 2023F
2024 2023

& £
EEER BEHE BEEE EE#E
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects management projects

(FFAK) (FEAXK)

('000 sg.m.) ('000 sg.m.)
R1A18 As of 1 January 102,294 720 94,518 673
nELe New engagement 8,466 104 18,625 152
SIS Termination (8,063) (96) (10,849) (105)
®12A318 As of 31 December 102,697 728 102,294 720
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Types of Properties Managed

The Group managed a diversified portfolio of properties covering mid- to high-
end residential communities and non-residential properties, including commercial
properties, office buildings, hospitals, schools, banks, arenas and stadiums,
government buildings, public facilities and industrial parks and culture and tourism
facilities etc.. Starting from Guangxi, Yancheng, Yangzhou and Jiaxing, we expanded
the cooperation with government platforms and our urban services business.
Regarding the property management services, the Group adopted two revenue models
under which property management fees are charged on either a lump-sum basis or
commission basis. For lump-sum basis, the Group recorded all the fees as revenue
and all the expenses incurred in connection with providing the property management
services as cost of services. For commission basis, the Group essentially acted as the
agent of the property owners and therefore records only a pre-determined percentage
of the property management fees or cost of services as set out in the property
management service contracts as revenue. By adopting these two revenue models, the
Group managed to cover the expenses incurred in connection with providing property
management services.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of (i) the property management services
revenue, (i) the total GFA under management, and (iii) the number of managed property
projects by type of properties for the years/as of the dates indicated:

BENANALEE/RIANA
Year ended/as of 31 December

U i3

i} ]
REREER TER%EA Wi HEREER EREA
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects management projects

(FFaR) (FF3R)
(RVB000)

i Residenialcommunites LA 15 b1 644 00 3 677433 26 60259 B9 i
Hiznz Noresidential propertes 04 648 135 4103 0 39 660 606 194 00 i BiL
gt Totl 138937 1000 102697 1000 JLi 13509 100 1025 1000 JLi
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TREFINFIREE, BHRKZEEAZIHH) The table below sets forth the breakdown of (i) the property management services
(VeI ARG 2% - ()47 E 245 E ¢ (i) revenue, (ii) the total GFA under management, and (iii) the number of managed property
EEMEHREPMA - projects by revenue model for the years/as of the dates indicated:

BZNANALEE/MANA

Year ended/as of 31 December

ANE WBE
i} m
EERETR HE4A & RERETR HR%A
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
Mmanagement projects management projects
(FEAR) (ABETT) (f
% [00sym) % [00sym)
NEEERE Proerty management senices
() {lmpsum basis 133,39 %9 1919 JiA 18 128353% %9 T2 185 810
VEE Praperty management seies
(Had) {commisson basi] kil 41 B9 19 1) 54563 Iy B 5 {1l
& Totel 1389375 1000 102697 1000 It 133099 1000 0% 1000 T

FRANBENRE - stBESHIEAMS - 2 Itis important to note that for projects on commission basis, the Group recorded only
REEM N Y EEIRRBE SR EMNTELETEY  apre-determined percentage, typically 10%, of the property management fees or cost
XBEERBYREKAAR S (—HA10%)EU of services as set out in the property management service contracts as revenue, while
o MERHIEEME - BMEAMEMEERE  all the property management fees are recorded as revenue under projects on lump-sum
Btk A - basis.
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TEEHENRMAATEE BEILEZR4ER]  The table below sets forth the breakdowns of (i) the property management services
ZOM)\MEESERBEWE : (REEESEME  revenue, (i) the total GFA under management, and (iii) the number of managed property
& RIVEBE WS E R4 projects by type of developers for the years/as of the dates indicated:

BENANALEE/RIANA
Year ended/as of 31 December
ANE i3
i} s
EEERER BREEA i hEREME BREA

GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects management projects
) (FFAK) (AREF7T)
(RIB 000 (000sqm) (RVB000) % (W0sgm)

B EARRNZ Propertiesdevlopd by

the Keisa Group 610,768 ) B3 126 n % 35 0y i 3

HEUE=TEREE Proerts developed by ndependent
[ thirdpary propery developers Lk %0 56906 514 ol g7 05 60403 50 bl
g Total 1389375 1000 102697 100 JLi 1338099 100 1029 100 mn

2024 - MEEERFRWEL A AR In 2024, the total revenue of property management services was approximately

13894 B BT - FILLIEINAI38% - WEEZM  RMB1,389.4 million, representing an increase of approximately 3.8% period to

BEMNEE - EZAESEIYFEEERSL - 24 period. With a reasonable layout of the property industry, the Group has been able to

EHEBRFNRGER  AEENYEEERT  undertake engagement of a wide range of property projects and provide competitive

BEURBBRIT - services and products. The overall development of property management services of
the Group is promising.
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VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO PROPERTY OWNERS

As an extension of its property management services, the Group’s value-added services
to property owners aim to address the life style and daily needs of the property owners
(including individual property owners and institutional property owners) and residents,
provide various products and services, improve customer satisfaction, and provide a
more healthy and convenient life style for the property owners and residents.

The Group provides diversified products and services to the property owners and
residents through K Series Living to meet their ever-changing daily needs. As a value-
added service brand under the Group, K Series Living has been adhering to the service
concept of “Fast, High-quality, Value-added and Colorful life” since its launch, covering
various business types such as residential and commercial buildings, office buildings,
stadiums, and public facilities. After continuous optimization and development, K
Series Living currently can be mainly divided into four major segments: (1) K-Space (/)»
KZ= ), (2) K-Retail (/NKZE%), (3) K-Lease & Sale (/NKFHE), and (4) K-Decoration
(/NKZEJE). K-Retail has been further refined and divided into various sub-unit product
series: (a) K-Commercial and Office Buildings (/)\KF&E), (b) K-Charging (/]\KFE &), (c)
K-Choice Goods (/J\K{E3%), (d) K-Group Buying (/) KB &%), (e) K-Delivery (/N\KEIZR), (f)
K-Cultural Tourism (/]NK3Z /i) and (g) K-pet (/]NKB5EE). By leveraging the advantages
of integrated fundamental property services, diversified supply chains and distributed
mini warehouse, we continued to improve our value-added service capabilities, provide
high-quality products and convenient services, and build a standardized and full-
lifecycle service and product system.

As at 31 December 2024, Kaisa Prosperity has been opened eleven stores under the
name of “K Series Living Exhibition Hall” (/NK4E )& & 7~ 8) and at present, covers
11 cities including Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Shanghai, Chengdu, Chongging, Dongguan,
Foshan, Huizhou, Suzhou, Zhuhai and Changsha. Catering to the immediate needs of
customers and focusing on user experience, we strive to create accurate professional
value-added services. Kaisa Prosperity is accelerating the exploration of a community
neighborhood living service circle. Through business integration and development,
we have realized a comprehensive upgrade of product system and comprehensively
enhanced community space operation and service capability. Kaisa Prosperity’s
neighborhood service ecology, with K Series Living Exhibition Hall and K Series
Living platform as the carrier, gathered national and local advantageous supply chain
resources, and created a “1+N" service system through a “One Strategy for One City”
approach, focusing on local living needs such as community group buying, delivery
service, house renovation, house rental and sales, community leisure, catering and
cultural tourism. At the same time, Kaisa Prosperity has independently developed
information technology tools such as community sharing platforms and service ordering
platforms to make local life more carefree, comfortable and secure.

In 2024, the total revenue of value-added services to property owners was
approximately RMB162.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately 7.9%
period to period. Such decrease was primarily due to the market environment of
downturn in resident consumption and intensifying industry competition.
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VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO NON-PROPERTY OWNERS

Leveraging on the Group's relevant expertise, the Group provides a wide range of
value-added services to non-property owners (mainly property developers), which
include: (i) construction sites management services; (i) display units and property sales
venues management services; (iii) property management consulting services; and (iv)
smart solution services, etc..

Construction sites management services. The Group provided primarily
security services and to a lesser extent management services, such as cleaning and
maintenance services, for the construction sites of property development projects.

Display units and property sales venues management services. The Group
deployed personnel onsite to assist property developers with their property marketing
and selling activities. The Group also assisted property developers with responding to
general enquiries at front desks and maintaining order at property sales venues.

Consulting Services. The Group provided general daily property management
consulting services to other property management companies.

Smart solution services. The Group provided comprehensive integrated solution
including design, self-developed products, engineering construction and operation and
maintenance services to different kinds of property developers.

In 2024, the total revenue of value-added services to non-property owners was
approximately RMB183.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately 34.3%
period to period. Such decrease was primarily due to the impact of national macro
policies, market conditions in the real estate industry during the period, where the
demand for relevant services by real estate developers decreased.

Save for the above mentioned, there have been no material changes in the business
development activities of the Group in 2024.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group derived revenue from: (i) property management services; (ii) value-added
services to property owners; and (iii) value-added services to non-property owners.
Revenue decreased by approximately 3.3% from approximately RMB1,794.3 million in
2023 to approximately RMB1,735.4 million in 2024.

The revenue contribution by each business segment for the years indicated is set forth
in the table below:

HZNANALEE
Year ended 31 December
225 ABF 28
2024 2023 Changes

ARETT ARBTT AREFT

RMB'000 % RMB'000 RMB'000
MEEERS Property management services 1,389,375 80.1 1,338,099 746 51,276 38
EIERS Value-added services to property owners 162,139 93 176,065 98 (13,926) (7.9)

FEEFTIEERE Value-added services to non-property

owners 183913 106 280,103 156 (96,190) (343)
=t Total 1,135,427 100.0 1,794,267 100.0 (8,840) (3.3)

MEEERRB RS  T2REAFE/N
2 HEDERDLZEREOK T4
EBBREEURMELE R EER
HRMEEIEE - HEWER2023F LA
R¥1338 18 BB ME2024FHAREE
13894E & 7T « 1EIR#I38% o ZIEMEE
RN BEANTIEREFAEELE =TTmis
BEREFSERAEEEREAMBIEMATE -

¥FEEREKE  TEREGETNRES
REREEFEEY  THEE T& B
ERENEE FEREEMBI RS
ERBEAEMKA - BRI R2023F 4
AR B BB L E2048FH AR
1621 BEIT  RIBLIT9% ° ;LR EE /A
RERBERK - (TERFNE OISR
iﬁ °

e Revenue from property management services, which primarily include property
management fees for providing security, cleaning and gardening and property
repair and maintenance services to residential communities, commercial
properties and public facilities, and such revenue increased by approximately
3.8% from approximately RMB1,338.1 million in 2023 to approximately
RMB1,389.4 million in 2024. Such increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in the total GFA under management resulting from the business
expansion through organic growth and independent third-party market
development.

e Revenue from value-added services to property owners, which primarily include
income generated from the car parking, space leasing, retailing, house leasing
and sales, housing decoration and renovation and other value-added services
through both offline and online channels, decreased by approximately 7.9% from
approximately RMB176.1 million in 2023 to approximately RMB162.1 million in
2024. Such decrease was primarily due to the market environment of downturn
in resident consumption and intensifying industry competition.
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e Revenue from value-added services to non-property owners, which primarily
include fees for construction sites management, display units and property sales
venues management and consulting services and installation and maintenance
services, decreased by approximately 34.3% from approximately RMB280.1
million in 2023 to approximately RMB183.9 million in 2024. Such decrease was
primarily due to the impact of national macro policies, market conditions in the
real estate industry during the period, where the demand for relevant services by
real estate developers decreased.

Direct Operating Expenses

The direct operating expenses of the Group primarily comprises staff costs,
subcontracting costs, construction costs, carpark leasing expenses, utility expenses,
office expenses, community cultural expenses, other taxes and others. The direct
operating expenses decreased by approximately RMB22.0 million from approximately
RMB1,312.9 million in 2023 to approximately RMB1,290.9 million in 2024.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 7.7% from
approximately RMB481.3 million in 2023 to approximately RMB444.5 million in
2024. The overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased by approximately 1.2
percentage points from approximately 26.8% in 2023 to approximately 25.6% in 2024.
The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin by business
segment for the periods indicated:

HENRNALEE
Year ended 31 December
2205 23% 29
2024 2023 Changes
i EilES E| EES &8
Gross Profit Gross Profit

Gross Profit Margin  Gross Profit Margin Amount

AREFT ARETT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MEEERS Property management services 298,131 215 306,437 229 (8,306) (2.7)
— & — Lump-sum basis 201,154 181 251,874 196 (10,720) (4.3)
—MEH ~ Commission basis 56,977 1000 54,563 1000 2414 44
FTIEERS Value-added services to property owners 100,240 618 99,860 5.7 380 04

FEFIEERE Value-added services to non-property

owners 46,115 25.1 75,050 268 (28,935) (38.6)
&t Total 444,486 256 481,347 268 (36,861) (77)
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1)  Property management services
Gross profit margin of the Group’s property management services dropped
by approximately 1.4 percentage points from approximately 22.9% in 2023 to
approximately 21.5% in 2024. The decrease was primarily due to the increase of
staff costs and subcontracting costs to improve our service quality and enhance
customer experience and satisfaction.

2) Value-added services to property owners
Gross profit margin of the Group's value-added services to property owners
increased by approximately 5.1 percentage points from approximately 56.7%
in 2023 to approximately 61.8% in 2024. The increase was mainly due to the
proportion of revenue contributed by projects with lower gross profit margin
decreased during the year.

3)  Value-added services to non-property owners
Gross profit margin of the Group’s value-added services to non-property owners
dropped by approximately 1.7 percentage points from approximately 26.8% in
2023 to approximately 25.1% in 2024. The decrease was primarily due to an
increase in revenue contributed by certain value-added services which have a
lower gross profit margins.

Selling and Marketing Expenses
Selling and marketing expenses of the Group decreased by approximately 13.5% from
approximately RMB12.6 million in 2023 to approximately RMB10.9 million in 2024.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased by approximately 9.8% from
approximately RMB189.9 million in 2023 to approximately RMB171.3 million in 2024.
The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in staff costs as a results of
optimizing organizational structure to improve operational efficiency.

Provision for Loss Allowance on Financial Assets and Contract Assets
Provision for loss allowance on financial assets and contract assets of the Group
decreased by approximately 83.3% from approximately RMB698.6 million in 2023 to
approximately RMB116.6 million in 2024. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the fact that substantial provision for loss allowance on trade receivables had been
recognised in 2023.

Change in Fair Value on Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded a fair value loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB89.8 million
as compared to approximately RMB143.4 million in 2023. The decrease in fair value on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss was mainly due to the unexpected
slow recovery of the PRC economy in the current year.
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Impairment Loss on Goodwill

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised an impairment loss
on goodwill attributable to a subsidiary engaged in providing property management
services to industrial and commercial properties of approximately RMB24.4 million as
compared to nil for 2023.

Income Tax (Expense)/Credit
The Group recorded an income tax expenses of approximately RMB15.2 million in 2024
as compared to the income tax credit of approximately RMB144.3 million in 2023 due
to increase in profit before income tax.

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

The Group's profit for the year amounted to approximately RMB25.6 million as
compared to a loss of approximately RMB437.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Liquidity, Capital Structure and Financial Resources

As of 31 December 2024, the Group's cash and bank balances were approximately
RMB243.3 million, represented a decrease of approximately RMB43.5 million from
approximately RMB286.8 million as of 31 December 2023.

As of 31 December 2024, the net current assets of the Group was approximately
RMB127.0 million (31 December 2023: approximately RMB35.3 million). As of 31
December 2024, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was
approximately 1.15 (31 December 2023: approximately 1.04).

As of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any other
loans or borrowings.

Treasury Policy

The Directors of the Company will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position
to ensure that the Group is well-positioned to capture future growth opportunities.

Goodwill

As of 31 December 2024, the Group recorded goodwill of approximately RMB136.5
million (31 December 2023: approximately RMB160.8 million). The decrease was due
to impairment loss on goodwill amounting to RMB24.4 million was recognised during
the year.

Right-of-Use Assets

As of 31 December 2024, the Group recorded right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB164.0 million (31 December 2023: approximately RMB184.0 million) which are
mainly used by the Group to provide property management services and sublease the
non-residential properties for rental income.
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Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management fees, value-added
services fees to non-property owners. Trade receivables of the Group increased
by approximately RMB62.0 million from approximately RMB393.6 million as of 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB455.6 million as of 31 December 2024, primarily
due to our business expansion of property management services and the slow down
of recovery of receivables because of the slow recovery of the PRC economy in the
current year.

Other receivables mainly consist of deposits, prepayments, payments on behalf of
staff and payments on behalf of residents under lump-sum basis. Other receivables
of the Group slightly increased by approximately RMB12.6 million from approximately
RMB75.2 million as of 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB87.8 million as of 31
December 2024.

Payments on behalf of Residents

The Group made payments on behalf of residents of the managed residential
communities under commission basis. Payments on behalf of residents represent
working capital expenditures paid by the Group on behalf of the residential
communities. The Group’s payments on behalf of residents increased by approximately
RMB40.8 million from approximately RMB95.1 million as of 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB135.9 million as of 31 December 2024, primarily due to the
slowdown of collection of such payments.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables mainly represent the obligations to pay suppliers for procurements in
the ordinary course of business. The balances of trade payables of the Group increased
by approximately RMB12.6 million from approximately RMB194.0 million as of 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB206.6 million as of 31 December 2024.

Other payables mainly consist of accrued staff costs, deposits received, consideration
payables for acquisition of subsidiaries and receipt on behalf of residents. The accrued
staff costs relate to the employees’ salary and related expenditure. The deposits
received primarily relate to the deposits the Group received from property owners in
the managed properties charged on a lump-sum basis for any additional repairs and
maintenance expense the Group might incur due to their property decoration. Receipt
on behalf of residents relates to the remaining property management fees the Group
received in the managed properties charged on a commission basis and the Group
managed such fees collectively in its headquarters. The balances of other payables of
the Group decreased by approximately RMB31.5 million from approximately RMB365.4
million as of 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB333.9 million as of 31 December
2024.

Capital Commitments
As of 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any material capital commitment (31
December 2023: nil).
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Pledge of Assets
As of 31 December 2024, none of the assets of the Group were pledged (31 December
2023: nil).

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and Disposal of
Assets and Future Plans

The Group did not have any significant investments, material acquisitions or disposal
of assets for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil). The Group did not have any
future plans for significant investments, capital assets, major acquisitions or disposal
of assets.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing borrowings by total
equity at the end of the respective period. The gearing ratio of the Group was nil as of
31 December 2023 and 2024.

Contingent Liabilities
As of 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities (31
December 2023: nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group primarily conducts its business in the PRC and in Renminbi. As of 31
December 2024, cash and bank balances denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United
States Dollar was approximately RMB0.86 million (31 December 2023: RMB4.0
million), which are subject to foreign exchange exposure.

The Group currently does not hedge its foreign exchange risk, but continuously
monitors its foreign exchange exposure. The management will consider hedging the
foreign exchange exposure where there is a material impact on the Group.

Employees and Benefits Policies

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had 12,013 employees (31 December 2023:
12,713 employees). Employee’s remuneration is determined based on the employee’s
performance, skills, knowledge, experience and market trends. The Group regularly
reviews compensation policies and programs, and will make necessary adjustments in
order to be in line with remuneration levels in the industry norm. In addition to basic
salaries, employees may be granted with discretionary bonus and cash awards based
on individual performance. The Group offers training to its employees so as to enable
them to acquire basic skills to perform their duties and to upgrade or improve their
production techniques. Furthermore, on 18 June 2019, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme
are set out in the circular of the Company dated 29 April 2019.

Subsequent events
Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant subsequent events up
to the date of this report.
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Kwok Ying Shing (283 X), aged 60, serves as an executive Director of the
Company since 16 April 2024 and serves as chairman of the Company since 20
May 2024, he is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Kwok is a substantial shareholder of Kaisa
Group Holdings Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 1638). Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd.
is the controlling shareholder of the Company, holding approximately 67.18%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Kwok has extensive experience
in real estate development, investment and financing management. Mr. Kwok
is also the chairman and an executive director of Kaisa Capital Investment
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 936), the
co-chairman and an executive director of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1105), and an executive
director of Kaisa Health Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 876). Mr. Kwok is the father of Mr. Kwok Hiu Kwan, an executive Director
of the Company.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Kwok was interested in 258,250 shares of
the Company, representing approximately 0.17% of the issued share capital
of the Company, through Da Chang Investment Company Limited, a company
wholly owned by Mr. Kwok. Save for the aforesaid, Mr. Kwok does not have any
interest in or is deemed to be interested in any shares or underlying shares of
the Company or its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Liao Chuangiang (BZ{&3&), aged 45, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company, and the key decision maker of the Group. He
is responsible for the management and business development of the Group,
formulation and implementation of long-term strategies, including acquisition
plans and corporate finance as well as the overall strategic planning, corporate
management and business development of the Group. Mr. Liao joined the Group
in October 2013 and has served in various positions in the Group, including
our chairman, president, standing vice president and assistant to the general
manager of the Group and the vice general manager of Kaisa Leju Property
Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Liao has over 21 years of management experience
in property management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liao served in various
positions in different leading real estate companies in China from 2002 to
2013, including the property management manager of Wuhan Guotou Property
Development Co., Ltd., the manager of the property department of Shenzhen
Lask JV Property Management Co., Ltd., the assistant to general manager of
the property management department of Mingliu Investment Group (a property
developer) and the vice general manager of Wanda Commercial Properties Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Liao graduated from Hubei University, where he obtained a bachelor’s
degree of administrative management in June 2002.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Liao had share options granted by the
controlling shareholder of the Company, Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code:
1638) ("Kaisa Holdings", together with its subsidiaries “Kaisa Group”), to
subscribe for 4,129,708 shares of Kaisa Holdings, representing approximately
0.06% of the issued share capital of Kaisa Holdings. For details, please refer to
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executive's Interests in Securities”
under the section headed “Report of Directors” of this report. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Liao was not interested in any shares (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO).
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Li Haiming (Z=18), aged 50, is an executive Director of the Company. He
is the Co-president of Kaisa Group. He has been appointed as the executive
Director of Kaisa Group with effect from 6 April 2020. Mr. Li joined Kaisa Group
in July 2002 and has served in various positions, including the chairman of
Changsha Branch and Shenzhen Branch of Kaisa Real Estate Group, the general
manager of Kaisa Golden Bay International Resorts Company* (4 Y 5 B 4%
[&/x 7], the vice president of Kaisa Real Estate Group (Shenzhen Region) and
Kaisa Holdings, executive president of Kaisa Holdings, chief operating officer of
Kaisa Group, etc. Before Mr. Li joined Kaisa Group, he had worked for Shenzhen
General Institute of Architectural Design and Research Co., LTD* (R34
=& 5HATFCP%), and Tsinghua Architectural Design Co., LTD* (5 #5822 58 3% 5

ABR 2 F]). Mr. Li graduated from the Party School of the Guangdong Provincial
Committee of CPC (EER & Z E ) in July 2000, majored in Enterprise
Management. He also specialized in architecture and graduated from Chongging

Architecture and Engineering College (22 B 5228 T #22F5) in July 1994,

As at the date of this report, Mr. Li had share options granted by the controlling
shareholder of the Company, Kaisa Holdings, to subscribe for 7,226,990 shares of
Kaisa Holdings, representing approximately 0.10% of the issued share capital of
Kaisa Holdings. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li was not interested in any shares
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ).

Kwok Hiu Kwan (S8BE&¥), aged 33, serves as an executive Director of the
Company since 12 July 2023. Mr. Kwok is an executive Director and co-president
of Kaisa Group. Mr. Kwok has successively served as vice president of Shanghai
Urban Renewal Group, the chairman and the president of Shanghai Region of
Kaisa Group since May 2018. Mr. Kwok graduated from Essex University in
the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree in finance management in July
2013 and obtained a master in sociology from University College London in the
United Kingdom in July 2014. Mr. Kwok is the son of Mr. Kwok Ying Shing, the
executive Director and chairman of the Company.
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Zhao Jianhua (32 %), aged 54, is an executive Director of the Company,
joined the Group in August 2022. He was formerly a Commissar of Police Security
Department of Public Security Bureau of Yongzhou, Hunan (8355 & sk JH 2
T RERREEBKZE). Mr. Zhao graduated from The School of Finance and
Accounting of Hengyang (7% T B BU& 5HE24%) majoring in finance in 1991.
He obtained a bachelor’s degree in politics and law from Central Party School of
the Communist Party of China (FF 9% Z45) in 2000 and completed his studies in
legal affairs at The Open University of China (B 5% B8 A E2) in 2022. Mr. Zhao
has the title of accountant granted by the Ministry of personnel and the Ministry
of finance of the People’s Republic of China.

Mou Zhaohui (£ E3#&), aged 50, serves as an executive Director of the
Company. Ms. Mou joined Kaisa Group in February 2011 and successively served
as the Shenzhen group vice president, the Guangzhou regional executive vice
president and president, the vice president and executive vice president of the
capital investment group, the executive vice president of the new business
group, the vice president of the group holdings and the president of the cost
management department of the group holdings. Before joining the Kaisa Group,
Ms. Mou worked at Excellence Group (5 #5£2 @) and Huizhou Fangzhi Group
(BINHF EEE). Ms. Mou graduated from Wuhan University of Science
and Technology (E)Z 5 K 2) with a bachelor's degree in engineering
management in July 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Liu Hongbai (21348), aged 52, has been the independent non-executive
Director since 12 November 2018 and is responsible for providing independent
advice on the operations and management of the Group. Mr. Liu is currently the
partner at Shenzhen Huatang Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership).
Having nearly 30 years of experience in auditing and financial management, Mr.
Liu was the partner at Shenzhen Hengda Certified Public Accountants (General
Partnership) from 2005 to July 2014 and the branch manager at Agricultural
Bank of China, Hengyang branch between 1993 and 2002. Mr. Liu graduated
from Jiaying University in the PRC, where he obtained a diploma degree of
finance in July 1993. He received a bachelor’s degree of finance from The Open
University of China in January 2017 and received a master's degree of Business
Administration from Guangxi University in December 2021. Mr. Liu obtained
the certificate of certified public account granted by Ministry of Finance of
the PRC (the “MOF"), the title of senior accountant granted by the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security, the certificate of certified public valuer
granted by the MOF and the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC, the qualification
of registered tax agent granted by the MOF and the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC, the qualification of certified internal auditor by The Institute of Internal
Auditors and the certificate of qualified board secretary issued by the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.
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Ma Xiumin (5 55 #8%), aged 52, has been the independent non-executive
Director since 12 November 2018 and is responsible for providing advice on
the operations and management of the Group. Ms. Ma is currently the partner
of Shenzhen Hengda Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership). Ms.
Ma has nearly 21 years of experience in tax administration, accounting and
internal control. She was an independent director of the board at Shenzhen
Clou Electronics Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002121), from 2007 to 2013. She was the independent director at
AQTO Electronics Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002587), from 2016 to 2018. Ms. Ma graduated from Central China
University of Technology in the PRC, where she obtained a diploma degree of
technical economics in July 1992. She also received a bachelor's degree of
economic management from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (formerly
known as Zhongnan University of Economics) in June 1997. Ms. Ma obtained the
qualification of intermediate accountant granted by the MOF, the certificate of
certified public accountant granted by the MOF and the certificate of qualified
independent director issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Chen Bin (BR3E), aged 52, has been the independent non-executive Director
since 12 November 2018 and is responsible for providing independent advice
on the operations and management of the Group. Mr. Chen is now the partner
at Shenzhen Ligin Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership). Mr. Chen
graduated from Lanzhou University of Arts and Science (formerly known as
Gansu United University) in the PRC, where he obtained a diploma degree of
financial accounting in July 1994. He also obtained the certificate of certified
public accountant granted by the MOF, the certificate of certified asset valuer
granted by the MOF and the certificate of qualified independent director issued
by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen has nearly 29 years of experience
in financial auditing and economic consulting. He was the deputy director of
Shenzhen Zhongxiang Certified Public Accountants (General Partnership) from
2008 to 2012, the independent non-executive director at First Dragoncom Agro-
strategy Holdings Ltd from 2005 to 2006 and the financial controller at Shenzhen
Qiaozhi Industrial Co., Ltd. from 1998 to 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Liu Taohong (215 3#), aged 46, was appointed as the vice president of the
Group in February 2025, and is primarily responsible for the design management
of the Group. Mr. Liu joined Kaisa Group in September 2009 and served
successively as an assistant to the general manager of the design company,
assistant president of Kaisa Real Estate Group, vice present of the Shenzhen
Group, and vice president of the Group Holding Innovation Research Institute.
Mr. Liu graduated from Kunming University of Science and Technology with a
bachelor's degree in Architecture in July 2001, and obtained a master’s degree
in Architecture and Civil Engineering from Tsinghua University in July 2018.

Chen Jungeng (BR&EX), aged 33, was appointed as an assistant president
of the Group in September 2024, and is primarily responsible for the financial
management, administration and human resources, legal affairs management,
investment expansion, and rehabilitation and housekeeping business of the
Group. Mr. Chen joined Kaisa Group in July 2014 and served successively as
the director of the planning and finance department of the Shenzhen Branch
of Kaisa Real Estate Group, assistant to the general manager of the financial
management department of Shenzhen Group, and deputy general manager of
the capital center of the Group's financial management department. Mr. Chen
graduated from Guangzhou University with a bachelor’s degree in Financial
Management in July 2014.

He Hua (fA14€), aged 40, was appointed as an assistant president of the
Group in November 2024, and is primarily responsible for the Group’s customer
services, engineering quality management, and procurement cost management.
Ms. He joined Kaisa Group in September 2009 and served successively as
the deputy director of the customer and marketing department of Kaisa Real
Estate Group (Shenzhen Region), director of operations of the digital marketing
department of the Shenzhen Group, deputy general manager of Kaisa Group's
customer and marketing department and assistant president of the office of the
Board of Directors. Ms. He graduated from Shenzhen University with a degree
in Modern Enterprise Management and subsequently from Renmin University of
China with a degree in Technical Economy and Management.

Zhao Deshuai (##&Rh), aged 32, was appointed as an assistant president
of the Group in October 2024, and is primarily responsible for the management
of the Group’s Shenzhen branch. Mr. Zhao joined Kaisa Group in July 2015 and
served successively as the project manager of the procurement and quality
management department of Hubei Branch of Kaisa Real Estate Group, deputy
general manager of the office of the Board of Directors and general manager
of the customer and engineering department of Kaisa Prosperity. Mr. Zhao
graduated from Hunan University with a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering in
July 2015.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Objectives of the Report

This environmental, social and governance report (“this report” or the “ESG
Report”) published by Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
("Kaisa Prosperity”, the “Group” or “We") aims to provide the performance of
the Group in respect of the environmental, social and governance aspects in a
transparent and open manner over the past year, so that the stakeholders can
understand the progress and direction of the sustainable development of the
Group.

Basis of Preparation

This report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements set out in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Code” (the “ESG Code”)
contained in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The
disclosure in this report complies with the disclosure requirements of the “comply
or explain” as set out in the ESG Code. The content of this report is prepared
in accordance with a set of systematic procedures, including identifying major
stakeholders, identifying and ranking material ESG issues, determining the scope
of this report, collecting relevant materials and data, reviewing those data, and
preparing this report based on such information.

Reporting Scope

This report covers the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (the
“Reporting Period” or the “Year”), which is in conformity with the Group's
financial year.

This report focuses on the Group’s management approach, performance and
measures in respect of the environmental, social and governance aspects. The
general disclosures in this report cover the Group’s existing business lines,
including the three business lines of property management services, value-added
services to property owners and value-added services to non-property owners.
The environmental KPls and social KPIs disclosed in this report cover core
functional units in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Bay Area, Yangtze River
Delta, Western and Central China and Bohai Economic Rim. Unless otherwise
stated, RMB is used in the report as its legal currency.
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Reporting Principles

EMHErE

Our Responses

Reporting Principles

This report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Code” contained in Appendix
C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The disclosure in this
report complies with the disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain” as
set out in the Guide.

This report was reviewed, confirmed and approved by the Board on 25 March
2025. During the process of preparation of this report, we summarized the
Group’s performance in corporate and social responsibilities based on the
principles of “Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency”. The statistical
methods and key performance indicators (KPIs) in this report are as consistent
as possible with those of last year. Any changes have been explained and
comparative data have been provided where appropriate. Please refer to the
table below for our understanding and response to such reporting principles.

22 AEBRBRE  HEREARELEREERFNELAEATE N  HME
BETRETRIERRE @ RERRARAERE - ARBEESIFEAR
77 RANREREREETEEHRENE - JIAMKIRENEARET AR
Hhl - RBEMRA - BRIE TESCHEBNEZRER - HETFUASHEAIT 1
EREPIEE T HENEE -

Materiality

The Group believes ESG report exerts significant influence on the investors and stakeholders.

We disclosed the process of identifying important environmental, social and governance
factors in the report, including the identification of stakeholders, and the use of the importance
matrix for the assessment of material issues. Based on the communication mechanism with
stakeholders and the principle of materiality, we identified important ESG-related factors,
focused on them, and disclosed corresponding measures in the report.

B ABENETABRBEBREMER - X ERIFMEMLIRFER AR
%R BREGTELANBEARMAERNERRARNFR - WREES
SUTEHBRELL

Quantitative

This report made quantitative disclosure about KPIs, and reported the standards, methods,

assumption or data for calculation of emissions and energy consumption, as well as the
conversion factors used and, where appropriate, effective comparisons.

¥ ¥R B AT AR IR AT 455 4B 3 R 00 T P 1S A BB A AT ED Y Y DR

Balance This report discussed our achievements and challenges in sustainability.

—3 RBERSER BN E - UHABER204F AN ET AL R ERE
LR -

This report adopted, as much as practicable, consistent methodologies and provided
explanation on any differences in the methods of computation adopted in 2024.

Consistency




¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2024

-

EREIR
REREREEEREAREEAF - 4
BB ARBE EFEUARERR
MEEN - ERUEMTELEEE -

BN

RREDBIAR X REARE - ATRAR
B4R 5 (www.jzywy.com) K & 7 Bt 22 BT 48 U
(www.hkexnews.hk) & B A T~ & o B AR S

M EXURABEAER - ARXURE
i/;ﬁ_o
EEEEH

RARKERERFEEARAR ([EK
¥4 [AKEIHIRM]) - MAR
RREMOBFECGRE - HEREAR
) AFRUERAEEEASERRT
) TARER R © (ERTPBIELAW
MERERGELRE - M- ENIEHE
EREIRSIE - BHmENEREFR
EEYEERRE2H Y ABSER
BFE - ENEEENSERAOTAER
BRMBAL - BTHERARESERR
B BPREELIEREHR - BER
o BESXR FESEINEETE
TERARGME - REEFPHNEEER
A - REEEEESRETISHRA -

EHBEBRBIERNRE - AEBEIR
FRMHEEERAEBEENRLEE
2 B ERRAIHEEREMEE
BhE  BRRRUELERMERER
HIEE  #RRASEENRY LEER
% WE PSS PR HORER
EEFE - RIS BEREIRLEMS RN
BRENHETE ReERERE BT
REMEEGEET WA T —RITEGZEN
AT EHIARIK -

fEIEEFEBAR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 43

RIE - HERERTRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Source of Information

The information disclosed in this report is derived from the Group's formal
documents, statistics or public information. The Board is responsible for the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its contents.

Way of Publication

This report is prepared in both Chinese and English and is available for viewing
and downloading from the Company's website (www.jzywy.com) and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk). In the event of
discrepancies between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version
shall prevail.

BOARD STATEMENT

On behalf of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (“Kaisa Prosperity”, the “Group”,
“we" or “us”), | am pleased to publish the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report for 2024 and announce the progress and achievements of the Group in
sustainable development. As a leading urban integrated service operator in
China, we have always taken “Prosperity is underway” (£ 4F IEFEZ£4E) as
its guide to integrate the pursuit of quality into the entire process of property
management, and refined various aspects of property management in a more
scientific and effective manner by means of intelligent technology. To ensure the
long-term stability of our operations, we have established the quality approach of
“sincerity, rigour, pragmatism and efficiency as well as continuous improvement”
(EBEEW - BEAE  HERY - FHEMWHE) to continuously improve
the quality of our services, which has gained the trust and recognition of our
customers, and the value of our brand has also gradually gained recognition in
the market.

As it forges ahead with steady business growth, the Group regards environmental
and social responsibilities as one of the core values in its business operations.
We are committed to becoming a sustainable property management enterprise,
with an aim to create long-term value for all stakeholders and maintain high-
quality services and operational standards, which will bring positive effect
to the communities we are serving. We actively control the impacts on the
environment and the communities caused during the process of operation,
improve our information transparency and perform our environmental and social
responsibilities, for the purpose of creating a green and sustainable future for
our next generation.
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In 2024, through the creation of community cultural systems including the
“Prosperity Convention” (SE4F /72 4Y), “Firefly Program” (&% ‘A 82 5121), “Kaisa's
Neighbors” (fE#F{EER), “Child Friendly Community” (522 & 87 +L[&), “Pet
Friendly Community” (BE¥I R &F 4t [&) and “Starry Shining Community (23
SAT 2 E4EIE), we actively organized community cultural activities, and
advocated the concept of providing fun for the children and security for the
elderly, and harmony between people and pets (478 FT4% - ZGFTRE - ASE
F58). Kaisa Prosperity took practical actions to care for the elderly and provide
convenience for pet-owning families, and build a community service system with
Kaisa Prosperity’s own distinctive characteristics, thereby building a beautiful
community with harmonious neighborhood, and enhancing the happiness of
property owners.

In respect of building a safe and secured community, Kaisa Prosperity deployed
a large number of personnel to launch three special campaigns namely “100
Days of Safety without Accident” (& B Z 2% #4), “No Accident in Summer
Production” (E =% 2 A E£EEH) and "Keep Ringing the Alarm Bell” (&
$E1&18), and effectively improved the professional skills and risk prevention
and handling ability of employees regarding fire safety, as well as the fire safety
awareness and emergency evacuation abilities of property owners and residents.
We effectively investigated and eliminated the relevant risks and hazards, and
safeguarded the lives and properties of property owners and residents.

With love for residents and love for life, the Group has launched social
responsibility special campaigns in cities including Shenzhen, Guangzhou,
Huizhou, Jiangyin and Huludao, and equipped some projects with AED equipment
and CPR first-aid, and assisted customers to complete multiple emergency
rescues through conducting operational trainings and emergency drills with
employees as well as improving contingent rescue plans to reduce unnatural
deaths in the service space.

In respect of energy conservation and emission reduction, we continued to
implement the system and standards including the Guidelines on Management
and Control of Energy Saving ( CBE/RETRE B4R 1EFESI) ) and the
Assessment Method for Control of Energy Consumption ( {BEFE B 1B 0%
#%3##%) ). By adopting a multi-pronged approach underpinning “management +
technology + policy” as well as energy management and diversified cooperation,
the Group significantly reduced energy consumption throughout the year with
the utilization of algorithmic control system and energy-saving renovation
technologies for public area lighting, water pumps and atomized micro-
sprinkler systems for greening irrigation etc. and refined daily green operation
management.
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In the field of green circular economy, Kaisa Prosperity has collaborated with
“Yuehuanxin”, the first provincial-level “Two New” (R 3T) official brand in
China, focusing on full-chain recycling utilization to develop “trade-in” and
“recycling” initiatives, and provided convenient, fast, preferential and reliable
“online + offline” waste consumer product recycling solutions for residents
in multiple project communities, leading the green consumption trend and
promoting resource recycling.

Looking ahead, Kaisa Prosperity will closely follow the national policy guidelines,
and continue to deepen the sustainable development strategy. We will work
together with stakeholders, contribute to the coordinated development of the
economy, society and environment, and draw up a magnificent blueprint for
“Serving Beautiful China".

KWOK Ying Shing (Chairman)
April 2025
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ABOUT KAISA PROSPERITY GROUP/ABOUT THE
GROUP

About us

As of 31 December 2024, the Group’s property management services covered
77 cities in China, with a total of 728 managed properties and a total GFA under
management reaching 102.7 million sq.m.; our services covered 9 property
types, namely residential, commercial and office buildings, recreational stadium,
schools, high-end sales offices, hospitals, urban public buildings and culture
and tourism. It has approximately 12,000 employees and outsourced employees
serving approximately 510,000 property units across the nation. Our current
businesses involve property management services, value-added services to
property owners and value-added services.

Awards and Honors

As an enterprise with national level one qualification, Kaisa Prosperity has
passed the IS09001 quality management system certification. In 2024, Kaisa
Prosperity gained recognitions from authoritative organisations in the industry
and the market with its high-quality services and core value, reflecting the
confidence of various sectors in Kaisa Prosperity’s brand.
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B RA2024F 5 AR B ES R SRIE R BB Awards and Honors received by the Group in 2024 are listed as below:
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FF% ERHE #2158

No. Awarding Party Awards

1 BB IR B b 20249 PRAG (b K R IR

1 Guandian Index Academy 2024 Property Service Companies with Excellent Performance

2 BB IR B 7 20249 % PRFG (R BIFTRE h R

2 Guandian Index Academy 2024 Property Service Companies with Excellent Performance in
Terms of Innovative Capability

3 bR E(E BRI 7 2024 B EPRIS B R

3 Beijing China Index Academy 2024 Top 100 Property Service Companies in China

4 bR E(E BRI T 02U BEFEMERBALEE - ZTEEERE

4 Beijing China Index Academy 2024 China Leading Property Management Companies in terms of
Characteristic Services — Diversified Smart Businesses

5 wiimE - TR 2024 DR BRTS A sR b

5 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2024 China Top 100 Property Service Companies in Terms of Service
Capability

6 wifimPE - Y 20247 BI(F =¥ 2 AR5 1 TOP201 25

6 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2024 China Top 20 Residential Property Service Companies in Terms
of Service Capability

7 emin¥E - Y 2024 B EIRFFE ERT B

7 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2024 China Leading Property Service Companies in Terms of Service
Quality

8 wifimPE - 2024 BRI B E AKX

8 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2024 Leading Company of China in Property Service Satisfaction

9 wiimE - Y 2024 B SEESGRI B R R AKX DE

9 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2024 China Leading Property Service Companies in Terms of ESG
Sustainability

10 miimE - TR 0U4BERERYERSE I BARBE

10 CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2024 Top 100 Property Service Companies in the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area in Terms of Service Capability

i mminYE - P 2024 B 7R T E W ARTS H1TOP20

" CRIC Property Management and CPMRI 2024 China Top 20 Residential Property Service Companies in the

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area in Terms of Service
Capability
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IV. PRACTITIONER OF RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE/

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS AND
GOVERNANCE

Development Goals of Sustainable Governance/Board
Statement

As it forges ahead with steady business growth, the Group regards environmental
and social responsibilities as one of the core values in its business operations.
We are committed to becoming a sustainable property management enterprise,
with an aim to create long-term value for all stakeholders and maintain high-
quality services and operational standards, which will bring positive effect
to the communities we are serving. We actively control the impacts on the
environment and the communities caused during the process of operation,
improve our information transparency and perform our environmental and social
responsibilities, for the purpose of creating a green and sustainable future for
our next generation.

The Board of Kaisa Prosperity attaches great importance to ESG issues and bears
the ultimate responsibility for ESG management. In order to effectively promote
ESG work, the Board has continued to improve the ESG management structure,
set up ESG visions and objectives, and clarified the scope and process of ESG
waork, so as to further enhance the performance of sustainable development and
strive to achieve a win-win situation in coordination with the economy, society
and the environment.

Sustainable Governance Structure and Strategies

The Group has formed a top-down environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
structure in adhering to its sustainable development philosophy. A governance
structure for sustainable development is formed by the Board, ESG Working
Group, various functional departments and subsidiaries to facilitate the orderly
management and information disclosure of ESG for Kaisa Prosperity.
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e
The Board

ESGI /4
ESG Working Group

#l7E R ERESGHR A -
TEFEIRER

Formulates and reviews ESG strategies,
action plans and goals

BIEEE 25T HESGHRR -
TEEEIMN B R TIEMEE
Allocates and oversees works based on the ESG
strategies, action plans and goals formulated

EFER THR

ot SEERET BB R A ED
cuSifff and Adﬁijrjlisﬁﬁfigon Legal and Risk Procurement
Engineering and Human Management and Cost
Department Resources Department Department
Department

by the Board
ETEEE BRI
Audit and Financial
Supervision Management
Department Department

ESGL{E/MERE BEBMESCIIE - MEFSERESCE IR MESGIRE M TIEER
ESG Working Group implements specified ESG tasks and reports to the Board about ESG management
and the progress of tasks contained in the ESG Report
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o EE BHRLEREEEEER
Monitoring, reviewing, and ensuring implementation of strategic objectives
o BHFEESGRE - BMER - HRESLENER  REMEE
Reviewing annual ESG risk of key objectives and information disclosure
o EHESGRRRHE
Reviewing ESG-related risks and opportunities
o HESGMEVARM RERFAERAEML
Taking full responsibility for ESG governance strategy and reporting

s REHRH

The Board Decision-making and Approval

o BUMTEESCTEHERR
Establishment and improvement of ESG working system
o FHMAESGIARIRBR KIS
Assessing ESG-related risks and opportunities
o HIEESGEIEIH - EE - A - FEIHERER - REMR

Formulating ESG management approach, strategies, planning, annual work and targets and

carrying out evaluation regularly
EBMBIE o B B REE SR SNNTESGI LML
ESGIfE/hA Supervision and Coordinating, overall planning and supervising the ESG-related policies and work of various
ESG Working Group Formulation functional departments

o AEFFEBESCTIEERRFEESCHRE

o HSPESGHERHIE
Compliance with ESG-related policies and systems
o BEWE - R RERESGIERE R LB
Collecting, recording and reporting ESG related information and
data
o B MR AW RINITSIRESGHERBIIE
Organizing, promoting and implementing various ESG-related
4t N tasks
LA A Bifs o+ MESGIH/MEREERBWESGTIE
Implementation Reporting to the ESG Working Group and the Board on ESG work

o EFRIEH(FFE)
Customer and Engineering Department
(“Customer Department”)

o TRERATERE (TANER])
Administration and Human Resources Department
(“Human Resources Department”)

o AREIEE
Legal and Risk Management Department

o SREBRUKACER ([HRARER])
Procurement and Cost Department . . .
(“Procurement Department”) Functional departments and subordinate units

o EHEREN R
Audit and Supervision Department; and

o BiEEIRE ([81HE)

Financial Management Department

("Finance Department”) AR R ERRE

Sustainable Governance Structure of the Group

FEREEYNESZTQN (RIZEZEZEE - The Board of Kaisa Prosperity has also established three committees, namely the
THEEeRERLTEeS=—(AEMES Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.
T ZHEMALESRAHEE AEEES Each of these committees has its own duties and is responsible for overseeing
EEeRARNREBHNEEAE - BBIESIS specific aspects of the affairs of the Board and the Company with clearly defined
PIEIREM + BAEHIE - BEE - HRME#E management responsibilities of each department, collaborating with each other,
EEYMRBEENRE  BRRPHES supervising and promoting the standard operation and decision-making of the
SETHE  EESEEKES - Board, and assisting the Board in effectively discharging its responsibilities and

monitoring the operation of its various business activities.
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Board Engagement

The Board is committed to incorporating sustainability into its business
development. It recognizes its responsibility in supervising the Group's ESG
strategies, including:

e assessing and determining the risks associated, such as climate change
with and opportunities arising from the Group's ESG issues;

e  ensuring that an appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control system is in place;

e  formulating the Group's management approach, strategies, priority and
goals of ESG;

e regularly reviewing the Group’s ESG performance in relation to relevant
goals; and

e approving the information disclosed in the Group’s ESG Report.

The Board regularly evaluates, identifies and manages ESG risks, and explores
potential opportunities through compliance with regulatory requirements and
industry practices, bringing long-term value for the stakeholders. The Board also
reviews the implementation of all ESG goals on a regular basis and adjusts the
goals as appropriate and practicable, for the purpose of minimizing the impacts
on the environment and the society brought by its development.




ESGHIEHE 7 % R &K s

B FZBRRES - HHEZHEEX
PERFE M e BORBIE 812 - EEEIE
HAEBEERNESGEBNEIR T > I
ENEESCAEMEM T Bimst - §HEEMRE
P EREE B IR R 3615% - EABEZTRE
Frin BRI TECEESGERE - KE(RE
REER AR ERE o

T RHHESGERES - B IR REIRM BRI
MEEY  MRERTNATAS - BILA
HERBEVETEMER - MELEN -
RUERMAERRI TS BRE
ER - NEEET TESGRE - WAHAR
hFANBREBEERER -

ESGHBE B 12 R 15 R A2 B2 TR AT
EEEYESCHAR B RAERETRE
I EFEE RARE IR G RIRESCER T
ﬁ:TJ o

3R ANNUAL REPORT 2024 {£Jk3=1F @A PR A E KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 53

RIE - HERERTRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ESG Management Approach and Strategies

Each year, through of risk identification, stakeholder engagement, materiality
assessment and review of policy development, the Board approves a
management approach to ESG issues that are material to the Group and, based
on a regular review of ESG performance, aiming to achieve our strategic goals
and objectives, to continually improve ESG issues in our day-to-day operations
in line with the expectations of stakeholders, and to collectively promote the
sustainable development of the Group.

In order to assess the effectiveness and appropriateness of ESG strategies,
objectives and targets, if the progress is not in line with expectations, regular
appraisals of progress must be made to rectify the situation. In order to promote
long-term sustainable development and develop a practical blueprint, the Group
has determined its ESG strategies and expects to achieve its strategic objectives
within five years.

Review of progress on ESG-related targets and indicators
The Board reviews the progress of ESG-related targets and proposes a future
ESG direction for the Group based on the said progress.
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5 BEHEEE

AEERE  BRIEEFNDENEISE
HEMEBBRHERMERE HekEs
BAPTERROEE  MA2ELABR
PR BERERMK R o AEEEGRBEET
FrERES WS - TES  BRHE
EREMFAEIBRHMNE(BRERRR
KREE B BI %P HEBKit
@)% - BRI ZER  UE
BARE SR -

2024F - REBENEERFHE gk
BTEH BERELRBRMAHTENTE
FTEIEANTE -

HOEHE
Stakeholder
Group Communication Ways/Channels

BEAR RE

BREEEE o ARBERAE
o BHFH

o DFAEKE

Shareholders and e (General meetings
investors e Publication of annual report
e Public information disclosure

B * MHER

o BERBTELRER

The government e Filing of tax returns
e Reporting on policy implementation
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that understanding and responding to the concerns of
stakeholders will not only help assess the impact of our decisions on ESG
issues, but also shape and adjust our development and growth direction. The
Group actively communicates with key stakeholders (including shareholders
and investors, government, employees, customers, suppliers and communities)
through different communication channels, such as reports, workshops, opinion
surveys or other platforms, to understand their concerned matters in order to
achieve common progress and development.

In 2024, the main stakeholders of the Group, their interests and concerns,
communication channels and the action plans we have formulated are set out in

the table below.

HEERR

Expectations and demands

o RIEFERTE

o HIEAIHERRERR

o RAGEEAE

o RERREREEER

¢ Maintenance of continuous profitability

e Formulation of sustainable development
strategies

e Enhancement of transparency

e Protection of the interest of
shareholders and investars

o HRELARM

o REREMH

o EEEZFBE

o XFMHERE

e (Qperational compliance

e Payment of taxes in full according to
the laws

e Response to the government’s
policies

e Support to local development

BEEDE

Communication and Response

EHARRRE

THEHESS
BRREEREE
REETEEERRE

To convene regular general meetings

To convene regular board meetings

To convene meetings with investors

To make statutory disclosure in a timely
manner

BTEFERER
EEWBFRSRIFEE

BlER RS

R FOR R BEMTH

To comply with national laws and regulations
To maintain good relationship with local
governments

To provide job opportunities

To pay taxes on time and in full according to
the laws
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B ERR BESRRE HEsRR
Stakeholder
Group Communication Ways/Channels Expectations and demands
BT o ERFEMB o BEERE
o TiRf o EiKE
o BIfEM o HEER
o REINEPEHEM o fENL
Employees e (pinion surveys and questionnaires’ e Career development
e Workshops? e Training opportunities
e Staff mailboxes ¢ Remuneration and benefits
e Company's intranet e Corporate culture
2P o f{ERIEHE o RRFENEERER
o EFMEEHRD o REKE
s RPERgH o FP%2
o REEIMERTR o BALRE
o HEEH o THRSNERBES
Customers ¢ Individual meeting® e A comfortable and safe living

e Customer satisfaction survey*

e Customer communication meeting®

e Official WeChat account of the
Group

e Community activities

environment

e Timely services

e Safety of residents

e Protection of privacy

¢ Enhancement of property
management quality

BEBRET TORETERRAEMS  2HE8 THHL183A -
WEEMRN TR TIEY - 2EB THAHLUBA -

HE ERI &R P 4173825A ©

DEFEFEAENELH2183A o

SEEBERAEFLI60A o

Six opinion surveys were conducted during the Reporting Period involving nearly 1,893 employees.
65 workshops were organized during the Reporting Period involving nearly 475 employees.
Approximately 173,825 customers attended individual meetings.

Approximately 21,834 customers participated in satisfaction surveys

Approximately 685 customers participated in communication meetings.

BREDE

Communication and Response

BRMIRER  BERBRAUK
ZRRRNEIRE

BE TEAZRSFR  THEE
TATE - BEaTE
HEAEBRIINIERE
BTREREMNED

To organize trainings for professional
development, occupational skills and
safety procedures

To understand employees’ development
needs and evaluate them in an impartial
and objective way

To create a competitive working
environment

To organize care and welfare activities for
staff

IR s - R
EHETHERENRSE
HEPRFMEREMEE
DEREER PR

To systemize and standardize our services
To carry out regular satisfaction survey

To promptly respond to and handle
customer complaints

To effectively protect customer privacy
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BRERRE
Stakeholder
Group

HIER

Suppliers

it

The community

BELRRE

Communication Ways/Channels

o HERRRERNIE

o BREZR

. EEHB

e Review and evaluation of the
performance of suppliers

e Communication meeting

¢ Phone discussion

o REEEHRE
o B/ BEHEAREEY

e Media coverage
e Organization/participation in
charitable activities
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HEEFR

Expectations and demands

o EHRER

* ETEH

o RHERIE

¢ Promation of daily communication
e Performance of contract

e Openness and faimess

o RERHEE

o BRREEER

o ZEMEER

o BEHERR

o BINDEE

e Investment in charitable business

e (reen operations

e Participation in community
establishment

e Devotion to community charity events

e Care for vulnerable groups

BEEDE

Communication and Response

BURH  BHANARHE - Bt
ERRHETERIHS
HEERERRE(CERERE

To establish an open and transparent
tendering system to provide suppliers with
equal opportunity for competition

To communicate and optimise project
management on an ongoing and direct
basis

EHRERHERADED
FRAZER
[BEERRERR

To regularly organize charitable activities
in the community

To conduct charity events

To advacate energy saving and
conservation
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7~ BEEMY VI. MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT
AETARENIREEL - ZMCExTE To determine the key points to be disclosed in this report, we have conducted
BHEHIRE HeRELBEETE materiality assessment on ESG issues with key stakeholders. The steps and
BUFTE - U TAEEWTH 2R ER procedures of the materiality assessment are set out as below:
2

BEBENRE HEREARE

REERE GRIT - & REBREFR) OBWEEN - EIEFTO B R BB EES L 23EZEE - S
WRHEBRMNEELIIRFEME S ELBETE -

Identification of potential ESG issues

The Group identified 23 issues in accordance with the disclosure requirements set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Code” and based on the business characteristics and daily operation of Kaisa Prosperity. These issues are considered to have
impacts on the environment and the society during our operation.

FERFBEEBR
REERFBTREBNHXEE B/ EHEER - WERHAEBE204FFESGRAM CIEMIE -
Communication with key stakeholders

The Group communicated with key stakeholder groups through various channels and means to gather feedback and expectations on the
Group's ESG performance in 2024.

EEMFME

FEEERERBEFNEBRBEFIUENERETAREE - HEEARE  LeNEEBNEREENEEN
ROESD RIS (ORTHER  SREHER) -

Materiality Assessment

The Group’s management conducted internal meetings based on the opinions collected from the communications with stakeholders
to score the degree of relevance and materiality of every ESG issue from 0 to 5 marks (0 represents irrelevant; 5 represents most

important).
BB SRR T
BIMRIET D ER - R [HHOENZE N [HEBNZE | MEREEZEETHT - UMSHERGREE N ER -
Priority

Based on the evaluation result, we prioritized the issues in two dimensions, namely, “importance to stakeholders” and “importance to
our operation” and prepared the materiality matrix as below.
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AT EARE04FEETERHNED
WATSH KRR E R LR

The following is the materiality matrix prepared by the Group based on the
materiality assessment for 2024:

ERMEEIN

= . .
High Material Issue Analysis
A
hEEEHEE BEEERE
Medium-materiality issues Highly material issues
R @ FrREUARER:
A FEA RS _ Customer well-being, health and safety
Anti-corruption and money laundering R E B
A HAER I MR Servit;e at]ality and chmpIaint handling
Selection of suppliers and supply chain
risk management HEBREREE
Community communication and
integration
= @ LIHRmAE @ nxiEEZ: R
T i Employee recruitment and promotion Occupational health and safety Corporate governance
5 3% ) FERE @ EFFREMARRZZ BTEIEER
E # Equal opportunities Customer data privacy and security Employee training and development
S B @ ML EBEIREHST
o x Prevention of child labor and forced labor
2w W ==n%
285 Smart property
e = O ZERFEERTREED
o M Participation in charity and volunteering
2 activities
@
e FIRE
{Eﬁigaﬁé [ | Climate change
Low-materiality issues A
EIRES RARDRAR W e
| Management of risks associated with Ere\enﬂiﬁlce
environmental and natural resources . Eﬁf Em%na S
@ FiemumEE B EEnEE
Protection of intellectual property rights Waste m?na T
BRI ¢
. Greenhouse gas emissions . 7K )
Water consumption IRIE
N RIH
. BERBEIR . . Environmental
Exhaust emissions N
o HE
Social
A B8
Governance
>
{E HEEBRNEEY &
Low High

Materiality to Corporate Development
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Hr EEE FRER KENE
Ordering Scope Category Disclosing chapter
BEEERER 1 e EPRNERRZE FNE RHmE - BERE
High-materiality Social Customer well-being, health and safety [X.  DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY AND REJUVENATION
issues 2 e RBEERRRHER ENE RHmE - BERE
Social Service quality and complaint handling [X.  DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY AND REJUVENATION
3 e HRERERE F+—2 ERE mEdg
Social Community communication and integration XI. GATHERING SHIMMER, GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY
4 R (EEAR FTE RZLE SRTE
Governance  Corporate governance X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
5 R REASRREE FTE RZLE SRTE
Governance  Anti-corruption and money laundering X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
6 B HEEEERAEERRER FTE RZLE SRTE
Governance  Selection of suppliers and supply chain risk X INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
management REGULATIONS
7 e BTRIIEER FNE UANK - ERHLE
Social Employee training and development VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION
8 e BERREZS ENE UANE - ERE
Social Occupational health and safety VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION
9 e EREMLERZE FNE AmE  RIRSE
Social Customer data privacy and security [X. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY AND REJUVENATION
TEEEHE 10 RBE RIREL F+E EES  BITRR
Medium-materiality Environmental ~ Climate change VIl LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
issues PROTECTION
11 BE RERRX F+E EES  BITRR
Environmental  Green office VIl. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
12 BE ERER F+E RIEE - BITBRR
Environmental ~ Energy management VIl LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
13 BE BEDER F+E RIES - BITBRR
Environmental ~ Waste management VIl LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
14 RE K F+E RIES  BITBRR
Environmental ~ Water consumption VIl LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
15 g BIREREHR FNE DAXK - ERILR
Social Employee recruitment and promotion VIIl. PEQPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION
16 e TEKE ENE UASK - ERAR
Social Equal opportunities VIl PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION
17 e BitEEEIREHST FNE UAXE - ERLR
Social Prevention of child labor and forced labor VIl PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION
18 BE BEWE ENE RHmE - BERE
Environmental ~ Smart property [X. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY AND REJUVENATION
19 e BERNGEERTREY FT—8 ERHOL OEHE
Social Participation in charity and volunteering activities XI. GATHERING SHIMMER, GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY
REEZER 2 R% ERRGERARERRR E+E ([EiEZ  BITRRE
Low-materiality Environmental ~ Management of risks associated with environmental VIl LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
issues and natural resources PROTECTION
21 e RECEHER FTE RZLE SRTE
Social Protection of intellectual property rights X. INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
2 B OREABHR FtE BREES  BITRR
Environmental ~ Greenhouse gas emissions VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
3 BE O BERER FtE BEREES  BITRR
Environmental ~ Exhaust emissions VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION
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REBEZHMEMEER - AEPEILE
fEEzE  RELGERLRFEE  HERE
BERE  AEER  RES/ERAE -
HEmEE LN ERRARERE - BT
HR - BERFEZE  FPEMLE
RZ2HRRFNERAEE R BTN
#l o AREAERBRRMEEETNFE
B TR EREEZ T - IRE
BRENE EBAIHENEBER

BHES - BITRER

Rix& 1
EREXFBRTN2HRECABRE - &
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VIl

According to the results of materiality assessment, well-being, health and safety
of customers, service quality and complaint handling, community communication
and integration, corporate governance, anti-corruption and money laundering,
selection of suppliers and supply chain risk management, employee training
and development, occupational health and safety, and customer data privacy
and security are regarded as the most concerned issues of stakeholders and
the Group. While taking into account environmental and social responsibilities,
the Group will pay more attention to the above areas, and strive to achieve
continuous improvement and sustainable business development.

LOW-CARBON OPERATION AND
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Climate Change

Kaisa Prosperity has been aware of the worsening consequences of global
warming, which poses a huge and profound impact and challenge to both
mankind and the global environment. The phenomenon arising from climate
change such as extreme weather, rising temperatures and ocean warming are
also threatening the stability of the Group’s business and operations. In view of
this, we have responded how we addressed the climate change with reference
to the recommendations from the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD).
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=p=) Governance
BIERNEECDFHANAFERREIEZRL T The duties and responsibilities of all units are set out as below in accordance
KOS BEMHBEMET with the sustainable development framework of the Group

AE BE

Personnel Duties

5= . %HETESG?‘?% KEE - BAKER

o BEFHRIETEESCHERIE RIS

. Ei9t¢ IRTE Bt AT B IAESG B RHBATIEN © &

o RBEEEEARNMERCRIREECEENAIITIE - LEHRKRZ (LD
118 o

Directors e formulates the ESG approach, strategies, priority and goals;

e assesses and determines the risks associated with and opportunities arising from the
ESG issues;

e reviews the implementation of all ESG goals on an annual basis at least; and

e s now studying the feasibility of and drafting the “Climate Change Policy” ( {515 &
{EEREE ) ) to identify actions to respond to the climate change.

ESGL{E/ME o RIBESCRMLH B TIEER
o EEWREZREI ETEEREECIE: R
s MEBEEFEMESGHRETE-
ESG Working Group e organises the works related to ESG strategies;
e oversees the works on sustainable development, including works related to the climate
change; and
e coordinates the annual ESG Report.

FREEHPIRTBAR(ZERPEL o MITEFSHMESORE :
2EP - TTHRRANERES ERE o FRESCIIE  SREWENRERRERTSEMIE

2Ef - EREERKARED - BAERS o MAafEEEREFSERESCLIEMBEREHER &

K B Hs i TR ED AR K ) o HIETRITAIFHE 2 RABRA B IR BUR R B8R IE -

Various functional departments and e executes the Board's resolution on ESG issues;

subsidiaries comprising the Customerand e  performs ESG works, including collection and management of KPIs related to the
Engineering Department, Administration environment and society;

and Human Resources Department, Legal e reports to the senior management and the Board on ESG works and compilation of
and Risk Management Department, report; and

Procurement and Cost Department, Audit e formulates and executes management policies and specific measures on sustainable
and Supervision Department and Financial development.

Management Department
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B EE
BMEHR T —RIRIRB(CHERBZ
BREAARNRERIELETEE S

Risk Management
We have identified a series of risks associated with climate change caused to
our operations and the action plans in addressing these risks:

[ B BrETE
Risk Potential impact
EREE

Substantial Risks

SHEBRRCEAERR - K o [RKFKKATREBMBEMSERIE  FEERBIBRENAIEMN &

K NEHEBRERARIEEE REREEINE R R - MBI A= RERIE - ABERPETT
%) WASR D ©

Acute substantial risks (weather-related e  Precipitation and floods may cause damage to the structure of the building and increase

events such as storms, floods, fires, or
heat waves)

grERERRCRERPRRE

Tt KRRED - EMEERIRE
VA Re -3t Je -5 2E ML)
Chronic substantial risks (long-term
climate changes, such as temperature
changes, rising sea levels, reduced
water sources, loss of biodiversity and

operation and maintenance costs; and
Typhoons may increase the risk of power shortages and the possibility of temporary office
closures, resulting in business interruptions and reduced revenue.

TR EFRAIBESI T ARE - BINTHERRRESKA &
BFE EFSIBUKR - WEMER R RIEERBIE - BN ERRREN
R -

Rising temperatures may cause heatstroke increasing the risk of industrial injuries and
costs of cooling; and

Rising sea levels may cause flooding, causing damage to infrastructure and facilities, and
increasing the cost of repairing damaged facilities.

changes in land and soil productivity)

Transition Risks

Es L o BURMMBEMEEMARECNBARMARERNZOESER - FRMIARBE
ERAIBARRSET AR - SR EEBER -

Technology risks e Energy-efficient technology is the key to mitigating climate change and the core element
of future development. If we fail to master renewable energy or energy conservation and
emissions reduction technologies, business development will be affected.

M5 E R o MHPMEXZFHHALAFELRRESBMAZENDE - BERMKREIEA]
i%%’é@%H%Eﬂ)\%i‘%%ﬂ*ﬁ&&i&ﬁﬁ?%ﬂ%@{tﬂ’ﬂF'cﬁ% F BRAIRER A FE
;__' o

Market risks e Tenants and property owners are increasingly turning to businesses that integrate
sustainable development philosophy into their operations. If we fail to integrate
sustainable development strategies into our business and effectively deal with climate
change issues, we may lose our competitive advantage.

BEER o EEEMRBHRERENBIZURE  ArBARSIMEEXEE BT -
EBRERKE -

Reputation risks e | the operation process has a harmful effect on the climate, it may be difficult to attract
and retain property owners, employees, business partners and investments.

EERER o RIREMLEBBRMENERBBEHE - WRBNGREFREKLER

VRAFAFHERREETE R ARG EELRINNSRKANTE
REEHEE -

Legal risks e Policies and regulations related to climate change are becoming stricter. If the existing
compliance procedures and business operations may not fully comply with the new legal
and regulatory requirements, there may incur additional compliance costs and affect the
reputation of the Group.
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In order to alleviate the substantial risks caused by climate change, Kaisa
Prosperity has installed flood gates for properties with higher flood risk, and
regularly inspects manholes, drains, doors and windows, etc. to ensure that
manholes and drainages remain unblocked to reduce the impact of floods or
rising sea levels. Extreme weather may also cause power shortages. In view of
this, we conduct regular inspections and test the backup power generators to
reduce the risk of business interruption. Regarding to climate-related transition
risks, Kaisa Prosperity understands that mastering renewable energy or energy
conservation and emissions reduction technologies will be essential the future
development of the business. Therefore, we actively transit into a low-carbon
development business model to meet the expectations of tenants and customers
and increase their loyalty. We also pay close attention to the update of climate
change regulatory laws and actively monitor our compliance procedures to avoid
violating relevant regulations or industry standards that may affect our reputation
and incur additional litigation costs.

Green office

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (P ZE A R KRR (R &
&) ), Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste ( /= A R A0 E B EREZE Y5
AIRIFLHIAIA) ), Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC
(R EE AR MBI KES5B5765%) ), “Thirteenth Five-Year” Work Plan
for Greenhouse Gas Emission Control ({ [+ =F | {2 HA = REEHE M TIE
J722) ) and Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste (P A R L MBEE E EEY)
TEAIRBEBI AL ) ), which clearly state the requirements in relation to the
emission of pollutants and energy-saving management for enterprises. In view
of this, we formulated and strictly implemented the internal policies such as the
Kaisa Prosperity Group Office Supplies Management System ( {(fEJKZE =17 &
B A A REEH|E) ) and the Notice on Cost Reduction and Strict Economy
of the Whole Group ((BARN 2 EBETKMER - BITERLIEBAN ), which
regulate emissions and discharge of exhaust gas, waste water, waste solids
and greenhouse gas generated in office areas. In addition, we provided clear
guidelines on the daily environmental protection for our staff, starting with the
details such as management of use of electricity, water, paper, office supplies,
and business vehicles and are devoted to promoting various emission reduction
and energy saving projects in the course of daily operation. Our concrete green
office measures include:

e Encouraging our staff to implement energy and water saving in the course
of daily operation;

e Encouraging the setting of air-conditioning temperature to 24-26 degree
Celsius;




64

RIE - HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

o EEERARK  ROEATLEN
RIS

e EBEREBTTMEFHERMTER
- EMEREHRAZ=AERERE

o  EMERXE - FTEMEH - FTEH
EMommlRETUERFTNER
A

s RARRHERE ZECAEAKEERE
TEMRA R A = F 4

o  TEHIREMEMEMIREE - KEXW
SHATLE BAEE R AR E R A]
T - R

o TEMAEHEARRHEEYDBEINER
e HEBT2MERENE A
e E e RS E MR REY
MRESE -

BERERE

BN EEERREETEREAE T RRE
MO ABEMEANHRAR - RIEAH
R SORFAH  BEEREETERE
SNBE S - EHE - EREFKRAR - BRD
BT E B8 TFEAENT
FERRNEFCEEFURDEE - 11
AN ERREFE ARG RE i S AR
EHQETA  WEBRRERITHRE
TRREEERE A bht o BRIt 24N - F
MM MEERBEEIETIRMBEIFERE - 1T
ERIGBF(RE AR K MBI LB REDE
FIRRCEREE T EBRERNITERSE
ZPOEYRINERST A o RIREHRN - A%
B8R AERE S #9/5126,537 THE T R o

BT EMESRELEMEITELIRNER
ME - REBBEHHATERERE |

o SERMMITENRES BE/IARB
FERBEB ML EIRROREAEM

EIEFEEFEBARA T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED  4F3R ANNUAL REPORT 2024

e Encouraging the adoption of natural light and reduction of the use of
unnecessary lighting systems;

e Requesting our staff to switch off the air-conditioners and computers when
they leave office, so as to reduce daily electricity consumptions in the
office;

e  Reiterating that the old-for-new principle should be pursued when
requisitioning the office supplies such as stationeries, computer
accessories and computers;

e Reducing paper consumption by using black-and-white and double-side
printing modes and using recycled paper;

e (Checking the usage of the supplies regularly and considering the feasibility
of maintenance and internal resources deployment before purchase or
replacement; and

e Providing waste sorting and recycling facilities within the office area to
engage our staff to sort wastes at source, thereby raising the collection
volume for recyclable materials and reducing the disposal volume of
wastes.

Energy management

Our direct energy consumptions are mainly from the natural gas, liquefied
petroleum gas, diesel and gasoline used in the fixed source equipment and
business vehicles; indirect energy consumptions are mainly from electricity,
vapour, town gas and natural gas purchased externally. In hopes of reducing the
impact of carbon footprints, we encourage our staff to use video conferencing
or teleconferencing systems to reduce the needs for business trips. Where
business trips are necessary, staff should take mass transit transportation such as
airport coaches or railways as much as possible so as to avoid the considerable
amount of carbon dioxide emitted during a flight on a plane or a journey on a
taxi. Apart from this, our property management and operation highly depends on
energy consumption and strictly complies with the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Energy Conservation ( (P 2E A R R AIEEIRE) ) and
the Assessment Method for Implementation of Energy Consumption of Kaisa
Prosperity Group (({EREF T EBRERNITBEREZIE) ) as its
internal code. During the Reporting Period, the total energy consumption of the
Group amounted to approximately 126,537,000 kWh.

To effectively control the consumption of electricity and increase energy
efficiency, the Group has implemented the following energy-saving measures:

e  continued to introduce more environmentally friendly equipment and
components for new and existing projects with reference to the latest
industry guidelines;
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e explored the use of smart meter to enhance management of energy
performance;

e used alternatives with high energy efficiency to replace the existing
lighting and power equipment upon the end of their life cycle;

e adopted reasonable operating and control method and advanced energy-
saving equipment;

e adopted a static var generator to enhance the power factor of power
supply and distribution system and electrical equipment;

e conducted an analysis on the monthly energy consumption report and
report on any abnormal energy consumption in a timely manner;

e imposed punishment on units which are found to have excessive energy
consumption and offered incentives to units which perform a good energy
consumption control on a quarterly basis; and

e promptly reported, prevented and rectified any energy wastage.

To further realise reduction of energy consumption, the Group, for the first
time, set out in the 2020 ESG report the goals of reducing the total energy
consumption by 7.25% within 5 years. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the
Group’s total energy consumption per unit area reduced by 7.25% in 2024 as
compared with 2023.

Waste management

We proactively responded the local governments’ policies by implementing
waste recycle and classification at all projects under our management and
strictly complied with the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste” in handling
wastes during our operations. The Group also set up the Standardized Guidelines
for Classification of Garbage Chamber (D3B3 EIZ (L I53]))
internally to teach its tenants how to sort and implement 3R Principles, i.e.
“Reduce”, “Reuse” and “Recycle” of wastes.

For hazardous wastes, we implement unified collection and designated storage,
and hand them over to a third-party service provider with relevant qualifications
for processing to control or eliminate hazards. We implemented the following
measures in the projects under management:

e All hazardous wastes are handled by a nationally recognized and qualified
waste treatment company;
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e All hazardous waste management strictly abides by the principle of
“classified recycling, centralized storage, and unified treatment”;

e Separate and recycle wastes according to the type of waste, and label the
type and name of the waste outside the container that contains the waste;
and

e Various kinds of hazardous waste are kept in designated places.

For non-hazardous wastes, we sort and recycle the recyclables to improve the
utilization rate of resources to reduce pollution. We will also set up recycling
bins in property communities to encourage property owners to actively
participate in garbage sorting and recycling. During the Reporting Period, the
Group generated 1.23 tons of hazardous waste, including ink cartridges, printer
cartridges, lamps, light bulbs and batteries; the total amount of non-hazardous
waste was approximately 1.201 tons, which were mainly office waste.

To effectively reduce the emissions of hazardous wastes and non-hazardous
wastes, the Group, for the first time, set out in its ESG report for the year of
2020 the goals of reducing the emissions of hazardous wastes and nonhazardous
wastes by 10% within 5 years and striving to achieve the goals of “zero
accidents” and “zero injuries”. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the total
emission intensity of hazardous wastes by the Group reduced by approximately
3.2% as compared with that in 2023, respectively and there are no incidents or
casualties related to waste handling.

Water Consumption

As a property management service enterprise, owing to rather huge water
consumption by the Group as a result of the services such as greening and public
swimming pool maintenance, the Group adopts water-saving irrigation such as
sprinkling irrigation and micro-irrigation to carry out green irrigation and reduce
water consumption in gardening. We also test if there is any leakage in water
pipes on a regular basis and carry out daily maintenance for water equipment,
to prevent waste of the water resource from evaporation, emission, dripping
or leakage. During the Reporting Period, the water consumption of the Group
amounted to approximately 832,539 m3. In terms of discharge of sewage, the
Group only conducts sewage treatment at the hospitals under its management.
It has formulated and strictly implemented the Operation Guidelines for Sewage
Treatment ( 57K B IR E455]) ) and complied with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ( {FF ZE A R 3
FBIK 52587 ) and standards for discharge of sewage at the place of
operations to ensure meeting sewage standard.
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Since most of the districts where our businesses are located are facing water
shortage issue, the Group has adopted the following water-saving measures to
further monitor the use of water:

e installing flow restrictors, gas filling devices or other water-saving
equipment at the tap to reduce water consumption;

e exploring the use of smart water meter to monitor the use of water;

e  optimizing the technologies of existing methods of greening maintenance
and using sprinkler irrigation to reduce water consumption;

e promoting water conservation to the property owners of our projects under
management;

e formulating monthly water consumption reports for conducting analysis
and reporting on any abnormal water consumption in a timely manner; and

e promptly reporting, preventing and rectifying any water wastage.

In 2021, we have set out a KPI of water efficiency which targets to reduce total
water consumption by 10% within 5 years. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
total water consumption by the Group reduced by 5%.

We do not encounter any problems in water consumption in our daily operations,
as the water we use is provided by local water supply companies.

Management of risks associated with environmental and
natural resources

Although the Group’s business does not exert a profound impact on the natural
environmental and natural resources, we understand that natural resources are
scarce. Hence, our concerns on emission and consumption reduction are not
limited to office premises only, but also be extended to cover the environmental
protection activities in the community in the course of business. We issued
the “Notice on Continue Implementation of Measures for Cost Reduction and
Efficiency Enhancement and Strict Saving” ((BERIFEE & [BR ALK - B
1TEIHY ] $5 e 03B AN) ) and encourage property owners to take part in such
activities, including:

e Gradually replacing with energy-saving water pumps and lighting systems
to reduce waste of energy;
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e Transplanting the green plants discarded by the property owners in the
green belt of the community to reduce carbon emissions;

e Organizing waste-sorting activities in the community to exchange used
items (e.g. old batteries, discarded plastic bottles, and discarded clothes,
etc.) for green potted plants and environmentally-friendly products; and

e (Collecting used products for recycle and delivering them to relevant
local professional organizations to give away to those in need to support
environmental protection and for charitable purposes.

Greenhouse gas emissions

During the Reporting Period, the total greenhouse gas emission of the Group
amounted to 98,284.56 tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO,g), of which direct
greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1¢) amounted to approximately 572.19 tons
of CO,e with the main sources from boilers at the central air-conditioning and
heating system, emergency electric generators and business vehicles; indirect
greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 27) amounted to approximately 96,860.36
tons of CO,e with the main sources from electricity purchased externally; other
greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 3°) amounted to approximately 852.01 tons
of CO,e with the main sources from the use of electricity by the government
departments during the treatment process of drinking water and sewage. To
reduce the impact from greenhouse gas emissions over the environment, we
encourage our staff to reduce the use of small passenger vehicle and to adopt
video conference meeting instead. In addition, we planted a total of 3,400 native
trees and shrubs in the surrounding areas of its offices, successfully reducing
approximately 78.20 tons of carbon dioxide and carbon footprint generated
during the operation of business.

To further reduce the emission of greenhouse gas, the Group has for the first
time set an emission reduction target in the ESG report this year, which sets out
the target to reduce total carbon dioxide emissions per unit area by 30% within 5
years. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has reduced its total CO,
emissions per unit area by approximately 7.77% in 2024 compared to 2023.

HERREAAEEEAIIEHNEBEERELNREREBIN

HE_HEREARBEANRERE(BRRNIESN)ES -

HEE - RR N ARSI B AR IR ERAEHN

HEZIRRENEBEUINEER A B EER ER BB - 85 L X TR
Scope 1 covers the greenhouse gas emissions directly generated from the businesses owned or controlled by the Group.
Scope 2 covers the “indirect energy” greenhouse gas emissions generated from the electricity, heat energy, refrigeration and vapour consumed internally (purchased or

obtained) by the Group.
Scope 3 covers all other indirect greenhouse gas emissions generated outside the area of the Group, including emissions from the upstream and downstream.
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Exhaust emissions

The main sources of our air emissions are the boilers at the community
swimming pools and central air-conditioning and heating system, gas stoves in
staff canteen, emergency electric generators, weeding machines, chain saws
and leaf blowers used in garden greening, as well as fuel oil consumption
of business vehicles. During the Reporting Period, the emissions of nitrogen
oxides, sulphur oxides, inhalable particulates, fine particulates, carbon monoxide
and hydrocarbon generated by the Group amounted to approximately 890.96
kilograms, 345.03 kilograms, 63.09 kilograms, 65.18 kilograms, 1,571.65
kilograms and 205.87 kilograms. Qur air emissions decreased by 7.25%
compared with last year.

PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-WIN SITUATION
Employment

The Group's core talent concept is “Having both ability and political integrity
and taking the integrity as the first”. We believe that employees are one of the
important assets for the enterprises’ sustainable development. Kaisa Prosperity
has strictly complied with the laws and regulations related to staff employment
such as Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {FPZE A R B 44 5)
%) ), Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (R AR A
E &8 A [F))%) ), Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (/R
# N R LB & 1R2%) ) and Employment Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({FZE AR EFMB G R # %) ), which safeguard
the lawful interests of our staff in terms of working hours system, leave and
holiday system, welfare and remuneration management, dismissal of staff,
signing of labour contracts, etc. To achieve effective linking up and monitoring
of such requirements, we formulated internal policies such as Kaisa Prosperity
Recruitment Management Policy ( (fEJKEIFEE B HRISEEHIE) ), Kaisa
Prosperity Staff Remuneration Management Policy ( {({EJKEEFEEE T
FENEIRHIFE) ), Kaisa Prosperity Welfare Management Policy ( {fEJK 23
1FEERAEIEHIE) ), Kaisa Prosperity Social Insurance Implementation
Rules (CEREETEEL SRR EMAAI) ), Kaisa Prosperity
Employers’ Liability Service Agreement ({fEJKE E LT EE B E FE TR
4153 ), Staff Wage Level Standard Table ({ & T T &R BIIZ L fe g
fZZR) ), Kaisa Prosperity Regulations on Managing Employees’ Overtime Work
Policy ((fEJRHERFEBE B TMPTEERE) ), and Kaisa Prosperity
Performance Assessment Management Policy ( {fEJK % 47 &= BE E
EIRHIE)), etc. Also, the administration and human resources department
conducts review and revision to the systems on an annual basis, striving for
offering a reasonable, fair and discrimination-free working atmosphere for our
staff, so that the staff can work energetically under an environment with sound
corporate culture to realize mutual growth and development between the staff
and the Group.
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HZE2024%128318 - HME£AE10,006% E As at 31 December 2024, we had 10,005 employees of which approximately 60%
I HpBEMETEZEE T RIL were male and 40% were female.
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Occupational health and safety

As a responsible employer, for sure the Group has strictly complied with the
laws and regulations in relation to labor safety and hygiene such as Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FREI AR EMB L 2 EEE)),
Fire Prevention Law of PRC (/P ZE A RFEFIBIEF %) ), Industrial Injury
Insurance Regulations of the People’s Republic of China ( (AP ZE A R FEFNE
TSRk &MY ) and Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases ( {7 & A R FNEIBEZE BB /A E)D ).
The Group attaches great importance to the safety of our employees. We are
committed to providing a comfortable and safe working environment for our staff
and protecting our staff against occupational hazards. The measures include but
are not limited to the following:

We provide guidelines to our employees in relation to occupational health, safety
training and epidemic prevention in Kaisa Prosperity Training Management
Policy ( (EJRZEZ T EEIEFIEIRHIE) ). As for the newly recruited staff,
the Group will provide training courses on occupational safety and position-
related professionalism, the contents of which include the operation procedures
of positions and work instruction manuals. As for the job-transfer staff, we also
provide job-transfer trainings. Apart from passing on the new skills, the trainings
also include position-related knowledge and skills, operation procedures, safety
knowledge and procedures, etc. All of the above trainings are conducive to
raising the safety awareness of staff and minimizing the occurrence of accidents
as a result of human error.
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The Group has established Kaisa Prosperity Measures for the Management
of Emergencies ((fEKEETEBREEHEEDIE) ) to provide
guidelines for the information management in emergencies and the management
pracesses of reporting, handling, judging and assessing all kinds of emergencies.
In case of emergencies, we require our staff to regard their personal safety as
the overriding principle. Upon the occurrence of emergencies, the departments
of safety monitoring function, quality assurance and engineering management
function, administration and manpower function, etc. of each branch company
are required to formulate corresponding rectifying measures and report to the
Group’s headquarters for filling. Meanwhile, we have purchased social insurance
and commercial insurance for our staff according to law to ensure that our staff
are under the protection of work-related injury insurance. In 2024, the number
and rate of staff involved in work-related fatalities was 1 and 0.01%, while the
number of working days lost due to work-related injury amounted to 3,031 days.

During the year, the Group provided various safety training sessions, with
employee participations reaching 34,891 person-times and the total safety
training hours amounting to 105,119 hours.
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Employee Training and Development

Kaisa Prosperity is devoted to improving its staff training system and
standardizing its company staff training and coaching qualification management
in accordance with the Kaisa Prosperity Training Management Policy ( {{EJK %
EFEBEEFIEESB|Z) ). We unleash our staff potentials and assist our
staff in upgrading their skills and developing their career. We deeply understand
that outstanding talents and teams are one of the keys for our continuous
development. Hence, the administration and human resources department carries
out training demand investigations based on the Group’s development, drawing
up the Annual Training Plan (S Z 15 3)IETE]) ) to put forward a series of on-
the-job training for our staff, including:

e New staff training is organized to make new staff fully understand the
Company's history, ideas and code of conduct as well as to get accustomed
to their job role as soon as possible;

e Job-transfer training is to make transferred staff fulfil the requirements
of the new job position as soon as possible;

e Promotion training is the training conducted with an aim to making the
staff fulfil the job requirements of the position of a higher level;

e On-the-job training is classified into three parts based on the types of
training including regular training, outbound training and ad hoc training,
covering professional knowledge, professional skills, management,
computer, and literacy improvement, etc. to increase the capability of our
staff to outperform their job;

e New manager training is the training for the general middle-level
managerial staff with an aim to enhancing the managerial skills and level
of middle-level managerial teams; and

e  Senior manager training is the training for senior middle-level
managerial with an aim to enhancing the comprehensive capabilities of
middle-level managerial teams for the selection of elite.
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RPFEEINA D BATSEE Our major training is divided into the following categories:

FEREXHFETEIRFERD

Employee training system contents of Kaisa Prosperity

/BRR N\
@ General
XALE| m o WIEEARER AHIE

Cultural Basic knowledge training on property

o BT ABEI laws and regulations
Induction training for new ’ W72 B
employees \ . I B
18 Occupational safety and ethics training

s Leien ..ooo.,. . BEEEE

Corporate culture training System responsibility training
o FRZARE
k integrity and self-discipline training }
Emplnyees
P \

RHESEIEE Proiessmnal
B Continuous training programs B RGER R E

Star-rated lecturer certification training
Management . |
o MERAMAHEEER ZEERBHIIRE

Safety management cadre training camp
Project management throughout o SLESEHEY|GR
Quality pilot lralmn% camp
.J' :

the property life cycle

o ERRmIRGERRRSE o RIFERERA
Efficient team building training Complalnt handllng case analysis
o BBERWRAIRA 0 gug kaﬂld ity '
il asic knowledge of quality managemen:
Improvement of basic skills of managers . &]uﬂﬁi%%ﬂgﬁia q” g
PLESON gz Manual trainin for various posts
Four-level talent training o NIERIGEEEE

o EEIHKE Professional training on internal
Executive training camp control lines
o iSEDIARE
Leader training camp
o RBEIEREER
Project manager certification training camp
o NKPHlSRE S

NKP training camp etc

H R - ANEENAS TIRIEHABUFE Meanwhile, the Group also provides our staff with external trainings organized
MW R TEHERETRIZ  BENE and approved by governmental units such as qualification accreditation courses,
FEE R B AN o TR R - BEMED courses on special professional knowledge or skills necessary for the job,
KERFEES EEIMNTESRER - all kinds of certification examinations necessary for the job, exchange visits
NINT EEIREEIE| - DEKIBASE to industry peers, domestic and overseas business administration refresher
f%iﬁéﬂl%&l\ﬁﬁiﬁ%ll RSB B THE trainings, corporate managerial staff refresher training, etc. We also encourage

S YHETIRTKIZIINGREEEE our staff to engage in continuous learning by reimbursing them the relevant fees
M ERANEIEn ERISEHEER - by presenting their graduation certificates and the valid receipts for training fees

upon completion of the training.
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Furthermore, in order to build an excellent and highly efficient team of internal
lecturers possessing comprehensive knowledge, the “Management Measures for
Internal Lecturers for Kaisa Prosperity” ( ({EJK 2 X475 B A ZBERN S IRt
%) ) requires our internal lecturers to pass all assessments such as reviewing
syllabus and organizing trial lectures before becoming a recognized internal
lecturer of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of trained employees of the Group
was 100% and the average training hours completed by each employee was 30.8
hours.

Example

Enhancing first-aid capability to safeguard residential communities

On 3 August 2024, Kaisa Prosperity collaborated with the Shenzhen Emergency
Medical Center to conduct a primary first-aider certification training. The Group's
management, customer and experience department, as well as over 70 project
managers from Shenzhen region participated in the training and certification
program. Instructors from the Shenzhen Emergency Medical Center delivered the
training through a combination of theoretical knowledge and hands-on practice,
covering on-site emergency response, cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR),
foreign object airway obstruction, trauma first aid, emergency management of
sudden illnesses, and the operation of AED (Automated External Defibrillator)
devices. All trainees successfully passed the assessment and received primary
first-aider certificates.
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Employee recruitment and promotion

Recruitment and Promotion

Kaisa Prosperity strictly implements the internal requirements under the “Kaisa
Prosperity Recruitment Management Policy” ((fEJKE =T EEBIEE
I HIZ) ) with regard to recruitment and selection of personnel so as to
ensure the overall human resources level. In the course of recruitment, we first
conduct observation and judgement as for whether the candidate possesses
integrity and credibility as well as self-disciplinary cooperative spirit, whereas
failing candidates will not be hired. The Group also adheres to the employment
principle of hiring by merit rather than nepotism, meaning that staff members
with relative relationships shall not work in the same company, or work in the
position under the same business system with superordinate-and-subordinate
working relations, or hold positions with business association. Meanwhile, we
also attempt to introduce a methodology for information technology evaluation
into recruitment so as to avoid subjectivity and randomness as much as possible
and at the same time to avoid taking the personalities and ethical standards of
the recruiting personnel as the judgement of the merits of candidates.

We uphold the principle of openness and fairness to provide promotion
opportunities for our staff. “Kaisa Prosperity Performance Assessment
Management Policy” ((fEJKEETEBBEREZEIRFIE) ) sets out
detailed regulations on staff promotion and awards, which include those to
decide whether the staff get promoted based on the performance assessment
for our staff on a regular basis. Through communication and giving feedback on
the working performance of our staff, we believe we can continuously raise the
performance level of our staff, thereby boosting the favorable development for
the organization and raising the operational results and management level to
benefit both the Group and its staff.
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Remuneration and Welfare

To give full play to the incentive effect of remuneration, we formulate the “Kaisa
Prosperity Staff Remuneration Management Policy” ({fEJKEXTFEEE
THENEIEHIE) ) to standardize the management of staff remuneration.
The standard wage for our staff is distributed based on the corresponding wage
standard for the respective position levels and ranks set out in the Staff Wage
Level Standard Table (& T T & & RIRAEL FERIR ) ). Besides, we
conduct performance assessment for our staff on a regular basis based on Kaisa
Prosperity Performance Assessment Management Policy ( (fEJK X 1FEE
EWEZEIRHIE) ) and adjust the salary package for our staff based on the
assessment results. We also take this opportunity to listen to staff's opinion and
are committed to helping our staff to integrate into our corporate culture.

We formulated “Kaisa Prosperity Welfare Management Policy” ( {fEJK %%
FEBEEFEIEH|E) ) to provide multi-aspect preferential treatment and
launched a variety of cultural construction activities to let our staff feel the care
from the Group and create a pleasant working atmosphere. We:

e organized a variety of cultural and sports activities to enhance staff
communication and strengthen their physical health. The form of activities
includes staff birthday parties, football, basketball, badminton, table
tennis, hiking, swimming, sports competitions, chess, variety shows and
social welfare, etc.;

e organized company anniversary, Spring Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival
celebration gatherings for our staff;

e offered festival bonus to each staff during Spring Festival, Dragon Boat
Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival each year;

e procured additional commercial insurance for our staff each year to protect
the interest of our employees;

e  offered various kinds of allowances including meal allowance, on-duty
meal allowance, overtime working and transportation allowance etc;

e provided rent-free dormitory for a portion of staff with exemption of
management fees and sharing the water and electricity costs;

e  reimbursed a portion of transportation fees to the fresh graduates who
are recruited through campus recruitment when they report duty to the
Company; and

e provided employees with the cooling allowance during the summer as
required by national laws and regulation.
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Working Hours and Holidays

The Group pays overtime working wages based on the overtime working
approved under the national requirements and “Kaisa Prosperity Regulations on
Managing Employees’ Overtime Work Policy” ({fEJKZELFEE S T ik
EIEFTED ). In addition, Kaisa Prosperity Welfare Management Policy ( {fF
JkEEIFEBEFEIRHIEZ) ) stipulated that employees are entitled to
all kinds of paid leaves such as statutory festivals and holidays, marriage leave,
funeral leave, maternity leave, nursing leave and annual leave. It will also adjust
the number of annual leaves based on the seniority of staff.

Equal Opportunities

Kaisa Prosperity offers equal opportunities and strives for implementing the
ideas of diversity and anti-discrimination. According to the “Kaisa Prosperity
Recruitment Management Policy” ((fEJREEFEBBIEEZRFIED ), in
the course of recruiting talents, we avoid taking the personal attributes such as
gender, age, marital status, physical fitness and so on as the necessary factors,
so0 as to ensure that our employees are treated equally in the recruitment and
promotion procedures, dismissal procedures, training, working performance
assessment, remuneration and welfare, working hours, leaves and other holidays
(including marriage leave, compassionate leave and matemity leave), etc.

No cases of discrimination were recorded during the Reporting Period ended 31
December 2024.
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Prevention of child labor and forced labor

In strict compliance with laws and regulations such as “Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China” ( {HP2E A R AL FBI& B)%) ), “Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China” ({FFZE A R EFIE L HARE))
and “Prohibition of Child Labor Provisions” ({ZELEfEAZETHRE) ), the
Group safeguarded staff's legal rights and prohibited the recruitment of those
who aged under the age of 16. To this end, we established “Kaisa Prosperity
Recruitment Management Policy” (({EJKEEXITF S EREEEHIE) ) to
respect legal rights of staff. We value privacy of staff such that we avoid raising
questions related to personal privacy but unrelated to his/her work performance.
The information of assessing knowledge of the candidate is only available for
reading for relevant staff in the recruitment of this position. In addition, we
would conduct background check, review information about age of candidates
and prohibit the unlawful use of child labor.

For those staff who have to work overtime and on duty, we would pay overtime
salary in accordance with national requirements and “Kaisa Prosperity
Regulations on Managing Employees’ Overtime Work Policy” { {{EJk 23
FEBB T AMPIEIEIET) ) and overtime transportation allowance as
the case may be. If any violation against laws and regulations in relation to
labor standards is found, we would punish those who shall be accountable for
the incident subject to the severity, also we would analyse the reasons of the
issue, review, update and adjust issues present in the systems or management
measures in place.

Our "Work Guidelines for Employee Relationship for Kaisa Prosperity” ( {{£
JKEE T8 8 TRIIRX T1EFE5]) ) requires both the setup of the post
of employee relations personnel in the headquarters of the Group and its
subsidiaries. The employee relations personnel are responsible for protecting
legal rights of, collecting opinions from and caring about the well-being of our
staff.
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IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF QUALITY AND

REJUVENATION

The Group continued to focus on the “Whole portfolio and Whole cycle” (2%
A& - 2 & HA) high-quality service scenarios, and vertically conducted in-depth
research on the scope of its services and horizontally extended their boundaries,
constantly enriching our property portfolios. We newly upgraded and released
Service Standards for 10 Scenarios and Service Standards for “Three Windows”
(= {E*#3 &) to ensure that customers receive consistent service experience at
all touchpoints. In addition, we released the “Comprehensive Kaisa Prosperity
Service Series 1+3+5 Service Standards Manual” (“ 2R " 251" 1+3+5 " ik
FEIZAEF ) and “Star-rated Service Standards” (£ % ARFSIZXE) in 2024, to
motivate employees to provide higher standards of service, and offer meticulous,
delightful, and thoughtful service to customers.

Quality enhancement and rejuvenation works

In respect of the foundational service quality and service experience, during
the Reporting Period, the Group took “Strengthening Foundation, Reducing
Cost and Increasing Revenue” as the main operation principles to maintain
service quality while strictly controlling risks and bringing new experience.
The Group launched special campaigns such as “Jiarun Campaign” (=877
&) and “Jiafen Campaign” (£ 717E)) to improve its customer services. The
Group also launched a series of quality enhancing campaigns, such as “Spring
Breeze in Kaisa 2.0 (FRK{E2.0), “Construction with Sincerity 2.0" (&
£51£2.0), "Rejuvenating with Quality” (5aZ H2#) and “the Most Beautiful
Garden” (5 3EE#K) for projects under management, centering on the “walking
trails” and “driveways”. We maintained and beautified the landscaping of the
community, renovated, repaired and upgraded the equipment and facilities of the
community, carried out comprehensive check-ups for old communities aged more
than 10 years, and streamlined and optimized customer key contact positions
and corresponding service standards, so as to continuously improve the living
environment and customer experience.
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[FRAEIERMEEGEHBE  BSRK “Spring Breeze in Kaisa” refers to our environmental quality enhancement
ST R S BIT M IRIE ME R T M RS and rejuvenation works centered around replanting of green plants, landscape
178) - AN FRIARE I TTB HET K AR design and highlights creation. Our “Spring Breeze in Kaisa” action completed
TEATEA4,2745 + HIEE161,289F 5K 4% replanting at 4,274 locations, covering an area of 161,289 sq.m; pruned green
T8 (& B [ 733,382,325 F 2K + BH#78,444 plants covering an area of 3,382,325 sq.m.; carried out 8,444 rejuvenation works
Bz + TEIEEE237,269F 5 K  BRiE2,9945 o amounting to an area of 237,269 sq.m.; and completed 2,994 renovation works

&3 430F 5K - amounting to an area of 93,430 sq.m.
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[T EE I RRMBLEML R BERER “Construction with Sincerity” refers to the rejuvenation works carried out in the
¥ SR GREETRESE T EEHEIE community to comprehensively enhance the operation quality of equipment and
TR EREETRE R IREITE) - K facilities and to upgrade equipment and facilities for identification of potential
WEFE  BMRAETIEZRELRZE M hazards during their operations. During the reporting period, we launched “Safe
[ZZ=HRHEBHRITE  MAEEREBLEA Use of Electricity in Summer” and “Anti-freezing of Equipment in Winter” action,
HIGHb254,208F 7oK - 4EIE B FEkiER S and rejuvenated housing building and public venues amounting to a total of
BENAHIKE R R HL4922K » 2 BTE 254,208 sq.m. and repaired and upgraded strong and weak current and water
H154% - REBEFMAES) 05 ¢ & supply and drainage pipelines amounting to 54,922 meters covering a total of
EIZE{ MR H£1,843(E - BYWERSE M 154 highlighted spots. We organized 60 equipment room open day activities and
ZAEIB R o conducted 1,843 standardized renovations of equipment room , making property

services more standardized and transparent.
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“Best Customer Experience” refers to the rejuvenated works that we have
launched since 2023 to continuously enhance on-site service quality targeting
frontline posts, FUN Neighborhood (4£FFUN) activity, customer satisfaction and
environmental quality in both autumn and winter. It focused on the creation of a
demonstration model, provision of ten convenient services and the enhancement
of environmental quality in both autumn and winter to provide more caring and
constant services in terms of quality regardless of weather or climate change.
In 2024, one of the key areas of “Best Customer Experience” operation was to
improve the quality of property lobbies. We commenced the “Most Beautiful
Lobby” selection to construct 186 “Demonstration Windows” and 209 “Beautiful
Lobhies” adopting the design of overhead floor and creating a lobby culture at
340 highlighted spots. We replanted 188,562 sq.m. of greening during autumn
and winter. Jiarun Campaign visited 131,713 customers. We visited the homes
of more than 240,000 customers, while the 400 Call Center made more than
400,000 calls, rapidly responding to and efficiently solving customer’s problems.
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“K Series Living” Brings Value-added and Colorful life

The “K Series Living” (/)\K4E &) platform is a one-stop smart community service
platform created by Kaisa Prosperity, providing convenient and considerate
property management services online such as online bill payment, reporting
for incidents and repairs, notification, smart parking, smart access control,
etc. Revolving around community living scenes, it also creates products and
brands under K Series Living focusing on living services and asset services, and
integrates property management services with community valued-added services
s0 as to enhance the living experience of property owners.

Since June 2021, Kaisa Prosperity launched the community value-added
service brand named K Series Living under the Group. Adhering to the service
concept of “Fast, High-quality, Value-added and Colorful life”, we have been
expanding service scenarios and continued to create K Series Living product and
service systems, covering various business types such as residential buildings,
commercial buildings and office, stadiums, and public facilities. K Series Living
can be mainly divided into four major segments: (i) K-Space (/J\KZE f), (ii)
K-Retail (/NKZE), (iii) K-Lease & Sale (/\KFHE), and (iv) K-Decoration (/]
KZ£/E). K-Retail has been further refined and divided into various sub-unit
product series: (a) K-Commercial and Office Buildings (/)\Kf& %3), (b) K-Charging
(/NKFEE), (c) K-Choice Goods (/]\KIE3E), (d) K-Group Buying (/)\KE &), (e)
K-Delivery (/NKZIZR), () K-Cultural Tourism (/NK3ZHR) and (g) K-pet (/)\KEA
2). By leveraging the advantages of integrated fundamental property services,
diversified supply chains and distributed mini warehouse, we continued to
improve our community value-added service capabilities, provide high-quality
products and convenient services, and build a standardized and full-lifecycle
service and product system.
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In 2023, the K Series Living platform developed offline experience touchpoints of
K Series Living services, and have been successively opened in cities including
Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Huizhou, which officially started to develop the
neighborhood living circle of Kaisa Prosperity. K Series Living Exhibition Hall
integrated all-in-one value-added services such as community group buying,
seasonal choices, housekeeping and maintenance, tourism and rehabilitation,
decoration for the entire house, partial renovation, house rental and sales,
asset custody, etc., and realized the comprehensive integration and upgrade
of the product portfolios, covering community life in all aspects. At the same
time, K Series Living Exhibition Hall has also selected the leading enterprises in
the industry to build a onestop platform, providing online selection and offline
experience to bring better scenario experience.
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In 2024, the Group opened K Series Living Exhibition Halls in six cities including
Foshan, Dongguan, Zhuhai, Chengdu, Chongging and Shanghai, catering to the
needs of customers and focusing on user experience and striving to provide
accurate, professional services. As of the end of 2024, we have 11 self-owned
stores under the name of “K Series Living Exhibition Hall”, covering 11 cities
across China. It provides rich and convenient local services for the daily life of
residents in Kaisa's community, and creates a convenient ecology with high-end
quality of life, fast and convenient consumption, meticulous and efficient service
and intelligent and innovative scenarios, so that residents can enjoy diversified
convenient services and a better living environment without leaving home.

Service Quality and Complaint Handling

As a leading integrated property management service provider in the PRC, Kaisa
Prosperity has been upholding the principle of “satisfying our customer’s needs”
by striving to build a harmonious living environment for our communities. The
Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations under the Civil Code of
the People’s Republic of China ((HZE AR FEFMEIREH) ), the Property
Management Regulations ( {#)2£ & 32 1&/5) ) and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests ( {1 2
AR FLMEE EERERREE) ) in relation to the rights pertaining to
property management activities, the formulation and revision of management
contracts and owners’ meeting, and the election of owners’ committee members
which may have a material impact to the properly management industry. We
have formulated a series of policies to improve customers’ satisfaction, including
Guidance on Handling Complaints from Customers of Kaisa Prosperity ( {f£JK
XX EEEFRFEETERS])), Guidance on Caring our Customers
of Kaisa Prosperity ( (fEJKEFETEERFETEES]) ), Guidance
on Owners’ Satisfaction Assessment of Kaisa Prosperity ( {({EJKE 1T EE
EFMERBFFTIEIES]) ), Guidance on Quality Control System Building
of Kaisa Prosperity ((EXEETEEESEEE ZERTIEES),
Guidance on Quality Grid Management of Kaisa Prosperity ( {({EJK S E1F &
5 08 49151 & 32 T1E#551) ) and Guidance on Call Centre Management
System of Kaisa Prosperity ( (fEJKZESRFE BT IR LEIRHE) ), 400
Customer Satisfaction Evaluation Methods of Kaisa Prosperity Group ( {fEJK
EEFEBI0EFImEEZEEZZIEE) ), Control and Management
Measures on Risk Relating to Operations of Kaisa Prosperity Group ( {fEJK %
EFEEEBRREZREE DL ) and Evaluation Methods for Service
Quality Control of Kaisa Prosperity Group ( (fEJKEE LT EERERE BIF
E R ), etc., which aimed at providing more convenient and thoughtful
services to owners so as to improve the sense of happiness and satisfaction of
our residents and property owners.
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RAEFREE Enhancing customer satisfaction
NEBNEVMEELRAZTFNRIFBERE With the objective of establishing and maintaining good relationship with
BiE  KEFEGIV(EKEETFERRF customers, the Group formulated “Guidance on Caring our Customers of Kaisa
B1Z TEFE S )R BB E M 2 E A8 Prosperity” ((EJREETEE R FRIIZETEFES]) ) to govern the process
2 HEREEPWMEERERE - B of assessment of customer satisfaction, expecting to increase satisfaction and
BN —RINERTIERTE loyalty of customers. We implemented a series of caring work including:

RIRE RIEFE X

Types of caring Method of caring

THEF@EE FRIAFIER
Comprehensive customers’ care Door-to-door disinfection and sterilization
XAEE  BREBERE
Repair of home appliances and home intercoms
B MR RRAREBIET
Warm reminders of bad and humid weather
BERHAVE EAFHEMN  B2FMHRABASHE  BRME  BEEE
Blessings at important festivals, material event notifications, sending emergency notifications
through phone calls, WeChat messages from butler and text

Bt EFrE FERENH © EEMEHREES)
Individual customers’ care Special festivals: themed community cultural events

ERBE  BRME - BREE KB 8E - ) \EnFE

Birthday care: WeChat messages from butler, sending text messages, giving congratulations cards,
flowers and small gifts etc

HFEE: FFIBEE  KMEmE

Pregnancy care: home visits and offering small gifts

FEIERAE - FPINE C XER - BE - BREDHE

Marriage care: visiting to congratulate, giving congratulation cards, flowers and settings decoration
etc.

NERE - PHEAEFEREEIMERES - BHELPINE - SHHE

Check-in care: sending text messages or WeChat to residents during the check-in registration,
congratulations and visit and discussions to new residents

K8  AETRENRIEFRHERIERE - AEM - 2E  MEXEHENTR
BERT B REEREMEE

Renovation supervision: offering supervision services during renovation of owners’ flat, notify owners
about the status of renovation via mail, text messages, WeChat or phone calls anytime
SSPVEEIREE - FPIEE  REFEREIMELNERDE

Minority care: home visits and explanations in response to their needs based on our ability
BEREFHEE  PISR(BEEFLEERERE)  BE(EZRANMEL)MEF(KE
ttE bR EE RIS E

Key customers’ care: home visits (understanding of their needs and take actions in time), sending text
messages (about key notifications and information) and giving phone calls (big community cultural
events oriented invitations)

FERMA  EHRASPRFASER  BxB24/ERn e EfE5ES

School opening care: giving small gifts to students and creating school opening atmosphere on the
day of school opening in the community etc.
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BIEE BEER

Types of caring Method of caring

EREMERE HEPHEYRERE 2F  TER - BHER  MEMMENEHFERRE

Channel of information Establishment of comprehensive information chain for customers via text messages, notices,
dissemination promotional columns, elevator advertising, WeChat and Weibo

ARRE RBET)  EEMEMKETERRY - HE B1TRERSE

Five major kinds of free services Free knife sharpening: regularly organised knife sharpening services, and self-purchasing services
WHIEE - AEFBAMHE - ERNEEHER  DOFEHR (S N RELER
%)

Carpet cleaning: cleaned carpets for customers, but only limited to ordinary dust-proof blankets and
welcome blankets, except for luxury carpets

BHEETL  BEEL - IRHEK- N2 RE BB REEBHERBS(ZEER
A~ hatiEE T RELERS)

Holes drilling for hanging pictures: provided 6mm-12mm drilling holes for hanging pictures and
corresponding plastic expansion screws, except for all kinds of tiles, stone, imitation stone walls
ZREBEER  EXEFEL - WERBHLZEEDHEPIFAEARME

Cleaning of air conditioning filter: staff at the property service center provided cleaning services of
air conditioning filters by appointment

EERY : BEEFPHR - REPRHEEBEANFELE - HEES - DXEESVP
IR%S - MERBT OB REMHE - RUE - EEFAEENAYE - BtbBHEF W
BhR M

Wedding services: collected customer needs and provided customers with VIP services such as
decoration in the park, vehicle guidance and welcoming and seeing off; the property service center
must purchase reusable carpets, rainbow bridges, and floral columns and other materials shall be
provided by customers
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BIEE BIEER
Types of caring Method of caring

TIRERER FHAA BRIEM : e 8A/MHgEETIA

Ten kinds of convenient services Main entrance Home Toolbox: contains commonly used small repair tools
BEER 15K AT
Lightweight climbing ladder: 1.5m herringbone ladder
BOWE - ERNEENRRRE
Umbrella lending: straight umbrellas are placed in the umbrella stand
FRFHEE  @BE TRESENFHEYS
Carts lending: flatbed carts and carts are available for lending
ZINEEITRMA « BLEWE  EZE RS 2 TR sk
Multi-function pumps: with multi-function nozzles such as American
valve and French valve and for balls

PRFH ORI A BREREE  aREOERER=FE

Front desk of service center  Universal power bank: with three sets of charging cables of various
calibers
FE=EERE - SRIRTRL TR BRRE  ERLERK &
B R
Emergency medicine kit: contains bandages, alcohol, medical cotton
swabs, ageratum-liquid, quick-acting heart pills etc.
EMERE SRR - REEHE > HEEDEAER
Convenience bags for pets: provides plastic bags for the convenience
of pet owners
FEHGRE  SFHERBMEERIRET
Portable needle and thread box: contains various colored threads and
different specifications of needles
EIEH - BLE+150/E —+400/Z E1EE
Reading glasses: reading glasses of configurations ranging from +150
degree to +400 degree
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Procedures for Handling Complaints from Customers

The Group highly recognizes the importance of our property owner’s satisfaction
and their advices on our products and services. “Guidance on Handling
Complaints from Customers of Kaisa Prosperity” ({({EJKEFEIFEBMES
&R BRIE TYEFE5]) ), “400 Customer Satisfaction Evaluation Methods
of Kaisa Prosperity Group” ({(fENXEEFEBI0RFLMEERE
E#Z#1%) ) and "Guidance on Call Centre Management System of Kaisa
Prosperity” ( {IEIKSESE 4T &= ENE 0L A B 3B 4 ) ) are effective in giving
guidance to the procedures for handling complaints and conducting scientific
and systematic analysis and statistics, giving alerts and directions of service
quality, which helps to reduce and prevent complaints and enhance customers’
satisfaction. The Group requires that after receiving the complaints from our
property owners, the department who receives complaints would pass the case
to the competent departments within 5 minutes. Upon receipt of cases, the
competent department is required to contact the customers within 30 minutes
for preliminary communication and respond to their complaints in 24 hours.
For all kinds of complaints including walk-ins, phone calls, letter, e-mail, APP,
internet, publications, the department who receives complaints require full
record. We would also organize and analyse customers’ complaints regularly,
the analysis covers the reasons, conclusion of experience and lessons, proposals
for rectification measures, pattern of identifying customers’ complaints and
trend analysis, so as to raise standard for handling customer’s complaints while
prevent material complaints and group complaints. During the Reporting Period,
the Group received 59 cases of complaints in relation to services.

Customer Well-Being and Health and Safety

We strictly complied with the laws and regulations such as the “Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China” ((FEIA R EMBEZ2EE
7£) ), “Fire Prevention Law of PRC” ( (/P2 A REFNEDERAE) ), and the
“Guideline of China Occupational Safety and Health Management System” ( {{&
¥ EEECEARIRE) ). We focus on creating and providing a safe
living environment for our owners and customers, a safe, healthy and hygienic
living environment, and implementing our responsibility for production safety.
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In respect of building a safe and secured community, Kaisa Prosperity launched
special campaigns such as “Training in Spring” (ZZ#R+T), "100 Days of
Safety” (B H % %) and"Project Offensive and Defensive Battle” (X8 B % [ #%).
Through firefighting and emergency drills, the campaigns effectively improved
the professional skills and risk prevention and handling ability of employees
regarding fire safety and the fire safety awareness and emergency avoidance
ability of property owners and residents. We continued to undertake a “3+2+1"
patrol mode, adopting an intelligent patrol mode and using two-wheeled
electric scooters to carry out on-site patrols in the community. By leveraging a
technology-empowered “eagle eye system”, service personnel can realise onsite
connection through the mobile phone at any time. To ensure safety at night, we
established a city patrol team, equipped with police electromobile, shoulder
flash lights, reflective vests for patrolling, to safeguard the safety of property
owners and residents.

Safety Hazard Inspection

In 2024, Kaisa Prosperity continued to carry out the inspection work of hidden
hazard under three major campaigns, namely “100 Days of Safety without
Accident”, “No Accident in Summer Production” and “Keep Ringing the Alarm
Bell” to fulfill the enterprise’s safety responsibility, strengthen safety awareness
and promote safe development. More than 10,000 people directly participated
in these actions throughout the year, and we resolved 104 preliminary cases,
prevented and discovered 50 burglary cases, and handled 135 emergency cases.
In total, we received 285 commendation letters and pennants from government
departments, owners and merchants. The completion rate of the rectification of
safety hazards detected during the whole year was 96.3%.
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EFERLBRRE Customer Data Privacy and Security

BEREEMEFPMEREMEZERT In order to keep the information on property owners and residents properly,
AREBRE E(ETREREHEEES) the Group has established “Guidance on Management of Property Owners’
RBHEFELBENRE - TRPLER Information” ((EEEERE R EERIE5])) to standardize measures for
LT protection of customers’ information. Measures for protection of customers’

privacy include:

e System users who are in possession of information about property owners
and residents are required to change their passwords at least four times a
year,

e Written information about property owners and residents shall be kept by
our delegated employees;

e |ndividuals are required to fill in relevant application forms and subject to
approval before accessing to information of property owners and residents;

e Access record shall be documented and traceable;

e [f change of property owners or removal of residents was incurred, the
original information would be destroyed in a timely manner;

e Requirement of our employees to sign a confidentiality agreement before

joining the Group. No information on property owners and residents shall
be disclosed to the external parties by our employees.

During the Reporting Period, there were no complaints on violation of customer’s
privacy or leakage of their information.
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INTEGRITY OPERATION, COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Corporate Governance

Kaisa Prosperity strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations, continue to
improve its corporate governance mechanism, improve its corporate governance
structure, continue to enhance corporate value and protect shareholders’
interests with high standards of corporate governance.

Company Management

We have established a Board of directors composed of property management
and other senior professionals in other professional fields, and have enriched
the Board's diversity in terms of gender, age, and cultural and educational
background. As of 31 December 2024, the Board consists of nine directors,
of which two are women and three independent non-executive directors. The
overall management of the Company’s operation is vested in the Board. The
Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Board and the Company’s affairs, clarifying the management
responsibilities of each department, collaborating, supervising and jointly
promoting the regular operation and decision-making of the Board.

&N -

Shareholders Meeting

Exg

The Board of Directors

REEES®

Nomination Committee

Audit Committee

FHEES

Remuneration Committee

BEREEE
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Director independence percentage

E=ZBYMES

67%

Executive directors M Independent non-executive directors

WiTESR BIIEITES

Age group
FiRER

44%

Below 50 W 50-60
5004 T 50% 60

Percentage of female directors

LHEESGT

78%
Male M Female
o %
Tenure of directors (years)
ESEH (R
56%

0-5years  M5-10years
0-5%F 5104
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Compliance Operation
Kaisa Prosperity strictly follows the “Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China” ({FPZE AR FEFIE A FEY ), the “Securities Law of the People’s

requirements of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, establishes a listing
compliance system, prepares articles of association, and carries out work related
to information disclosure, risk management and anti-corruption to ensure the
compliance operation of the Company.

We continue to promote audit and risk prevention and control work, and continue
to strengthen the construction of the compliance system. We have compiled the
“"High Pressure Line” of Kaisa Prosperity Group” ( (fEIKEFIFEE [ 5
#% 1)), which sets the top level requirements for compliance, and requires all
employees to comply with it, and has prepared and revised the relevant rules
and regulations to provide regulatory support. The Company has developed
and adopted a number of risk management procedures and guidelines and
has clarified operational authority and responsibilities through key business
processes and departmental functions. The Board is responsible for the
Company's risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations

We attach importance to communication with our shareholders to protect their
rights and interests. We will hold annual general meetings and extraordinary
general meetings in accordance with our articles of association and the Listing
Rules to enable shareholders to exercise their rights and express their views
through general meetings. In addition, the Capital Markets Business Module of
the Administration and Human Resources Department is responsible for investor
relations to ensure two-way communication, respond to shareholders’ and public
enquiries and protect the interests of small and medium-sized investors to meet
the relevant requirements for sustainable development.

Information Disclosure

We also adhere to a high standard of disclosure in accordance with relevant
regulatory requirements for information disclosure, and make true, accurate,
complete and compliant disclosures of special factual circumstances on a
regular basis or at any time as far as reasonably practicable, so that the public
has equal, timely and effective access to the information disclosed. In respect
of information disclosure for the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
adhered to the established timely, efficient and high standards and ensured
that relevant information was disclosed in a timely manner through the Stock
Exchange, the Company's official website and other channels.
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HERE R (e G EE Selection of suppliers and supply chain risk management
AREBESHIETEEEBRZHEERM The steady business development of the Group relies on support from various
BHEBHMNTE AR MEREEREES suppliers and partners. Therefore, we place significant importance on supply
B DAERF R PIMARISE 2 M EE IS o chain management, so as to maintain our service quality and trading integrity. As
HZE2024F128318 - AEBHEHE2 790K at 31 December 2024, the Group has partnered with a total of 2,790 suppliers.
HEREIE -

EAAES Engagement of suppliers

BMHIE TCEREETSEHEBERY We prepared “Kaisa Prosperity Procurement Management System” ( {{£Jk 3
LIRS RIBIT AMMEED XN S LR EFEERBEEH|E) ) to govern procurement behaviors and safeguard
= o Bfim T A L EEEITHEREERIE A our legal rights. Our procurement from all of our suppliers adheres to the tender
H - A FERFERRBIERERA and procurement principles of openness, fairness and transparency:

REERA JR A5t 8R

Procurement principles Descriptions for principles

RIZRA AFEBBERENRESE  TEUASEEREHI N RERZT - BREBBRRRE
SHNE B - BEIER RETREE SN -
Tender principle For procurements which are qualified for tender, no reason or way shall be allowed to avoid

tendering. Division of procurement and change of method of procurement are strictly prohibited.
Monopolised projects shall be strictly reviewed and verified.

FEHRRERA EEREFRGRERESENAFSER - HEBRAIRE - IE2ERETENA
BEBBETHE - BREER - TENABK AR - BRIZEABANZTHEERN
AT BB RRERAE T - W RE SR BB AL AT o AN TSI ERE
TEMEBMAIL °

Transparent and governing principles All procurements must be conducted in an open and transparent manner within the terms of
reference and black-box practice is strictly prohibited. All personnel involved in procurements must
strictly comply with the regulations, uphold a high standard of integrity and not to use their positions
for their own benefit. Any persons having an interest with the tenderer must abstain themselves
from taking part in the procurement and report to the Group's procurement department. No one shall
interrupt or exert influence on the objectivity and fairess of the procurement.

RERA X - RIZFAGER - FERRAMBENERESAEE - TR - PRE - HERE
CRIRERSHBREES ERIEOCTEE UHTEME - ABBEINNBERE
BMGITRE o EREHEISTHA] - NMERERAER  BRIEBTEEEM °

Confidentiality principles Information about tendering document, tenderer, private base price or estimated price, evaluation
criteria, bid price, relevant tender conference or resolution shall be kept strictly confidential.
Regardless of whether or not the bid is finalized, such information shall not be disclosed. Confidential
information other than his/her responsibilities shall not be collected. No one shall disclose, imply or
undertake its intention to the bid before the bid is approved and finalized.

BRTEERE HAALBRRNERES - R ELELBRELEBHRPOBMSER - BERSE
AR AT 2EERIR -

Qualification pre-assessment Suppliers shall pass a strict review for qualification. In principle, suppliers shall be jointly inspected

principles by the procurement and business department. They can take part in tendering subject to the passing

of the qualification review.




¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2024

RABR A

fEIEEFEBAR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 97

RIE - HERERTRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

FRAIGEA

Procurement principles

ENEF  AEKE
IRRA

Sufficient competition and

reasonable and lowest bid wins

principle

MR E TR

Prioritized sizable procurement
principles

“#oMg— R A

External standardized principles

HEEERA

Safeguarding creditworthiness
principles

AEHRA

Retrospective principle

Descriptions for principles

EmKAAEREL RN MEEREEEL =X
AT BEABEEEMPE -

Regardless of ways of procurement, it shall be done by adhering to comparison between shops and
sufficient competition. Under the prerequisite of meeting the requirements of tender, we would
choose a reasonably low price for successful bidding.

BEFAREE NS AAIBREE FEETPREBUANZEEBMESETRE 86
NBHRE - RSB -

We would proactively launch strategic procurement of the Group and each of its subsidiaries, yearly
centralized procurement and joint and centralized procurement for various projects. On the basis of
price in exchange for volume, effectiveness and efficiency of procurement shall be enhanced.
REBBAE P REINERIBIRENNE—F O - ERBERVBERELR M - —
Moo WRIBEXY - B5  MESEZEN VAL BN - BERARERRA LF
ARAREEEE  ®RREEX G —ARIFA  HEMRRE  UHWXEHFIER
A BIRBIRAERE A ETFE - RRINEERIRE - iR EPI BB AT AT -
As the sole window for releasing tender information to other external parties, the procurement
department shall ensure the standardization and consistency of the information released. Tender
documents, response to enquiries and additional information shall be released in a standardized way.
Information in respect of tender process shall be sent via Company e-mails, and each time it shall be
sent to one tenderer, or encrypted groups and carbon copy to department heads. The correspondence
arisen in the process of tendering shall be documented. Flow of internal corporate information shall
be directly sent from the department which owns the information to the department which requires
the information.

KEBRETEAL - WREHTFEETER - RE - GINEERTRIFHE
ZEENER -

The tendering process shall be objective and fair, during which communication and feedback
between us and the supplier shall be maintained in a timely manner such that we would build and
safeguard a sound tendering creditworthiness and image of the Company.

FREBIENXH - B8 B KLEFER(BREEFE)  HAERBERE R
W TREIBFIERE - WEVREXEUREFEMEARRERETS  -ARESR
WIRE - TREIRABRRIR - MEMITH - BESEEHREHABER - RELB B2
HYRFFE AT AR ML o

Information comprising documents, records, mails and minutes (including electronic files) involved
in the procurement process shall be organized and filed upon the completion of the tendering
and in a timely manner while paper filing and electronic filing management platforms shall be
put in place. In case of special cases such as emergency, for projects which are not applicable to
relevant procedures and requirements, descriptions shall be given at the time of review to ensure
transparency for decision-making and retrospectivity in the procurement process.

EOBFHRA » B RIRE R
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Selection of suppliers

The Group selects suppliers based on the Guidance on Supplier Inspection
of Kaisa Prosperity Group ({fEJKEE T EE R ERERIEEES]) ).
During the selection process, we visit the supplier’s offices, processing plants
or production workshops to conduct on-site inspections on their equipment,
on-site management and production size etc., in order to make judgements
on their scale, management levels and positions in the industry. We will also
request them to provide copies of business licenses, certificates of professional
qualifications, permits of safety production, 3C authentication, authentication
of energy saving and other recognized certificates in relation to management
systems to ensure they comply with relevant laws and regulations in relation to
society and environment.

Green procurement

To further enhance green procurement, raise the awareness of environmental
protection of suppliers and incentivize suppliers to contribute to sustainable
development, the Group encourages our cooperative suppliers to perform social
and environmental responsibilities. We favor suppliers who demonstrate their
commitment to sustainability. Suppliers awarded 1S014001, IS09001 and
1S045001 or national-level or industry-level qualification will be considered
with higher priority, to ensure that the materials, products and services
provided by cooperative suppliers meet the requirements of national standards
of environmental protection, occupational health and safety and sustainable
development.
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Ongoing monitoring of suppliers’ performance

The Group has a well-established supplier management mechanism. In the
process of close cooperation with suppliers, the Group collected information on
their regular performance in environmental, social and governance aspects and
the latest corporate information. Targeting at different cooperation scenarios,
three types of continuous monitoring and evaluation are in place for suppliers,
including real-time evaluation, post-performance evaluation, and annual
evaluation. Risk sources that may have a significant and negative impact on
cooperation between both parties are identified and effectively dealt with in a
timely manner:

e |mmediate assessment: assessment on material violation against laws
or behaviors against rules, safety of quality incidents, malicious claims,
malicious default and incidents which brought media negative impact;

e Assessment upon performance of obligations: conducted assessments
on suppliers upon performance of obligations in strategic cooperation or
centralized procurement agreements or contracts; and

e Yearly assessment: At the end of each year, we conduct assessment on
suppliers who perform obligations or complete performance obligations
during the year. We rate suppliers in accordance with execution of
supplier's schedule, the degree of cooperation, occupational safety, onsite
quality control, customers’ satisfaction, environmental protection and
material events involving safety and responsibility. If suppliers are rated
unqualified, the supplier shall not be selected within the Group.

If a new supplier wishes to be listed in the trial supplier database of the Group,
it must fill in the Supplier Basic Information Questionnaire ( &g EAZ
BH#EZX) ) and provide corresponding qualification documents. The Group
will go through a strict systematic inspection and evaluation in ensuring that
the supplier has in place an appropriate system and service capabilities and
is capable to comply to abide by the integrity cooperation agreement with the
Group, which may lay a foundation for the subsequent cooperation.
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Anti-corruption and money laundering

Kaisa Prosperity strictly complies with laws and regulations in relation to
business ethics and prohibition of operators to reach monopoly agreement or to
abuse the predominant position in the market which will pose material impact
to our business under “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China" ((PEARHEMBR A IEZFEFE)EY), “Interim Provisions on
Prohibiting Commercial Bribery” ( (B ZE I F B EBBRTT AR E1TIRE) )
and “Anti-Monopoly Law of the People’s Republic of China” ({F 2 A R A1
& [ BEETSA) ). To operate business without any negative impact, our “System
of Management of Gifts Due to Business Reasons for Employees of Kaisa Group
Holdings” (fEJREEEIER B THASZBEERFIE) ) offers guidelines
in relation to the receipt of interests of employees and clearly governs how to
handle the receipt of gifts (either cash or non-cash):

e When our employees offer or receive any business gifts or entertainment
to or from any persons (including the existing or future suppliers, vendors
or contractors), they shall make appropriate judgments and take actions
prudently to avoid the possibility of affecting objective business decisions;

e  Employees shall not demand and receive interests or gifts from any
external business partners in any form unless such interest is nominal or
has no cash value such as promotional goods or advertisement souvenirs
or festive gifts such as gift baskets and flowers which has optimal values
and is available for use;

e Gifts received or being offered to customers and its value is higher than a
nominal value shall be approved by the primary responsible person of the
department and senior management in details by reporting in the form of
“business offer/personal interest”; and

e Under no circumstances shall employees claim “red packets” from any
external business partners.

If any behaviors against the guidelines or other rules is found, the person who
violates the rules will receive disciplinary punishments. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not breach any laws and regulations in relation to
anticorruption, nor dismiss or punish its staff disciplinarily due to anti-corruption
cases, or terminate or discontinue contracts with its business partners due to
non-compliance behaviors in relation to bribery.
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Besides, the Group also requires its staff to sign “Agreement on Integrity and
Cooperation” ({24 1E1#:%) ) advocating a corporate culture of integrity
and honesty, to prevent conflicts of interests and misconducts including bribery,
blackmail, mischief and money laundering, so as to ensure the compliance with
relevant regulations, principles and requirements in relation to occupational
ethics in the agreement. In addition to promoting WeChat Public Accounts
Whistleblowing Platform, the Group implements an awarding policy to whistle
blower to combat all misconducts of corruption and bribery.

During the Reporting Period, we provided 4 sessions totaling 8 hours of integrity
and self-discipline thematic training seminars to a total of 572 employees at
assistant to manager level and above. We conducted 68 sessions totaling 136
hours of professional ethical thematic training for 7,832 employees across the
Group and its subsidiaries. Additionally, we delivered 3 sessions totaling 5
hours of training on integrity and self-discipline, red line management, and case-
sharing seminars to 185 functional department heads, project heads, project line
heads, and new employees of the Group’s branch companies. These initiatives
aimed to enhance employees’ awareness of integrity, reinforce ethical standards
required for clean operations and duty fulfillment, clarify the Company’s red line
management boundaries, and update the knowledge of the latest developments
in anti-corruption and integrity practices.

Protecting intellectual property rights

The Group strictly abides by relevant requirements of laws and regulations in
relation to protection of intellectual property rights under “Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China” ( (/R % A R FMBIZEREE) ), “Trademark
Law of the People’s Republic of China" (R #E A R LB EIZIE) ) and
“Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( (P #E A R EMBZFE) ),
in order to protect the interests of the Group and its customers. We require our
staff to endeavor to guarantee and develop intellectual property rights of the
Group while totally respect legal intellectual property rights of third parties. We
also offer intellectual property rights management education to management
personnel of each department to raise their awareness towards the protection of
intellectual property rights. In addition, the Group would also sign confidentiality
agreement and competition prohibition agreement with its staff and suppliers
to prevent the infringement of intellectual property rights. Employees who are
suspected of violating relevant rules of intellectual property rights of the Group
shall be under investigation and the Group would take appropriate actions to
this.
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GATHERING SHIMMER, GIVING BACK TO THE
SOCIETY

Management concepts

Kaisa Prosperity has been enthusiastic about public welfare. Over the years, it
has been committed to participating in and donating to various social welfare
undertakings such as education, medical care and environmental protection,
actively fulfilling its social responsibilities, and seeking to promote community
communication and integration, responding to people’s aspirations and needs for
a better life with practical actions. Kaisa Prosperity strictly abides by the “Charity
Law of the People's Republic of China" ( (R #E A R AMEZEZE) ) and
the "Public Welfare Donations Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( {#7 ZE
ARZEFBEAZEZEIBEE) ). At the same time, we have implemented
internal policies such as the “Work Procedures in Relation to Community
Culture and Community Organization of Kaisa Prosperity Group” ( {(fEJK 2=
SF SR R 3 Rak B AR A T1EFES1) ) and the “Policy of Community
Cultural Activities of Kaisa Prosperity” ( {{EJK 2 =474t 1% LB ) to
regulate the work procedures in relation to community culture and community
organization, and develop and promote the community environmental civilization
of Kaisa Prosperity with an aim of enhancing the property owners” awareness of
civilization, so as to develop a caring culture in the neighborhood.

In 2024, Kaisa Prosperity continued to incorporate social charity, community
communication and integration and community culture into our property
management services and launched “Prosperity FUN"(ZE4FFUN) as Kaisa
Prosperity’s brand of community culture, covering a full range of scenarios,
age groups, and portfolios under four major segments, namely FUN Life (44)&
FUN), FUN Neighborhood (££#BFUN), FUN Charity (442 FUN) and FUN Sharing
(4= FUN), with both humanistic sentiments and community characteristics,
serving beautiful China with a series of themed events and multiple scenarios.
Since 2023, the brand of Prosperity FUN has been newly upgraded and a new IP
image “Kaisa FUN" (f£/J\FUN) has been released. Through the interpretation
of scenarios of four service systems and revolving around different fields of
community culture, vertical delicate services were provided which brought a
human touch to community culture, established emotional connection of services,
and deepened experience of the events, creating a better life together.
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In 2024, we organized 2,055 seasonal-themed events, cumulatively serving
approximately 1,320,000 participants. We also conducted events such as the
Youth Art Festival, summer camps, and parent-child sports activities, serving
over 400,000 participants. The “Prosperity FUN - Healthy Living Month” health
initiative cared about the health of 80,000 elderly people. Additionally, we held
1,192 convenience service sessions, benefiting more than 500,000 people.

In 2024, Kaisa Prosperity donated a total of RMB39,841 for environment, culture,
vulnerable groups and public welfare in relation to convenience to citizens, and
the total hours of volunteer services provided by us amounted to 6,218 hours
with 2,306 volunteers.
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Community communication and integration

Community culture

Kaisa Prosperity actively carried out community cultural activities, and advocated
the concept of providing fun for the children and security for the elderly and
awakening the passion of the youth (2h B FT%t - EEFEE - SFHH
%). Kaisa Prosperity took practical actions to care for the elderly and care
about the growth of teenagers and build a community service system with Kaisa
Prosperity’s own distinctive features, thereby creating a beautiful community
with harmonious neighborhood, and enhancing the happiness of property owners.
Through a series of themed activities under “Prosperity Convention” (J4F /A
#49), “Kaisa's Neighbors” ({£#B81£%7) and “Starry Shining Community” (E9 5%
4T 245 4LE), we organized various kinds of community sports and cultural
activities and competitions to share love, create happiness, stimulate community
vitality, and create an atmosphere in the community in which neighborhoods are
like family.

Example

“Prosperity FUN ¢ Reunion” (3X3fFUN * {£[@ &) Spring Festival
Community Cultural Event Series

From 1 January to 24 February 2024, Kaisa Prosperity Group successfully
organized a Spring Festival community cultural event series for all property
owners of the projects under management nationwide. The events created
a vibrant reunion atmosphere through diversified forms including festive
decorations, Lunar New Year blessing ceremonies, dragon and lion dances and
Lantern Festival celebrations, blending traditional folk customs with modern
interactive elements. Over 1,000 activities were launched in projects nationwide,
covering featured content such as Spring Festival couplet creation, garden
games, dragon and lion dances, traditional food making, and God of Wealth
parades, serving over 150,000 participants in total.
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Example

“Prosperity FUN ¢ Beautiful Home” (£ #7FUN o X% {£[&) The fifth
Youth Cultural Arts Festival

From 28 June to 31 August 2024, Kaisa Prosperity Group successfully hosted
the Fifth Youth Cultural Arts Festival under the theme of “Beautiful Home". The
event encouraged young participants to explore and create art works inspired
by the beautiful elements of community life through mediums such as painting,
photography, and Al-generated images. With online registration and voting
channels covering projects nationwide, the event accumulated over 1,000
submitted works, with clicks on the voting interface exceeding 100,000 times.
Ultimately, 89 outstanding creators were selected. The event simultaneously
strengthened community interaction and cultural exchange, helping enhance
youth creativity and community cohesion, deepening the brand concept of “Happy
Living Environment” and demonstrating Kaisa Prosperity’s social responsibility in
youth education and community cultural development.
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Health

From 1 September to 30 September 2024, Kaisa Prosperity Group successfully
launched its first “Prosperity FUN e Healthy Living Month” event series under
the slogan “I take action, | stay healthy, | am happy!” targeting all residents in
its managed projects nationwide. The event adopted an integrated online-offline
format, focusing on healthy diets, scientific workout, and disease prevention, and
carried out activities including health tips promation, free medical consultations,
autumn wellness tea distribution, and Mid-Autumn Festival themed integration
initiatives. We organized over 100 health service sessions nationwide covering
blood glucose/lipid tests, dental examinations, and innovatively combined Mid-
Autumn Festival celebrations with health-themed lantern riddle activities, elderly
dance performances, children’s talent shows, and healthy family banquets,
attracting over 80,000 property owner to participate. The initiative reinforced
healthy lifestyle concepts, effectively enhanced residents’ health awareness and
community cohesion, advocated public wellness, and advanced the development
of a harmonious living environment.

Example

“Kai Jiang La" ($83& 1) Health Lecture

Through the convergence of wisdom and knowledge, Kaisa Prosperity invited
renowned experts to meet with community property owners, sharing the secrets
of healthy living. Spanning from dietary habits to physical exercise, psychological
well-being to health preservation practices, the sharing session rooted health-
conscious principles into daily life.
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“Jiamenkou” ({£P9 O) Community Free Clinic

Care at doorstep warms everyone in the community. Kaisa Prosperity invited
professional medical teams to provide on-site complimentary health screenings
and consultations, embodying the philosophy of “No Health Matter Is Minor"”
through concrete actions.

Participation in charity and volunteering activities

Since 2012, Kaisa Prosperity proposed the “Serving Beautiful China — Firefly
Plan” (BR75ec B8 A BY] — #& N 8851 &ll).We have organized more than 1,000
micro charitable campaigns in various forms, such as supporting education,
supporting the elderly, precise poverty alleviation and environmental protection,
to spread love to every corner of the society. The Firefly Plan is a long-term
strategy of the Group’s charitable endeavors and a part of the Group’s corporate
responsibility. During the year, the Firefly Plan has been included in the service
scope of our FUN Charity service system. Through micro-charitable practice under
a series of themed activities of the Firefly Plan, we have been working together
to care for both ecological and human well-being, to spread love to every corner
and to brighten up a beautiful life and serve beautiful China.
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Example

World Autism Day activities

In 2024, we joined One Foundation’s Blue Action campaign, co-launching World
Autism Day activities across over 400 communities nationwide. Through this
collaborative effort, we advocated for public understanding and engagement
with autism, fostered inclusive community support environments for autistic
individuals of all ages and their families, and supported individuals with autism
to participate and integrate into an independent and inclusive community life.
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Recycling

Example

“Yuehuanxin” (Z4&%7) “online + offline” discarded consumer product
recycling solutions

In December 2024, Kaisa Prosperity collaborated with the “Yuehuanxin” platform
to provide more than 700 community residents with convenient, fast, preferential
and reliable “online + offline” discarded consumer product recycling solutions,
leading the trend of green consumption and promoting resource recycling.

“Yuehuanxin” is the first “two new” official brand in China focusing on full-
chain recycling, creating a “trade-in” recycling closed loop to further release
investment and consumption potential and accelerate the development of new
quality productivity.
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XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)"

12 FRRBENEERE

BISEW Environmental Performance

BREENEEFS BRENER

No. of KPIs KPIs

ALAEERR Y AE/INO) T 890.96 960.60 505.84

A1.1 Emissions? Nitrogen oxides (NO,) Kilograms
e (S0, T 345.03 372.00 165.69
Sulfur oxides (SO,) Kilograms
AT A FERLPI(PM10) T 63.09 68.02 65.84
Inhalable particulate matter Kilograms
(PM10)
HRFERIY(PM2.5) T 65.18 70.27 68.02
Fine particulate matter (PM2.5  Kilograms
—&kHx(Co) T 1,571.65 1,694.50 1,640.29
Carbon monoxide (CO) Kilograms
BEUE A IHC) Fr 205.87 221.96 214.86
Hydrocarbon (HC) Kilograms

M2BEREE: HiE  EEEERARE
KEBHER

A1.2 Greenhouse Scope 1: Direct emissions

gas emissions® of greenhouse gas
REETOKENOBRIFE  —SCE 20 154,48 162.61 166.65
R SRNE
Boiler for maintaining constant  tons of CO,e
temperature for the swimming
pool
R Ze R Y HRIE bR E 2nE 445.30 484.02 409.96
Heat generating boiler of the tons of CO,e
central air conditioner
BT REMNMREML ZRUbIRE 8N 9.60 10.44 5.50
Gas stoves in staff canteens tons of COe
T —SULIRE 2 0E 101.37 110.18 98.30
Emergency generators tons of CO,e
Bt EBERNRE —SIRESN 6.84 7.44 5.54

e MBIV R
Weeding machines, chainsaws
and leaf blowers used for
landscaping management

tons of COe
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BRERERFR

No. of KPIs

REENIER
KPIs
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NEAE

Official vehicles
FEEEIRARE RSN
53

Greenhouse gas removals from
newly planted trees
HECSmESHNE
HHE

Direct carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions in
total
BEECSmESHNE
EREZE

Intensity of direct carbon
dioxide equivalent
emissions*

HE2 HEELENEE
REEHERK

Scope 2: Indirect emissions
of greenhouse gas
HNEETE 75

Electricity purchased®
HNEB R RE

Steam purchased®

SN BESR

Coal gas purchased
SNEBRIAR,

Natural gas purchased
BE-S(REEHRE
BRE

Indirect carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions in total
BE—E(mEEHRE
BHERE

Intensity of indirect
carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions’

AL E B
tons of COe
—RACHKE BWE

tons of COe
ZRCHE B0

tons of COe

—ALErE RS
BEFIK

tons of CO,e/million
square meters

—REHE BN
tons of COe
—E L E 20
tons of CO,e
—AACHE B0
tons of COe
R E B
tons of COe
ZRALHRE 20

tons of COe

—RALE BN
BEFIK

tons of CO,g/million
square meters

87.28

78.20

572.19

5.57

96,850.73

0.01

1.67

7.95

96,860.36

943.14

12278

73.14

824.33

8.06

104,421.27

0.01

1.82

8.64

104,431.74

1,020.94

118.85

48.97

755.82

8.00

112,583.39

0.01

1,78

12.49

112,595.89

1,191.26
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EE3: HtEEEEN
BEREHEN

Scope 3: Other indirect
emissions of greenhouse
gas

ZEIMIERE AR
Waste paper discarded ina
landfill

BT ERPIRE IR R K 57K
s i E R E )8
Electricity consumed by
governmental authorities for
handling drinking water and
sewage?

B B RARMLE SN T
Business air travel by
employees
Hittf—EtmEEH
b €%z 356

Other indirect carbon
dioxide equivalent
emissions in total
HttE—S{tmES
AR ER A
Intensity of other indirect
carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions®

AEREAHNE
Greenhouse gas emissions
in total
RERBATHE
Greenhouse gas emissions in
total
RERBAYRE R

Intensity of greenhouse gas
emissions'®

—RACHE B
tons of CO,e

ZELhE =08

tons of COe

ALK E S
tons of COe

ZRLHRE B
tons of CO,e
—RLE 8N
BEFTK

tons of CO,e/million
square meters

—&fbhxE EM
tons of COe

—RALE 8N
BEFTK

tons of CO,e/million
square meters

83.90

697.61

70.50

852.01

8.30

98,284.56

957.01

94.38

683.93

107.37

885.68

8.66

106,141.75

1,037.66

92.50

670.52

51.13

814.15

8.61

114,165.86

1,207.87
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BEEMERFE BEREEMER

No. of KPIs KPIs
MIFEEEY BEERYRE U 1.23 1.33 1.05
A1.3 Hazardous Total hazardous waste tons
waste
BEREEMRETR =R 0.0120 0.01 0.01
Intensity of total hazardous tons/million square
waste meters
AMABEEEY BEEZEVRE 58 1.20 1.35 132
A1.4 Non-hazardous  Total non-hazardous waste tons
waste
BEEEVRETE == RPN 0.0117 0.01 0.01
Intensity of total non-hazardous  tons/million square
waste meters
A2188R HiZmRERE
A2.1 Energy Direct energy consumption
KRR FEAF L 5,074.11 5.515.34 2,413.00
Natural gas ‘000 kWh
AL AR AR ERYN:S 24.34 26.46 24.38
Liquefied petroleum gas ‘000 kWh
B R ERS 396.83 431.34 384.65
Diesel '000 kWh
P FEFT L 678.36 737.35 549.05
Gasoline '000 kWh
EEEREE FEF LA 6.173.65 6,710.49 3,371.08
Direct energy consumption ‘000 kWh
EERRERE" FETF R, 60.11 65.60 35.67
BETHK
Intensity of direct energy ‘000 kWh/million square

consumption™ meters
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BREENEEFY BRENEE
No. of KPIs KPIs
R E
Indirect energy
consumption
SNEE ) FEF R 109,633.29 118,203.02 127,442 61
Electricity purchased ‘000 kWh
HMNBER FE T FLiF 1.06 112 0.83
Steam purchased ‘000 kWh
SN BESR, FE T FLEF 26.62 28.94 29.59
Coal gas purchased ‘000 kWh
SNBRAR, FE T FL B 58.63 63.73 62.46
Natural gas purchased ‘000 kWh
HEgREE FE T FLEF 109,719.60 118,296.81 127,535.49
Indirect energy consumptionin ‘000 kWh
total
AR T E FETF R, 1,068.35 1,156.48 1,349.32
BEFHK
Intensity of indirect energy ‘000 kWh/million square
consumption™ meters
RRAEE
Energy consumption in total
RERAFEE FEAF R 115,893.25 125,007.30 130,906.57
Energy consumption in total ‘000 kWh
BERAEEREY FETFEEE, 1,128.46 1,222.09 1,384.99
BETFHA
Intensity of energy ‘000 kWh/million square
consumption™ meters
A225E7K & FXE K 919,495.50 967,890.00 948,912.00
A2.2 Water Total water consumption cubic meters
consumption
FEKE&E TR BB 8,953.22 9,462.22 10,039.48

Intensity of water consumption

cubic meters/million
square meters
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RIRE TR ER AR AR R B
DRBBE A EMAOCINATEFRS - i
BRERRE ? T BORRRERUE
RIERES]) - BEHBABRID -

PE 2 St E 2RI T I WCER A
T RRFE I TR RS R BEROE B
R-RERBEHH(017FIR) - BREE
REARCRNEENHETE(BIETEN
18) ) (&1 2= S=30mg/m?) ~ BHA#ERHE
HaZ 1+ hitp://w.astro.berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel _
energy.html ~ B &L #7551 /B < Emission factors used
in the estimations of emissions from combustion) *
EREneEMERNE)BAERRE
EIR G RE B(E RS LR REF M)
(AP-42 - EHIR) ~ FEARKMBIRFRE
Ea GBI B B KR )5 2 &
mERTIEE (B1T) ~ PEARAMBEIRE
RENHRESLERBRRERMS M
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BERNER))REBFIITREIRRRES
(RI=AMNERERRE) -
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REEHRETE2RBREIAHERENER
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energy.html FIE B @A WCOR EREZE 8
F o PERERBERE)RATRHACGER
SERESIRAREREBEMGTETIA) -

BEE_SIREENNANETRE=8&
AR EEHNE - AFREAEEHIBA
B&mEE -

hEAEERFREFRE2ERRER
AP E B FEMNQNIFERIIEE hE
B EREEGIRET)

ROSFREEMEENERREERBFCE
EREHRE - BREAT018)TEBE -

B — St E SHREHIRERE =i
“REREEBHNE - AFEEERTBIA
B#&mEE -
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Unless otherwise stated, the emission factors used in calculating the environmental key
performance indicators in this report are based on the “How to prepare an ESG Report? —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The calculation of the emission is based on the “Air pollutant emission inventory based on
local emission source surveys in Hangzhou, China — Acta Scientiae Circumstantiae ( ¢ E 7%
i 5 RRABEOMMTRRSRDERUEERR - REBBER) Q017F
hiz) )" (2017 Edition) published by research institutions, the “Production and supply industry of
electric power (Including industrial boilers) ((ZA £ EFIEETTE (BIETEHRE) )
(sulphur content S = 30mg/m?) published by the State Environmental Protection Administration,
the conversion factors provided by scientific research institutions: http://w.astro.berkeley.
edu/~wright/fuel_energy.html, the “Emission factors used in the estimations of emissions from
combustion” published by Statistics Norway, the Project CLEAN AR ( (B ¥ =R 4IZE) ), the
business guidance published by Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, the Manual for Air
Pollutant Emission Factors ( {Z= 5,5 ¥ BE R 2T i) ) (AP-42, the 5th Edition) published
by United States Environmental Protection Agency, the Technical Guidelines for the Compilation
of Air Pollutant Emission Lists for Road Vehicles (Trial) ( (& B #4 B) B8 K &5 LW HE G &
B iTHER (377) )) issued by the Ministry of Environmental Protection of the People’s
Republic of China, Limits and Measurement Methods for Emission From Light-duty Vehicles (China
VI) ( CRAVAE S 2 HERE SO & 770 (R BIZE7SBE B ) ) jointly published by
the Ministry of Environmental Protection and the General Administration of Quality Supervision,
Inspection and Quarantine of China and the Study of Air Quality in the Pearl River Delta Region
published by the Environmental Protection Department of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

The calculation of the carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from direct production, coal gas
purchased and natural gas purchased is based on the conversion factors provided by scientific
research institutions: http://w.astro.berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel_energy.html, and the References
for Calculating Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Energy Consumption ({BEJR)EFESIFERR
EREYERGTE T E) ) as set out in the internationally adopted Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
Enterprise Accounting and Reporting Standards ( (R =R AEZE 2 X « hEZE RERE
REE) ).

Intensity of direct carbon dioxide equivalent emissions = Direct carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions + aggregate area of the 728 projects under management during the year.

The data of emission factors for the power grids in Mainland China is based on the “China’s
Regional Power Grids Baseline Emission Factors for Emission Reduction Projects in 2019 €(2019
FERHEEPERISEMELEZEMETF) )" issued by the National Development
and Reform Commission.

The calculation of emissions from steam is based on the Greenhouse Gas Reporting: Conversion
Factors 2018 ( CEERELHR 4 : BIRE T2018) ) issued by the government of the United
Kingdom.

Intensity of indirect carbon dioxide equivalent emissions = Indirect carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions + aggregate area of the 728 projects under management during the year.
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Electricity consumed per unit for handling drinking water and sewage in the PRC was set as 0.6
and 0.28328 kilowatt hours, and the default emission factor for electricity purchased in the PRC
was set as 0.8 kilograms/kilowatt hour.

Intensity of other indirect carbon dioxide equivalent emissions = Other indirect carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions + aggregate area of the 728 projects under management during the year.

10 Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions = Greenhouse gas emissions in total + aggregate area
of the 728 projects under management during the year.

Intensity of energy consumption is calculated based on the conversion factors set out at the
General Rules for Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption ( {474 BEFEETEmAND )
(GB/T 2589-2008), the national standard of the People’s Republic of China, and the conversion
factors provided by scientific research institutions: http://w.astro.berkeley.edu/~wright/fuel_
energy.html.

Intensity of direct energy consumption = direct energy consumption + aggregate area of the 728
projects under management during the year.

Intensity of indirect energy consumption = indirect energy consumption + aggregate area of the
728 projects under management during the year.

Intensity of energy consumption = energy consumption in total + aggregate area of the 728
projects under management during the year.
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HEEN Social Performance

BARERIERFHR BARERIER 20244 20234

No. of KPIs KPIs 2024 2023

BLIEEA&H RERELED

B1.1 Total number of By types of employment

employees
g A 10,005 9,524 9,216
Full-time person
M A RE RE RE
Part-time person Nil Nil Nil
RiLEE D
By geographical region
BERANER A 2,821 2,095 2,027

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao person
Greater Bay Area

R=AE A 6,130 6,205 5,997
Yangtze River Delta region person

Frh A 338 454 429
Central China person

oy A 493 532 540
Western China person

R A 205 238 223
Bohai Economic Rim person

isaEa) A 18 RAE RE
Hainan person Nil Nil
gz EB)

By gender

B A 5973 5619 5396
Male person

M A 4,032 3,905 3,820
Female person

RERED

By age

30ARELA TS A 1,723 1,714 1,645
30 or below person

31-405%, A 2,097 2,027 1,856
31-40 person

41-5073% A 1,829 1,593 1,588
41-50 person

51pR 3k bA £ A 4,356 4,190 4127

51 or above person
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BREENEEFR BREENER 20244F 2023F

No. of KPIs KPIs 2024 2023

B1.2{E B8Rk b & REEELES

B1.2 Employee turnover rate” By types of employment
a3 % 32 38 38
Full-time %
O % RE RE RE
Part-time % Nil Nil Nil
RILEE S
By geographical region
BIRAER % 24 45 44
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao %
Greater Bay Area
R=AE % 34 36 37
Yangtze River Delta region %
Frh % 33 37 42
Central China %
By % 34 34 55
Western China %
REKE % 25 33 35
Bohai Economic Rim %
=Tz % 31 BB RE
Hainan % Nil Nil
RRIE D
By gender
S % 33 39 39
Male %
7 % 29 37 37
Female %
RFRED
By age
30ARSILATS % 38 51 50
30 or below %
31-405% % 25 33 34
31-40 %
41-507%, % 19 32 31
41-50 %
5153k LA % 36 36 37

51 or above %
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BRERIEZEFR BRRENIERZR
No. of KPIs KPIs
B2Z1IA T THMABKR EITHEAE A 1 RE 2
b 2Re Number of work-related fatalities ~ person Nil
B2.1 Number and rate of AT T#E ABLL X % 0.01 BB 0.02
work-related fatalities' Rate of work-related fatalities % Nil
B22RTHEATHEBE" RHIBEXIIERH = 3,031 2,032 2,556
B2.2 Number of working days  Number of working days lost due  day
lost due to work injury" to work injury
B31ZIEE T DLL™ XiIMEEBS % 100 100 98
B3.1 Percentage of trained Percentage of trained employees %
employees™
gzl
By gender
ES % 100 100 94
Male %
z % 100 100 104
Female %
RERE D
By positions
EIR[E % 100 100 135
Management %
HEET % 100 100 161
Middle-level employee %
AEBET % 100 100 96

Entry-level employee %




3R ANNUAL REPORT 2024 {£Jk3=1F @A PR A E KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 119

RIE - HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BREENEEFR BREENER 20244F 2023F
No. of KPIs KPIs 2024 2023
Bl2BHEETHEZIIN BAREBTAEINTFE /JNEF 31 28 29
TR R 25
B3.2 Average training hours Average training hours hour
completed per employee completed per employee
Rt Bl &l o
By gender
S /NEF 31 30 30
Male hour
=g N 31 26 26
Female hour
RERE D
By positions
EEfE N 31 70 74
Management hour
FEET 1NBE 31 133 113
Middle-level employee hour
ZEEET AN 31 25 26
Entry-level employee hour
B5. 1L FER &R HERNHERMEED
B5.1 Number of suppliers Number of suppliers by
geographical region
BERNER ] 1,036 999 932

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao supplier
Greater Bay Area

=AM i 461 500 382
Yangtze River Delta region supplier
Frh i 291 239 266
Central China supplier
E=iii) i 404 292 265
Western China supplier
REEE i 196 184 144
Bohai Economic Rim supplier
&k i 402 195 347

Northeast China supplier
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BRENEEFR BRRENIERZR
No. of KPIs KPls
B6.2BANE m R RIS HVIRER BRI fn MRTS VIR = RE RE RE
L= FER
B6.2 Number of complaints Number of complaints about case Nil Nil Nil
about products and services  products and services received
BIAESHRARY FHEAEESNEESRD R gl gl BE
I BENE TR
CoEo¢=
B7.1 Legal cases in relation Number of legal cases in case Nil Nil Nil
to corruption relation to corruption filed and

concluded against the Group or

its employees

MEEMETIRENRE ] 136 42 46
yEiE e

Anti-corruption training provided  hour

to directors and staff'

B8.1%B82it ERE BREgZREIERERE
E i)

B8.1 & B8.2 Community Total amount of donation

investment (by core contribution area)
BB TTAREE RE RE RE
Education RMB Nil Nil Nil
REEH TARE 10,000 7,200 15,440
Environmental concerns RMB
BIEK TTARE RE 500 A
Labour demand RMB Nil Nil
=953 TTARE 6,000 2,200 RE
Health RMB Nil
Xt TTAREE 16,641 15,061 19,836
Culture RMB
S5 EEE AR 1,200 11,249 21,331
Vulnerable groups RMB
frE R YA 1R TTARHE RE RE RE
Donation of community anti- RMB Nil Nil Nil
epidemic materials
Hh AR 6,000 5,100 RE
Others RMB Nil
BEEy TARE 39,841 41,310 56,607

Total amount of donation RMB
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BRENIBERFR BRENIEE 20244 20235
No. of KPIs KPls 2024 2023
HTIRBARE
(REIEREESE D)

Total number of hours for
providing voluntary services
(by core contribution area)

BE N 724 1,368 RE
Education hour Nil
BEEH aNs 846 1,730 1,737
Environmental concerns hour
=953 NS 2,070 5774 416
Health hour
Xt /NBF 1,634 1,998 291
Culture hour

g5 TINEE RE 276 RE
Sports hour Nil Nil
S5 RHEE aNe: 828 2,909 383
Vulnerable groups hour

BTEX /)NBF 66 584 96
Labour demand hour
EHAth /B 50 1,239 BB
Others hour Nil
R IRBERY /)NB 6.218 15,878 2922
Total number of hours for hour

providing voluntary services
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RRENIEEFE RARENIEE 20234 20225
No. of KPIs KPls 2023 2022
ETHRKEAABIREEE
eSS )

Total number of people
received the voluntary
services (by core contribution

area)

%A A 242 476 RE
Education person Nil
RIREE A 450 607 1078
Environmental concerns person

953 A 726 3,327 44
Health person

X1t A 597 666 228
Culture person

85 A RE 92 RE
Sports person Nil Nil
9P ERE A 280 1,672 268
Vulnerable groups person

BTHEK AN 10 193 30
Labour demand hour

Hith N 1 495 RE
Others hour Nil
RIRBEEAH A 2,306 7,528 1,648
Total number of people person

received the voluntary
services
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The calculation of employee turnover rate is: employee turnover rate=number of
employees turnover for the year/(number of employees as at the end of the year + number
of employees turnover for the year).

In 2021, our number and rate of work-related fatalities was 0.
In 2021, our number of working days lost due to work injury was 13.

Percentage of employees trained = Number of employees in the relevant category who
attended training throughout the year/number of employees in the relevant category.
The percentage of employees trained may be greater than 100% because the number
of employees who attended training throughout the year includes some transferred or
terminated employees.

In 2023 and 2022, the anti-corruption training was provided by the Group to directors and
employees, including employees at assistant to manager level or above and directors
of the subsidiaries. The anti-corruption training hours in 2021 included employees at
manager level or above and directors of the subsidiaries.
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S EARRIRIE - HERERIEIE Xl HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
g| ¥ 88 GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE INDEX
TEHE - BH  —KEERBERENIEE HEER BE e

Disclosure Section/
Explanation

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status

ARIR
A. Environmental
FEEAT : BERY
Aspect Al: Emissions
— MR ERE
BRERIORZREEHEN - MKRLHEHEES - BEREZTEEDH
EEE
(a) BE &
(b) BTHETABERZENERERNROINER -
General disclosure Disclosed
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to exhaust and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and soil, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes, etc.

+ - EHESE - BITIRER

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

BSRERUEIRALY  BERRESE AR B BBUR - EHE + - EEGEE - BITRR
T ARERIEEHE

KPIA1.1 Types of emissions and respective emission data. Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

+ - REGEE - BITRER

MBERIERAL?  BEER(EE)REEREE(BED)RERBYN BRE

E(UNEETE) R(ER)BE(MAGESE
i - FIERIETHE) o

KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse Disclosed
gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, if appropriate,

intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

T= - BREMEEHE

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)
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TEHEE - BFH - —REERBRENER WERER B RE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status Explanation

BREMIEERANZ  FESASEEDEAE (CAETE)R(ER) BRE + - ERESE - BITRR -
BE(MAGESSEM - §IEREASE) T ERERUEEHE
KPI'A1.3 Hazardous wastes generated in total (in tonnes) and, if ~ Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, AND ENVIRONMENTAL
per facility). PROTECTION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
BRERIEIRAIL  PIELEREEEDEE (UNEGE)R(ER) BXRE + - EEGEE  BITRR -
BE(WMABESEN - BEZXMAH) T BARBERIEENE
KPIA1.4 Non-hazardous wastes generated in total (in tonnes) Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
and, if appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production AND ENVIRONMENTAL
volume, per facility). PROTECTION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
FRERIEIEAS HIFTEIVOREE R AEIELEFEHR BRE + - BEGESE - BITRIR
REEY B -
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps takento  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
achieve them. AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
BRERUEIRALE HIEBAEREEEEMNTE - KA BERE + - BEGES - BITRIR
RN BUREE B AR R ARERE L B IR 25
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set AND ENVIRONMENTAL

and steps taken to achieve them. PROTECTION
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status Explanation

[EHEA2 : EREA

Aspect A2: Use of

Resources

— MR HEER [ + - BEGES - BITRIR
BRUERER(BIERER « KEREMEMED) R

5T BRAANEE - #1788 BT BFRES-

General disclosure Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw AND ENVIRONMENTAL
materials. PROTECTION

Note: Resources may be used for production, storage, transportation, buildings, electronic
equipment, etc.

BRERUERA2)  RERESHNERER SHEEER(NE - A BEEE + - EiRESE - BITRER
MRFEE(ATFETERE) REE (G T ERERUEENE
S8 - FEREHE)
KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity AND ENVIRONMENTAL
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). PROTECTION

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
FRENIEIEA22  BFEKEREE(NMNSESSA - BIERES DHR + - EBGESE - BITRR -
#) - T BRERUEERNE
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
production volume, per facility). AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

XIl. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
BRENIEIEA2ZS RUPFET U REERER MR B R REIEL 2R - EHGES - BITRIR
B IRFTERER B P ©
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
steps taken to achieve them. AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
BRERIEIRAZL  HICREGERR ERIAERIEE - KRR BERE - ERGESE - BITIRIR
SERK G B AR R ARERIIE L B 1R PTEREREY
KPI'A2.4 Description of issue in sourcing water, water efficiency ~ Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
target(s) and steps taken to achieve them. AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
BRERUEIRA2ZS B mATAREMBNAE (UEFE) R(E TEs HiPEER RSP RBEME
R)BEEEMEE - BIE A - FTLALLRRSR B RUE
STEANRBFINER -
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Not applicable Our operations do not involve
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit the use of packaging materials.
produced. Therefore, this KPI is not

applicable to our business.
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status Explanation

[EHA3 : RERRREIR

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

— MR HEER [ + - EEGES - BITRIR

BIREITABIRBERAABEREKNERZEHNBUR -

General disclosure Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and AND ENVIRONMENTAL

natural resources. PROTECTION

FRERIEIRASl  HAEBEBHRBERARAABERNEATZER CBERE - EEGESE - BITIRIR
EERERBEATENTY -

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the  Disclosed VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
environment and natural resources and the actions taken AND ENVIRONMENTAL

to manage them. PROTECTION




128 EIEEFEBAR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 43 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

RIE - HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HEER
Disclosure
Status

)
Section/
Explanation

IERHER - BEH —REBERBREANESR

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of
Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

BALE
B. Social
BEREIER
Employment and Labor Practices
[EEB1 : &%
Aspect B1: Employment
—RRIREE EHE s AR R
EAF KRR E MIBREA  TIENH - REA - TSEHE ST
1t~ RIBARA R H 5538 AR EY
(a) 126 AN
(b) BTHETARBEATZENBBERLROINER -
General disclosure Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
Information on: WIN SITUATION
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BASEREIRBIY RIER - EBREAR (2 BEEER)  Fikdhl BERE N RABRE - EERHF -
Kl &5 1) B BR8N - T BERERUEEHNE
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.g., full Disclosed VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
time or part-time), age group and geographical region. WIN SITUATION
XII.OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)
BSENIEIRBI2  RMR - FRARIMREISHWEERKALE - BIRE T BRERUEEHNE
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Disclosed XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

geographical region.
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status Explanation

[EEB2 : REREZE
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

—RRIREE E#HE N BARAE - ERAR
FARMtZ 2 TFRRBERRERSBEBELEEN

(a)  BR R

(b) BTHETARERZENEMERNROINER -

General disclosure Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
Information on: WIN SITUATION

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BRENIERBL]  BEZF(BERERFE)SFEAITHNAR CEE N AARZ - R -
Kb . T= - BERERUEEME

KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work related fatalities occurred in Disclosed VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
each of the past three years including the reporting year. WIN SITUATION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
FENIEIEB22 AL GIEATIEAS - EEE N RARE - ERHE -
T BARERUEEHNE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)
B EMIEIRB23  HMUPTERAN B ERE T 2 - URIEE ERE N RARER - ERHE -
HITRERTE - [EmE
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  Disclosed VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-

adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. WIN SITUATION
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Disclosure

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status

B e
Section/
Explanation

B3 : /& MiEF

Aspect B3: Development and Training

— R BRE
BEARE S BT TIEBE A AH SRR - WiliEINES -
General disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
waork. Description of training activities.

Disclosed

AR RURINEESEN(ERERRE  FREEE BRE
F)EPNFIEEBSLL ©

KPI'B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Disclosed
employee category (e.g., senior management, middle
management).

FRENIEIEB2 RURIREEENES BEREETKZIE BERE
SRR -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Disclosed
gender and employee category.

[ETEBS : 35 TR

Aspect B4: Labor standards

—ARBEE B

A IEET s TH)

(a) BE &

(b) BFHEITAGEAZ BB ERIROINER -

General disclosure Disclosed

Information on:

(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing use of child labour or forced
labour.
FRENIEIEBL MR BEELNEEAREET REHY BRE
T o
KPI'B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices  Disclosed

to avoid child and forced labour.

RMERIRERIENRERE BB TR B8

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

FASEAA M FE17B4.2

Disclosed

N RARAE - EBHE

VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

N AARA - ERHER
= BIRARRBURIRHE
VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

N AARA - ERER -
= BIRARRBURIRRE
VIII. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

N RARAE - ERAR

VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION

N AARAE - EBHE

VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION
N AARA RS

VIIl. PEOPLE-ORIENTED, WIN-
WIN SITUATION
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Status Explanation

EEED

Operating Practices
fETEBS : HAEHEEE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

—MRBEE [ T BREKE  AaRE

ERHEEHNRIE I RERBGER

General disclosure Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,

Policies on managing the environmental and social risks of the supply chain. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

FRERUEIEBS MR E DA HEMEE - B T BRREE - ARTE
T BRERURIEHNE

KPI'B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(KPIs)

RASRAE IR0 MBI AHEEMEN  mARTARIE CSRE T BREKE  AaRTE
Pl S e - LARBRENHNITRER
iz

KPI'B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
number of suppliers where the practices are being COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored. REGULATIONS

RASRAEEIRB0.3 HHABRMEAIHEREEERGNRERMERE SERE T RREE - SRPE
BREVEH] - LARAERANTIT MBS ITE o

KPI'B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
implemented and monitored. REGULATIONS

BRERIEIRB.A HEREHERREEZARRERNMRE BEERE T BREREE - ARSPA
BB - ANAERAEIT MBI E »

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmental  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
preferable products and services when selecting COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND

suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. REGULATIONS
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Disclosure
Status

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of
Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

B e
Section/
Explanation

[EmB6 : EmEE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

—RRIREE

BREPRMHERNRBOREREELZS  BE

ROTER

(a) B K

(b) BTHETABERTENERERNROINER -

General disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and
privacy matters in relation to products and services provided and methods
of redress.

BASEAE 5 1B6.1

BRERALEEEAKE

Disclosed

EEXCEXEMEHT AL REZRIEMIMm
AR E DL

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

TiE A

KPI BB.1 Not applicable

BASEIEIRB6.2 EREMNER MRS E A REE L - BERE

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Disclosed
received and how they are dealt with.

BASRAEIEIRB6.3 HE B A SRS A BAE A BB - EE

KPI'B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

RASRAEUIEIZR64  IRIEESRTHENERDBIER -

Not applicable

TiE A

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Not applicable
procedures.

BARAERIEIEBES  HUEBEBBRRERLBECK - URERER BRE
TTMEEERTTE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Disclosed

policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

N RmHRE - RHIRT

[X. DEEP CULTIVATION OF
QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

IR B BUE R AR RN
IR -

This KPI is not applicable to our
business.

N X E @%%ﬁ
T BRERUER

IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF
QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

N AmE - RIIRS
IX. DEEP CULTIVATION OF
QUALITY, NEW SERVICE

IR B RUE R T AN
PIEERTS -

This KPI is not applicable to our
business.

T BRERE  BRTE

X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of Disclosure Section/
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status Explanation

fEmEBT : RES
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

— MR HEER EHE T BREREE - ARSPA
BREAN LR - BR - MG BEN ¢
(a) B R
(b) BTHETAGEATENBBERLIROINER -
General disclosure Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
Information on: COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
(a) the policies; and REGULATIONS
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
MRAERIEIRBL  RERPAHFTAIEESREVEEEN CEEE T RELE  ARE
BISRARMRBE REFAARR - T BARERUEEHNE
KPI'B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
practices brought against the issuer or its employees COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of the REGULATIONS
cases. XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)
BRENIEIRBT.2 MBS R RBER WA RE ERE T BREREKE - AR
RITE -
KPI'B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
BENIEIREI3  HlmMERRE ITRHNRESE - ERE T BREKE AR
KPI'B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Disclosed X. INTEGRITY OPERATION,
directors and staff. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS
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BREBR

Disclosure

IERHER - BEH —REBERBREANESR

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Overview of
Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Status

)
Section/
Explanation

[EEBS : HERE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

— R ERE
ERALGE2EREREEMTHERENEREER TS E &M

& F 5 BB ©

General disclosure Disclosed

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.

FRAEMIEIEES  FIEREE(IMHE  REFEEH BTIFEXR BEE
f2pE - Xt - B8F

KPI'B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g., education, Disclosed
environmental concerns, labor needs, health, culture and
sports).

BREDUEIRR2 HEEIHBAMBAER(INS ERERE) [

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or time) to the focus ~ Disclosed
area.

DL : RIZEERIRE

Part D : Climate-related disclosure

RIKER B

) Ea

(1 R

(1) B e

v) EEEER

Climate-related disclosure Disclosed

(1) Governance

(1) Strategy

(1 Risk management

(IV) Indicators and objectives

T ERROL - EEEHE

XI. GATHERING SHIMMER,
GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY

T ERROL - @EHE

XI. GATHERING SHIMMER,
GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY

T EROL - mgEE
T BIREBUEIRRE
XI. GATHERING SHIMMER,
GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY
XII. OVERVIEW OF KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(KPIs)

+ - EEGEE - BTTRIR

VII. LOW-CARBON OPERATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION
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TEEAER
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# o

EZERA - SKFNEEERREHR AN
SERMHERMREARRARR(TRER])#
@ IR EBE - BIE B R MBERIA KR
RITERERHEMMNEEBEE -

ARARPRFACEEAKFINEERER
- BPNRSEEERNBEN - EFEH
ERNEBTEEERENNRARGFNEEE
AER  TEAMEE  AABBERREER
RABSETH  URHEEENREERE -

TEER
ARA—HEBTEKFNEERER -EFER
AR EREARR  EERSHENERE
REZ - UREHREAMORERMABPEE -
EECEEARAEXERARRNATRE
It - WEMEITRHE - ARBREEBIER
BARFERBEAEREREEEERZKKEAE
HREAER - KRR EREAEANEEREE
REXBORE - AELEET  URKRRE
YRENS  c EFERBERNBHARR D
XERRERARREARM -

ARRERANETEEBRARXIMBRIDA
A EmARA( EmRR ) EC (235280
o) EH B EE A TRI([REERTA )M
FEERT R RA KT AR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (“Kaisa
Prosperity” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is
committed to maintaining high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential in providing
a framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving high corporate
governance standards to enhance corporate performance and accountability. The Board
will strive to uphold the principles of corporate governance and adopt sound corporate
governance practices to meet the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas
such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. An internal corporate governance policy was adopted by the
Board aiming at providing greater transparency, quality of disclosure as well
as more effective risk and internal control. The execution and enforcement
of the Company’s corporate governance system is monitored by the Board
with regular assessments. The Company believes that its commitment to
high-standard practices will translate into long-term value and ultimately maximise
returns to shareholders. The Company’s management pledges to build long-
term interests for shareholders via, for example, conducting business in a socially
responsible and professional manner. The Board continues to monitor and review the
Company's corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.

The Company has adopted and complied the principles and code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 (including
Part 2) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

Executive Directors:

Mr. KWOK Ying Shing (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Chuangiang (Chief executive officer)
Mr. LI Haiming

Mr. ZHAQ Jianhua

Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan

Ms. MOU Zhaohui

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LIU Hongbai

Ms. MA Xiumin

Mr. CHEN Bin

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company
are disclosed in the section headed "“Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the such section, to the best knowledge of
the Company, there are no other relationships (including financial, business,
family or other material relationships) among the directors and senior
management of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the company secretary of the Company
confirmed that he had received not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his knowledge and skills.

As of 31 December 2024, the Board consisted of nine Directors including
Mr. KWOK Ying Shing (Chairman), Mr. LIAO Chuangiang (Chief executive officer),
Mr. LI Haiming, Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan, Mr. ZHAQ Jianhua, and Ms. MOU Zhaohui
as the executive Directors, and Mr. LIU Hongbai, Ms. MA Xiumin and Mr. CHEN
Bin as the independent non-executive Directors. The overall management of the
Company's operation is vested in the Board.
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Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board takes on the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall
strategies, risk management and internal control systems, and monitor the
performance of the senior executives. The Directors have to make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information about
the Company so that they can discharge their duties and responsibilities as
Directors. In particular, through regular Board meetings and receipt of regular
financial and business updates, all Directors are kept abreast of the conduct,
business activities and development, as well as regulatory updates applicable to
the Company.

Liahility insurance for Directors and members of the senior management of the
Company was maintained by the Company with coverage for any legal liabilities
which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of the executive Directors of the Company along
with other senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and
conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and
senior executives meet regularly to review the performance of the businesses
of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operational decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where management should report back,
and will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that
they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Compliance With the Model Code for Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 of the
Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms
than the Model Code for securities transactions by the relevant employees of the
Group, who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to paragraph C.2.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. For the year
ended 31 December 2024, in order to reinforce their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility Mr. KWOK Ying Shing acted as Chairman of the
Company and Mr. LIAQ Chuangiang acted as Chief Executive Officer.

The chairman plays a leadership role and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with the good corporate governance
practice adopted by the Company. He is also responsible for instilling corporate
culture and developing strategic plans for the Company.

Under code provisions C.2.2 and C.2.3 of the CG Code, the chairman would
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and would be responsible for ensuring that Directors receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner.

On the other hand, the chief executive officer primarily focuses on developing
and implementing objectives and policies approved and delegated by the
Board. The chief executive officer is also responsible for the Group’s day-to-day
management and operations and the formulation of the organisation structure,
control systems and internal procedures and processes of the Company for the
Board's approval.

Under the leadership of Mr. Kwok, the Board works efficiently and performs its
responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues discussed in a timely manner.
In addition, as all major decisions are made in consultation with members of
the Board and relevant Board committee, and there are three independent non-
executive Directors on the Board offering independent perspective, the Board
is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure
sufficient balance of powers within the Board. The Board shall nevertheless
review the structure and composition of the Board from time to time in light of
prevailing circumstances, to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
practices of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board by
virtue of their independent judgement and their views carry significant weight in
the Board's decision. They bring an impartial view on the Company’s strategies,
performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and have
provided their professional advice to the Board.

The Board also considers that the independent non-executive Directors can
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategies, results
and management so as to safeguard the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of a listed
issuer must include at least three independent non-executive Directors. Pursuant
to Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,at least one of the independent non-executive
directors have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors of a listed issuer must represent at least
one-third of the Board of such listed issuer, during the period from the Listing
Date to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with Rules
3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

Mechanism to Ensure Board Independence

The Company has in place mechanisms to ensure independent views and input
are available to the Board. The Board shall at all times comprise at least three
independent non-executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the
Board, such that there is always a strong element of independence on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement. Each independent non-
executive Director is required to provide an annual confirmation of his/her
independence to the Company and the Nomination Committee of the Company
is responsible to assess the independence and time commitment of each
independent non-executive Director at least annually.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, are given
equal opportunity and channels to communicate and express their views to the
Board and have separate and independent access to the management of the
Group in order to make informed decisions. To facilitate proper discharge of their
duties, all the Directors are entitled to seek advice from the company secretary
of the Company or, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional
advice at the Company's expense. The chairman of the Board will hold meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors without the involvement of other
Directors at least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than by written resolutions. Such Director will be required to declare his/her
interests before the meeting and abstain from voting and not counted towards
the quorum on the relevant resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors
who, and whose associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the
Board meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the mechanisms are effective in
ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the Board during the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of communications. Meeting agenda
for regular meetings are set after consultation with the Chairman. All Directors
are given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda.

At least 14 days’ notice will be given for a regular Board meeting to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice will be given.

All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to the matters in issue
in advance before the meetings and have the opportunity to include matters in
the agenda for Board meetings. They can separately get access to the senior
executives and the company secretary at all time and may seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. Minutes of board meetings and
meetings of Board committees are kept by the company secretary and such
minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.5 of the CG Code, minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board committees record in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes
of Board meetings were sent to all the Directors for their comment and record
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the Board meeting was
held.

Other than regular meetings, the Chairman also meets with non-executive
Directors (including Independent non-executive Directors) without the presence
of executive Directors, to facilitate an open discussion among the non-executive
Directors on issues relating to the Group.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.7 of the CG Code, if a substantial shareholder or
a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board
which the Board has determined to be material, the matter would be dealt with
by way of a physical meeting, rather than a written resolution. Independent non-
executive Directors who have no material interest in the transaction would be
present at such Board meeting.

The Board procedures are in compliance with the articles of associations of the
Company (the “Articles”), as well as relevant rules and regulations.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company for
a specific term of three years. Such term is subject to his/her re-election by the
Company at an annual general meeting (“AGM") upon retirement. The Articles
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the
Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the members of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Besides,
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles, at every AGM of the Company, one third of the
Directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and being eligible offer themselves for re-election.

The members of the Company may, at any general meetings convened and
held in accordance with the Articles, remove a Director at any time before
the expiration of his period of office notwithstanding anything contrary in the
Articles or in any agreement between the Company and such Director.

Training and Support for Directors

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each newly
appointed Director or alternative Director would receive an induction package
covering the Group's businesses and the statutory regulatory obligations of a
director of a listed company. The Group also provided briefings and other training
to develop and refresh Directors” knowledge and skills. The Group continuously
updates Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance
notes are issued to Directors and senior management, where appropriate, to
ensure awareness of best corporate governance practices.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment and subsequently,
necessary briefing and professional development to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.
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According to paragraph C.1.4 of the CG code as set out in Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules, Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills that enable the
Directors to discharge their duties properly. All Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company's expenses.

Prior to the Listing Date, all Directors have been given the relevant guideline
materials regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors and duty of disclosure
of interests. In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
updates will be provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, all the Directors had participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways of attending
the director training webcast series organized by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and/or attending trainings organized by professional firm and/or reading
materials relevant to the Company's businesses or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy by setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

There were two female Directors and one female senior management during
the year ended 31 December 2024. The Board aims to maintain at least the
current level of female representation and will strive to achieve a balanced
gender diversity based on stakeholders' expectations and best practices with
the ultimate goal of increasing the proportion of female members over time
as and when suitable candidates are identified. The Board believes that the
current composition of the Board satisfies the Company’s specific needs for
gender diversity. The Company will also ensure that there is gender diversity
when recruiting staff at mid to senior level of the Group so that it will have a
pipeline of female senior management and potential successors to the Board in
the future. The Board will regularly review its policies and procedures for board
diversity, taking into account relevant data and feedback from stakeholders, and
will take appropriate action as needed to ensure that it is achieving its gender
diversity goals.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had 12,013 employees in total comprising of
approximately 7,806 males and 4,207 females (that is, a male-to-female ratio of
6.5:3.5).
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During the year, after the annual review of the implementation and effectiveness
of the Board Diversity Policy, the Board is satisfied that the Board Diversity Policy
has been properly implemented and is effective.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Board and the Company'’s affairs. All Board
committees are established with defined written terms of reference which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
eXpense.

Nomination Committee and policy

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for, among other things,
considering and recommending to the Board suitably qualified persons to become
the member of the Board and is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board on a regular basis and as required.

Its written terms of reference cover recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors, evaluation of Board composition and the management
of Board succession with reference to certain guidelines as endorsed by the
Committee. These guidelines include appropriate professional knowledge
and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, and
time commitments of members. The Nomination Committee will select and
recommend candidates for directorship after consideration of referrals and
engagement of external recruitment professionals, when necessary.

The composition of the Nomination Committee during the financial year under
review was as follows:

Chairman:
Mr. KWOK Ying Shing, executive Director

Members:

Mr. LIU Hongbai, independent non-executive Director
Ms. MA Xiumin, independent non-executive Director
Mr. CHEN Bin, independent non-executive Director
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The Nomination Committee was primarily responsible for the following duties:

e to review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of our Board;

e toidentify, select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship, and ensure the diversity of the
Board members;

e toassess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;

e to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Directors and succession
planning for the Directors;

e toreview the nomination policy, Board diversity policy and any measurable
objectives for implementing such policies as may be adopted by the Board
from time to time and to review the progress on achieving the objectives.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for, among other things, the review
and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting process, internal controls and
review of the Company’s financial statements. Their written terms of reference
are in line with the provisions under the CG Code and explains the role and the
authority delegated to the Audit Committee by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Audit Committee during the
financial year under review was as follows:

Chairman:
Mr. CHEN Bin, independent non-executive Director

Members:
Mr. LIU Hongbai, independent non-executive Director
Ms. MA Xiumin, independent non-executive Director
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The Audit Committee was primarily responsible for the following duties:

to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any issues related to its
resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; and to discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to supply
non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity
that is under common control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally;

to report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

to review and monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

to oversee the Company'’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems;

to review the Company's financial controls, and unless expressly addressed
by a separate risk committee of the Board, or by the Board itself, to review
the Company’s risk management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have effective systems. The discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions;
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e to consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to such findings;

e to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Company and its subsidiaries;

e to review the external auditor's management letter, any material queries
raised by the auditor to the management in respect of the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
response, and to ensure that the Board provides a timely response to the
issues raised;

e to review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems and the internal audit function;

e todevelop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

e toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors of the Company;

e to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report of the Company; and

e toreview the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year.

The Audit Committee had been reviewed the audited annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024, and discussed matters such as
auditing, risk management, internal control and financial statements with the
management of the Company and the external auditors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for, among other
things, making recommendations to the Directors’ remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by
the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level of their remuneration and
compensation are reasonable. Their written terms of reference are in line with
the provisions of the Code. Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the
remuneration committee would make available its terms of reference, explaining
its role and the authority delegated to it by the Board. The composition of the
Remuneration Committee during the financial year under review was as follows:

Chairman:
Mr. LIU Hongbai, independent non-executive Director

Members:

Mr. KWOK Ying Shing, executive Director

Ms. MA Xiumin, independent non-executive Director
Mr. CHEN Bin, independent non-executive Director

The Remuneration Committee was primarily responsible for the following duties:

e to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and
structure for all directors” and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

e toreview and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

e to determine, with delegated responsibility, the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management members of
the Company;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors;

e toconsider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the group;
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e toreview and approve the compensation payable to executive directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

e toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

e to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Group and details of the remuneration of the
Directors are set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” and note
12 to the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration packages
of the executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and senior
management members of the Company, and reviewed the collective performance
and individual performance as well as the performance-based bonus payment of
them.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2024 is set out below:

AE

s E (AR T) Remuneration bands (RMB) Number of persons
021,000,000 0to 1,000,000 3
1,000,00122,000,000 1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1
4

HESZRXE

HEUFNANBHILFE SFHES
EEEENEECLESERUMKEK
EMRBRBITZESHR BT ¢

Meeting Attendance

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings and meetings of the Board
committees and general meetings during the year ended 31 December 2024, as
well as the number of such meetings held, is set out as follows:
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HEBITHNESE Meetings attended/held

E= REEEE® ERZEE FMZEES e N -

Nomination Audit Remuneration General
Directors Committee Committee Committee Meetings

BITES
Executive Directors
FPERAR S A (B EET) 3/3 TE A A T A ”n
Mr. KWOK Ying Shing (Note 1) N/A N/A N/A
BEmkst 4/4 1/1 TERA 11 11
Mr. LIAO Chuangiang N/A
TS EE 3/4 AN iE A TiEHA TEA Al
Mr. LI Haiming N/A N/A N/A
SRS 4/4 TiEA TiEA A ”n
Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan N/A N/A N/A
ARG T A (P EE2) 1/4 NiE NiE A NiE NiE
Mr. XIE Binhong (Note 2) N/A N/A N/A N/A
FHEEZE S 4/4 TiEHA TEA TiEA 1N
Mr. ZHAO Jianhua N/A N/A N/A
2B 4/4 ANiE TEA TiEA ”n
Ms. MQOU Zhaohui N/A N/A N/A
BUIFHITES
Independent Non-Executive Directors
2Lt 4/4 171 3/3 il 171
Mr. LIU Hongbai
BEHLLt 4/4 171 3/3 1”7 171
Ms. MA Xiumin
PR XE 5% A= 4/4 ”n 3/3 11 n
Mr. CHEN Bin

MisE Notes:

1. FPEAKIGCER024F4R16AER T ANITE 1. Mr. KWOK Ying Shing was appointed as an executive director on 16 April 2024.

g

2. PR AERN20245F4 A 16BBHIITES - 2. Mr. XIE Binhong resigned as an executive director on 16 April 2024.
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Audit Service
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Corporate Governance Function
The Board has delegated the functions set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code to the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
its Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The company
secretary may from time to time and as the circumstances require provide
updated written training materials relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group. In the preparation of financial statements, the Hong Kong financial
reporting standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to present
a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual
and interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure and
announcements in a timely manner. Pursuant to code provision D.1.1 of the CG
Code, management would provide sufficient explanation and information to the
Board to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of SFAI (HK) CPA Limited, the
Company’s external auditor, are set out on pages 179 to 184 of the “Independent
Auditor's Report” in this annual report.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the fee paid/payable to SFAI (HK) CPA Limited
in respect of its audit services provided to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024 is set out below:

e EHER
Fees Paid/Payable

AR®TR
RMB’000

1,500
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems and for reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. The systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for publications and the
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company's
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted risk management procedures and
guidelines with defined authority for implementation by key business processes
and office functions. The Board, together with the Audit Committee, collect the
information from the risk management system, include discussions of risk and
oversight of the management of those risks into the agenda of Board meetings.

An internal audit department has been established to perform regular financial
and operational reviews and conduct audit of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The senior management reviews and evaluates the control process and monitors
any risk factors on a regular basis and reports to the Board and the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances and identified
risks. The work carried out by the internal audit department will ensure the
internal controls are in place and functioning properly as intended. In addition,
the Company, through the Audit Committee, has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and finance
department and internal audit department, and their training programmes and
budget.

During the course of audit performed by the external auditors, they reported on
the weaknesses of the Group's risk management, internal control and accounting
procedures which came to their attention during the year.

The Directors, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
control, at least annually, for the year ended 31 December 2024. After such
review, the Board considered that the Company’s enhanced internal control
system was adequate and effective.
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Anti-corruption and Whistleblowing

The Group has an internal audit department that comprehensively coordinates
and is responsible for the anti-corruption construction work. It is responsible
for investigating complaints and reports, guiding the group headquarters and
subordinate units to carry out anti-corruption publicity work, and resolutely
curbing corruption from the source.

The Group has established and adopted a whistleblower policy in accordance
with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, and adopted rules that promote and
support anti-corruption and bribery laws and regulations in accordance with code
provision D.2.7 of the CG Code.

Handling of Inside Information

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information in
compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), procedures including notification of regular blackout period and
securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and employees, identification
of project by code name and dissemination of information to stated purpose and
on a need-to-know basis have been implemented by the Group to guard against
possible mishandling and/or unauthorised use of inside information within the
Group.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established and maintained various channels of communication
with the Company’s shareholders and the public to ensure that they are kept
abreast of the Company’s latest news and business development. Information
relating to the Company’s financial results, corporate details, property projects
and major events are disseminated through publications of interim and annual
reports, announcements, circulars, press release and newsletters. The Board
believes that effective investor relations can contribute towards lower cost
of capital, higher market liquidity for the Company's stock and a more stable
shareholder base. Therefore, the Company is committed to maintaining a high
level of corporate transparency and following a policy of disclosing relevant
information to Shareholders, investors, analysts and bankers in a timely manner.
Keeping them aware of the Group's corporate strategies and business operations
is one of the key missions of the Company's investor relations team.
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The general meetings are valuable forums for direct communications between
the Board and shareholders. The Directors and members of various Board
committees will attend the general meetings of the Company. Shareholders
can raise questions directly to the Board in respect of the performance and
future development of the Group. At other times, Shareholders and investors
can put enquires by writing to the Company for the attention of an Executive
Director, or the Company Secretary, whose contact channels are set out below.
The shareholder communication policy encourages all forms of communication
and welcomes feedback, questions, or concerns from shareholders and aims to
ensures that shareholders are provided with timely access to the Company's
information. The policy has been and will be reviewed and updated periodically
to remain relevant and effective.

Shareholders may put forward their written enquiries to the Board. In this regard,
the Shareholders may send those enquiries or requests as mentioned to the
following:

Address: Room 507, Block A, Kaisa Center, No. 66, Nanyuan Road, Futian
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC

Fax: (86) 0755-25887635
Telephone:  (86) 0755-22658123

Pursuant to the code provisions of the CG Code, in respect of each substantially
separate issue at a general meeting, a separate resolution should be proposed by
the chairman of that meeting. The chairman of the Board should attend the AGM
and invite for the chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committees any other committee (as appropriate) or in the
absence of the chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer questions at
the AGM. The chairman of the independent Board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’
approval. The Company would arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent
in the case of AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to
be sent at least 10 clear business days in the case of all other general meetings.
The chairman of a meeting should at the commencement of the meeting ensure
that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by way of a poll.
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Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting.
The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company.

There are no provisions in the Articles for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings of the Company. However, Shareholders who wish to put
forward proposals may follow the Articles for requisitioning an extraordinary
general meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements
and procedures are set out in the above paragraph.

The constitutional documents of the Company have no significant change during
the year and are available on the websites of the Company (http://www.jzywy.com)
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Purpose

This Dividend Palicy (the “Policy”) sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company will apply when considering the declaration and payment of dividends
to the shareholders of the Company.

Principles and Guidelines

The Company may, subject to the Cayman Companies Law, from time to time in
general meeting declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the Shareholders
but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board.

The Board may from time to time determine to pay to the Shareholders such
interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the profits of the
Company and in particular (but without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing) if at any time the share capital of the Company is divided into different
classes, the Board may determine to pay such interim dividends in respect of
those shares in the capital of the Company which confer on the holders thereof
deferred or non-preferential rights as well as in respect of those shares which
confer on the holders thereof preferential rights with regard to dividend and
provided that the Board acts bona fide the Board shall not incur any responsibility
to the holders of shares conferring any preference for any damage that they may
suffer by reason of the payment of an interim dividend on any shares having
deferred or non-preferential rights and may also pay any fixed dividend which
is payable on any shares of the Company half-yearly or on any other dates,
whenever such profits, in the opinion of the Board, justifies such payment.
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The Board has the discretion to declare dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, subject to the Articles of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations, taking into account the factors set out below:

e financial results;

e cash flow situation;

e husiness conditions and strategies;

e future operations and earnings;

e capital requirements and expenditure plans;

e interests of Shareholders;

e taxation considerations;

e any contractual, statutory and regulatory restrictions on payment of
dividends; and

e any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Review of the Policy
The Board will review this Policy as appropriate from time to time.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) presents the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the provision of property management services, which includes
management of properties, maintenance and repair of buildings and ancillary facilities,
community security management, car-park management, equipment installation, and
property consulting services.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s turnover
and operating profit for the year by principal activities is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business objectives of the Group are to develop its business and achieve
sustainable growth of its business. A review of the businesses of the Group during the
year using the key performance indicators, a discussion on the Group's future business
development and description of key risk factors and uncertainties that the Group is
facing are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 185
in this annual report.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2024 (2023: nil).

None of the Shareholders has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 189 and note 32
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report, respectively.

As at 31 December 2024, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB671.1 million (31 December 2023: RMB672.9 million).

BORROWINGS

The Group had no borrowing during the year ended 31 December 2024 (For the year
ended 31 December 2023: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares, or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares, were entered into
by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, every Director or other officers of the Company acting in relation
to any of the affairs of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur or
sustain in or about the execution of his/her duties in his/her office.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition

None of the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) is interested in any business which is, whether directly or indirectly,
in competition with our business. To ensure that competition will not exist in the
future, each of the Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally and irrevocably
undertaken to us in the Deed of Non-Competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
on 12 November 2018 that it will not, and will procure its close associates (other than
members of the Group) not to directly or indirectly (including through nominees) be
involved in, interested in or undertake any business that directly or indirectly competes,
or may compete, with the Group’s business, which includes providing property
management services, pre-delivery and consulting services, smart solution services
and community value-added services (collectively referred to as the “Restricted
Activities”), or hold shares or interest in any companies or business that compete or
may compete directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time
to time except where the Controlling Shareholders and their close associates hold less
than 5% of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) which is engaged in any
business that is or may be in competition with any business engaged by any member
of the Group and they do not control 10% or more of the composition of the board of
directors of such company.

The Deed of Non-Competition will lapse automatically if the Controlling Shareholders
and their close associates cease to hold, whether directly or indirectly, 50% or above
of the shares of the Company with voting rights or the shares of the Company cease to
be listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided written confirmation to
the Company pursuant to which the Controlling Shareholders confirmed
that from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, (1) each
of them has fully complied with all terms and requirements of the Deed of
Non-Competition, (2) each of them not to directly or indirectly be involved in or
undertake any business (other than our business) that directly or indirectly competes, or
may compete, with the Restricted Activities, and (3) each of them does not hold more
than 5% of the shares or interest in any companies or business that compete directly
or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to time and controls
10% or more of the composition of the board of directors of such company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed all the necessary information
provided by the Controlling Shareholders for compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition and confirmed that as of the date of this annual report, the Controlling
Shareholders have fully complied with and did not breach all terms and requirements
of the Deed of Non-Competition.

DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report, the
Directors were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. KWOK Ying Shing (Chairman) (appointed in 16 April 2024)
Mr. LIAO Chuangiang (Chief executive officer)

Mr. LI Haiming

Mr. KWOK Hiu Kwan

Mr. XIE Binhong (resigned on 16 April 2024)

Mr. ZHAO Jianhua

Ms. MQU Zhaohui

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Hongbai

Ms. MA Xiumin

Mr. CHEN Bin

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years.
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In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the members
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Pursuant to 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive Director Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the independent non-executive directors of a listed issuer must represent
at least one-third of the board. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biography of all the Directors and members of the senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 33 to 39.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into service contract with the Company
for a term of three years, and which will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party thereto giving to the other party not less than three months’ prior notice
in writing. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into letter
of appointment with the Company and is appointed for a period of three years
commencing on the date of listing/appointment (as the case may be), which will
continue subject to re-election at the Company's general meeting, and such letter of
appointment could be terminated by giving not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing. None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) by the
written resolutions of the shareholders of the company passed on 18 June 2019 (the
“Adoption Date”). A summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is
set out as follows:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to Eligible Participants as defined below with the view to achieving the
following objectives.

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance efficiency
for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship
with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the long-term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Participants of the Share Option Scheme include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives, officers or directors (including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) of the Group who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”).

Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and options under the other schemes of the
Company is 10% (“Scheme Limit") of the total number of shares in issue on
the Adoption Date, unless approval has been obtained from the shareholders of
the Company. Any increase in the Scheme Limit shall in no event result in the
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and options
under other schemes of the Company exceeding 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.

The total number of shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Share Option Scheme would be 14,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the total
number of 140,000,000 shares in issue on the Adoption Date and approximately
9.09% of the total number of 154,110,000 shares in issue as at the date of this
Report. During the year ended 31 December 2024, no options were granted under
the Share Option Scheme.



162

EEERE

Report of the Directors

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

ESREVESHNESEHE
BRIERDRIBRIE - BRIEBERHH
HA I HERNM2ME A 8 - RRIRIE A At 8
MEERSEERDNBRERBENRND
BH LR HEQRIEBRES IR D OER
BEIETEERZEENEMABETH
BAEETEMBITHEMAD ¢ (DRE
BERET RO ARTTEREEIE T
Bif2EEN R SR N BBRETT
e B TEERR © R(IRIREAES
FRENBREIR T EAERSEE
B R ER THBRE S LB
iR A A ER T SRBS HITRD
EE"H% °

REBREAZTBIRFNHR

BRRETEMA AR RNER L BRERE
T EZBEHENEEEEBRERRS
EREMERE B FHR -

BROFEEM—REFHL  TAREER
&R BB EASEARAERE TR
REFREK TAFE-

BEABRERVNNR

BRI B AERSEENRAMEZN
B M AR B S 1008 TTIE R K
HARE - RAFRAY  ARFAHREES
BR2EFWIURHAE -

EETEENEE
REBRES BERITEEREZTSRE

RERIFEE - ERNANSERAT=
ENRSE  (IBROHRE@ERE2BRER
HI([RE2 /B DR S HRERMNA
HEERKHE : (IRNREZRREZAH
Al AEE % AR AT S R RERER
B EAWTHE - Rl DaEE - i
EETEEMS - MiE2 BHARNR
BRprEm T RREERA - AEEZL
M) B TE RS AR DR BE 3P £
MATHIE A A& &% BB KR H(E

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

EIKEZHFEBBRAT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the maximum number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme to any Eligible Participant shall not, when aggregated with: (a) any
shares issued upon exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme or options under the other schemes which have been granted to that
Eligible Participant, (b) any shares which would be issued upon the exercise of
outstanding options granted under the Share Option Scheme or options under the
other schemes granted to that Eligible Participant, and (c) any cancelled shares
which were the subject of options granted under the Share Option Scheme or
options under the other schemes which had been granted to and accepted by
that Eligible Participant, in any 12-month period up to the Offer Date (as defined
below) exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under an
option

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by the
Company at the time of grant, provided that such period of time shall not exceed
a period of ten years commencing on the date on which the share option is
deemed to be granted and accepted.

Vesting of the Share Options on a particular vesting date is conditional upon
achievement of certain performance targets by the Grantee(s) unless otherwise
waived by any one of the Directors.

Payment on acceptance of option offer
HK$1.00 is payable by the Eligible Participant of the Share Option Scheme to the
Company upon acceptance of the option offered as consideration for the grant.
None of the considerations for the grant from Eligible Participants was received
by the Company as at the date of this annual report.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share under the Share Option Scheme is determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event must be at least the higher
of: (i) the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of on which such option is offered in
writing (the "Offer Date”); (ii) the average of the official closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share, provided that for the purpose of determining the exercise price where
the shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than five business
days preceding the Offer Date, the issue price of the shares in connection with
such listing shall be deemed to be the closing price of the shares for each
business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares on the
Stock Exchange.
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(8) HERIEFTEIFIREH (8) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
FERSAERT BB A E 20296 A 188 - It The Share Option Scheme will remain valid until 18 June 2029 after which no
B EER R E B - A - IR further options shall be offered. However, the provisions of the Share Option
RGN EMABHEM T EDAREE TRK Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and effect to the extent
HRVER » LIRS ERITE 2 AT H e necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or
o] B A A sl AR 15 BE IR RE =T 21 AI IS AT B otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of this Share
SKITEREAMER - Mz ERBER A Option Scheme and the options granted prior thereto but not yet exercised
17150 1Y) B IS E B 4 45 75 S0 1] 5 RR BE IR E shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
ETTE o LTI EH Y BIEEARERTE Scheme. The summary below sets out the details of options granted as at 31
R2024F12 AN B ER BB ¢ December 2024 pursuant to the Share Option Scheme:

HzuuE
RBEZS HzuuE  BENME  12B3A
FhE RUNE  RANA NANE  LEER RuuE
ik B &R 1A1R LEE LEE i/ 1BYA
ERA REUTE 1 i3 AR hiTfE RU/&R i3
Closing price of Cancelled/
the securities forfeited/
immediately Granted  Exercised lapsed
hefore the date Balance  duringthe  duringthe during the Balance
on which the asof  yearended  yearended yearended as of
options were Exercise {January 31 December  31December 31 December 31 December
Grantee Date of grant granted  Exercise Period Price 024 02 024 2024 024
(BhR#ER) (#7)
(HKD per share) (HKD)
EAERFED
Directors of Kaisa Prosperity
BER WIETA19R ) 153 N0FIRRENNFIANA 1570 400000 - - - 400000
LIAO Chuangiang ~19.July 2019 o) 19.July 202010 18 July 2029
153 NNET A9 ZA9%7 A18H 15.70 400,000 - - - 400000
19.July 2021 to 18 July 2029
1936 N0ETA19E 2091 A18H 1570 400,000 - - - 400,000
19 July 2022 o 18 July 2029
536 ABEIANEEIETA18H 1570 800,000 - - - 800,000
19.July 2023 to 18 July 2029
558 WYFTA19A 3% N0FTAIEZENNEIAA 1570 10,000 - - - 10000
MA Xiumin 19.July 2019 19.July 2020 to 18 July 2029
153 WNEIABEANEIABE 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19July 2021 to 18 July 2029
1536  NNEIAI9EZNNETA18E 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19.uly 2022 to 18 July 2029
5%  ABETABEN9EIARE 1570 20,000 - - - 20000

19.July 2023 to 18 July 2029
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HEuNE
RBERE HzuuE  BEANE  128%A
JElE RUNE  1ANA RANE  LEER  RuuE
Rt A 181R LEE LLEE i/ 1AYA
25U i i3 A R BB/ &R i3
Closing price of Cancelled/
the securities forfeited/
immediately Granted Exercised lapsed
hefore the date Balance  duringthe duringthe during the Balance
on which the asof  yearended  yearended yearended as of
options were Exercise {January 31 December  31December 31 December 31 December
Grantee Date of grant granted  Exercise Period Price 024 2024 024 2024 024
(8RR (#7x)
(HKD per share) (HKD)
8t WI9ETAISA 183 N0FTRISEEYFTIA18E 1570 10000 - - - 10,00
LIU Hongbai 19July 2019 19July 202010 18 July 2029
5% WNETANEENIETA18H 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19.July 2021 10 18 July 2029
1836 ARFIANBENNFIANE 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19.July 2022 to 18 July 2029
5% NBFIANEENNEIAE 1570 20,000 - - - 20000
19.July 2023 10 18 July 2029
i M9F7A198 1536 0NETANEEIETA18H 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
CHEN Bin 19.July 2019 19.July 2020 to 18 July 2029
1536 WETANEEIET A18H 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19.July 2021 to 18 July 2029
53 ANEIANBENNEIABE 1570 10,000 - - - 10,000
19.July 2022 to 18 July 2029
153 ABEIABEANEIABE 1570 20000 - - - 20000
19.July 2023 t0 18 July 2029
HfbfEa WYFTA19A 183 ANFIANRENNEIARA B0 1580000 - - - 158000
Other Employees ~ 19.July 2019 19.July 2020 o 18 July 2029
183 WNETABEANEIABE 1570 1,580,000 - - - 1,580,000
19July 2021 t0 18 July 2029
1836 ANEIABEANEIABE 1570 1,580,000 - - - 1,580,000
19 July 20220 18 July 2029
1536 ABETAEEANE A8 1570 2,180,000 - - - 2,180,000
19.July 2023 to 18 July 2029
&5 Total 9,070,000 - - - 9,070,000

72024512 A31 8 -+ 9,070,00017 BE A% 4 AT ¥

1Tl »

As at 31 December 2024, 9,070,000 options were exercisable.
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Notes:

(a) The above Share Options shall be vested in four tranches in accordance with the following
dates: (i) up to 20% of the Share Options granted to each grantee at any time after the
expiration of 12 months from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2020; (ii) up to 40% of the
Share Options granted to each grantee at any time after the expiration of 24 months from
the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2021; {iii) up to 60% of the Share Options granted to each
grantee at any time after the expiration of 36 months from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July
2022; and (iv) all the remaining Share Options granted to each grantee at any time after
the expiration of 48 months from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2023. The Share Options
are exercisable within a period of ten years from the date of grant, i.e. 18 July 2029,
subject to the vesting schedule. Vesting of the Share Options on a particular vesting date
is conditional upon achievement of certain performance targets by the Grantee(s) unless
otherwise waived by any one of the Directors.

(b)  The grant become effective upon approvals by the Shareholders of the Company and
Kaisa Holdings on 16 June 2020 and 15 June 2020 respectively.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2024, no options were exercised and no options were
forfeited/lapsed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Participant in any
12-month period exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from the
date of grant shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval. No such grant was made
during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities

As of 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) which (a) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange were as follows:

i.  Long position in shares of the Company (“shares”)

EERE
BRESE
FRZER

RGEBEO

Number of

ERTRG
BABE DR

underlying
shares in which
the Directors hold
under the Share
Option Scheme!'"

Approximate
percentage of
issued share®

B {E58 BEx 2,000,000 1.30%
LIAQ Chuangiang Beneficial
HEH Ba 50,000 0.03%
MA Xiumin Beneficial
23t B 50,000 0.03%
LIU Hongbai Beneficial
Re i, & 50,000 0.03%
CHEN Bin Beneficial
BT Notes:

() EFREBERESBRE ZAMBNBEF
(EEOSE-ZEc: 2 -

20 BEOHDREZE204F12A3H LD T
1541100000 B (D st E M if - REEFTE BR
AT EITE TR 2 R AT -

(1) The number of underlying shares in which the Directors hold under the Share Option
Scheme are detailed in “The Share Option Scheme” section.

(2)  The percentages were calculated based on 154,110,000 shares in issue as at 31
December 2024, assuming all the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
have been exercised.



¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2024

ii.  REBEE R

EsnR

Name of Director

ABEEER

Name of associated corporation
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ii.  Interest in associated corporation

FrEE s
HERGEE
Number of
shares
interested

R
BYBEI
Approximate
percentage
of interest

JZIC T EIREEEERER AT 4,129,708 0.06%
LIAO Chuangiang Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd.
=58 EIREEEIZERER AT 7,226,990 0.10%
LI Haiming Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd.

B EXHEFEEIN - A20245E12 8318 - &=, Save for those disclosed above, as of 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or

EETRA BB EA AL A SRR £ E
(e B % RS EOISXVE) B « 188
1) T (5 5o A L 2 T 5 e 28352
BRARBAENERMANER AR - &
1R B BB AV B R BB AT
B FAA -

BERGSESFNREH

BRENER S I TS IR I L 30R BB AR AR T EI 5D
ARAR - BERARREEFAHERRRFA
BB EMZE REEFAREBARAR
kAT E ) EE AR (D BB 75 T s

EEZXS REREREHER

BRRAE SRR B EEEIN  EFRE
MEEREMENAAR - BRI AE S ERN B
NEFI M BRF RS EE2024F 128318 IEF
ERIAEMDAERZRS - BHRERE
- BEEEEREEENERER

chief executive had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFQ, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Schemes as set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangements or contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or their subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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FERRER

R2024F 128318 - HEEFA - THAL(BR
AAREERFEEBITHRABIN BB AR
RIS R E RGP E336IER EFEHELM
AR BN SABRE IR (DA s SR B

EBRRER

Name of substantial shareholder

EREEREEER AR ([ERFER])

Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (“Kaisa Holdings")
Paramount Access Investments Limited
(“Paramount Access”)

RERBERRAR(EE)

Ye Chang Investment Company Limited
(“Ye Chang”)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
The Directors are of the view that during the year ended 31 December 2024, none
of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly with the Company’s business which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance between the Controlling Shareholder and any of its
subsidiaries and the Group was made during the year ended 31 December 2024 save as
disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2024, so far as the Directors were aware, persons other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or a short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFQ are set out as follows:

HAEQTE BT
BRABA T 2L
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital of
Capacity shares the Company
(FE1) (%)
(Note 1) (%)
SR EE R 103,530,000 (L) 67.18
(MH3E2)
Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2)
Ry EE R 103,530,000 (L) 67.18
(B¥7E2)
Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2)
EnEEA 103,530,000 (L) 67.18
(H¥&x2)
Beneficial owner (Note 2)
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Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.
2. Ye Chang is beneficially wholly-owned by Paramount Access, which is in turn wholly-owned by

Kaisa Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, each of Kaisa Holdings and Paramount Access is deemed to
be interested in the same number of Shares which Ye Chang is interested in.

As at 31 December 2024, 103,530,000 Shares have been pledged to Safe Castle Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Shandong Hi-Speed Capital Limited. China Shandong Hi-Speed
Capital Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited
(formerly known as China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 412).

3. The percentages were calculated based on 154,110,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2024.

Save for those disclosed above, as of 31 December 2024, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, no other persons had any interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 326 to 328 of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and services from
its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 50% of its goods and services to its 5 largest
customers with its largest customer (namely Kaisa Group) contributed approximately
11% of the Group's revenue. Details of the largest customer are set out in note 5(c) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Except for the above mentioned note 5(c) to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year ended 31 December 2024, none of the Director, their close
associate or a shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. In
relation to the related party transactions which also constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions, the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had conducted certain continuing
connected transaction with connected persons of the Group as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements and below:

1. The Deed of HK Trademark Licensing

On 20 November 2018, a deed of trademark licensing was entered into between
the Company and Kaisa Holdings (the “Deed of HK Trademark Licensing”),
pursuant to which Kaisa Holdings agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally
grant to the Company and other members of the Group the right to (i) use or
(i) sub-license to a third party due to necessary needs arising from its usual
and ordinary course of business and other activities (the “Licensed Scope”)
certain trademarks (the “Kaisa HK Trademarks”) registered in Hong Kong
for a perpetual term commencing from the date of the Deed of HK Trademark
Licensing on a royalty-free basis.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Deed of HK Trademark Licensing will constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon
Listing.

As the right to use the Kaisa HK Trademark is granted to the Group on a royalty-
free basis, the transactions under the Deed of HK Trademark Licensing will
be within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules upon Listing, and will be exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Deed of HK Trademark Licensing have been set out in the
section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS™ in the Company's prospectus dated 26
November 2018 (the “Prospectus”).
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The PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement

On 20 November 2018, a trademark licensing agreement was entered into
between the Company and Kaisa Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (FEJK S = E (&
1) B BR A 7)) (formerly known as Kaisa Real Estate (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (FEJkZEHb 2 ORII) B PR A &))), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Kaisa Holdings, (the “PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement”), pursuant to
which Kaisa Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally
grant to the Company and other members of the Group the right to (i) use or (ii)
sub-license to a third party due to necessary needs arising from the Licensed
Scope certain trademarks (the “Kaisa PRC Trademarks”) registered in the PRC
for a perpetual term commencing from the date of the PRC Trademark Licensing
Agreement on a royalty-free basis.

Kaisa Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of Kaisa Holdings, which is
one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the PRC
Trademark Licensing Agreement will constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon Listing.

As the right to use the Kaisa PRC Trademark is granted to the Group on a royalty-
free basis, the transactions under the PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement will
be within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules upon Listing, and will be exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement have been set out in the
section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Prospectus.

Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement

On 9 November 2023, the Company entered into a property sales assistance
services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2023 Property Sales
Assistance Services Framework Agreement”), agreeing to provide to Kaisa
Group and/or its associates the sales assistance services, for a term commencing
from 1 January 2024 until 31 December 2026.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon Listing.
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The property sales assistance services under the 2023 Property Sales Assistance
Services Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2026 will not exceed RMB10,000,000, RMB10,000,000 and RMB12,500,000,
respectively, which was duly passed during the extraordinary general meeting
held on 8 January 2024.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total amount of commission fee
payable by Kaisa Group for the sales assistance services amounted to RMBO,
which is within the annual cap of RMB10,000,000.

Details of the 2023 Property Sales Assistance Services Framework Agreement
have been set out in the announcement dated 9 November 2023.

Property Management Services Framework Agreement

On 9 November 2023, the Company entered into a property management services
framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2023 Property Management
Services Framework Agreement”), agreeing to provide to Kaisa Group and/or
its associates the property management services, for a term commencing from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2026.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Property Management Services Framework Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon Listing.

The property management services under the 2023 Property Management
Services Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2026 will not exceed RMB400,000,000, RMB500,000,000 and RMB600,000,000,
respectively, which was duly passed during the extraordinary general meeting
held on 8 January 2024.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total amount of fees payable by Kaisa
Group for the property management services amounted to RMB157,930,840,
which is within the annual cap of RMB400,000,000.

Details of the 2023 Property Management Services Framework Agreement have
been set out in the announcement dated 9 November 2023.
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Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement

On 9 November 2023, the Company entered into an equipment installation
and maintenance services framework agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the
“2023 Equipment Installation and Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement”), agreeing to provide to Kaisa Group and/or its associates the
Equipment Installation and Maintenance Services, for a term commencing from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2026.

Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Equipment Installation Services Framework Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon Listing.

The equipment installation and maintenance services under the 2023 Equipment
Installation and Maintenance Services Framework Agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2026 will not exceed RMB90,000,000,
RMB100,000,000 and RMB110,000,000, respectively, which was duly passed
during the extraordinary general meeting held on 8 January 2024.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total amount of fees payable by Kaisa
Group for the Equipment Installation Services amounted to RMB29,164,135,
which is within the annual cap of RMB30,000,000.

Details of the 2023 Equipment Installation and Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement have been set out in the announcement dated 9 November 2023.

Property Lease Framework Agreement

On 9 November 2023, the Company entered into a property lease framework
agreement with Kaisa Holdings (the “2023 Property Lease Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group will lease from the Kaisa Group
and/or its associates (i) certain properties for office use; and (ii) certain car
parking lots for sub-leasing. The 2023 Property Lease Framework Agreement
has a term commencing from 1 January 2024 until 31 December 2026, unless
it is terminated earlier by either party pursuant to the 2023 Property Lease
Framework Agreement. Relevant subsidiaries or associated companies of both
parties will enter into separate lease agreements setting out the specific terms
and conditions based on the principles provided in the 2023 Property Lease
Framework Agreement.
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Kaisa Holdings is one of the Controlling Shareholders and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the 2020 Property Lease Framework Agreement will constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
upon Listing.

The total amount of rental payable by the Group to the Kaisa Group for properties
the Group leased for office use amounted to approximately RMB3,332,508 for the
year ended 31 December 2024, which is within the annual cap of RMB5,000,000.

The total amount of rent payable by the Group to the Kaisa Group for the car
parking lots we leased amounted to approximately RMB6,038,141 for the year
ended 31 December 2024, which is within the annual cap of RMB30,000,000.

The maximum annual fee payable by us under the 2023 Property Lease
Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2026 as follow,
which was duly passed during the extraordinary general meeting held on 8
January 2024:

Leased properties for office use ER A= HENHE S 5,000,000 5,500,000 6,000,000
Car parking lots {FEAL 30,000,000 32,500,000 35,000,000
Total Hst 35,000,000 38,000,000 41,000,000

BREABFYEMEELBZOFBIR
B EiA2023F 11 IR ©

Details of the 2023 Property Lease Framework Agreement have been set out in
the announcement dated 9 November 2023.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company have discussed with the senior management of the
Company on the agreements of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions and reviewed these continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions abovementioned have
been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing each of the Continuing
Connected Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, SFAI (HK) CPA Limited,

the auditor of the Company, has provided a letter to the Board, confirming that

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing

connected transactions abovementioned:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group;

(i) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the annual caps.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration policy (which includes the payment of the emoluments to the
employees) of the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration Committee
on the basis of the employees’ performance, qualifications and experiences. Details of
the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
of the Directors and senior management and comparable market statistics.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As a property service provider in China, the Group is required to comply with various
national and local laws and regulations on environmental protection, including laws
and regulations of air pollution, sound pollution, waste and sewage. The Group has
complied with the laws and regulations which are significant to the operation of the
Group. Further, any changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to
the attention of relevant employees and event operation units from time to time.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
STAKEHOLDERS

Workplace Quality

The Group believes that the directors, senior management and employees of the Group
are instrumental to the success of the Group and that their industry knowledge and
understanding of the market will enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in
the market.

The Group provides on-the-job training and development opportunities to enhance
its employees’ career progression. Through different trainings, staff’s professional
knowledge in corporate operations, occupational and management skills are enhanced.
The Group also organised staff-friendly activities for employees, such as annual dinner,
to promote staff relationship.

The Group provides on providing a safe, effective and congenial working environment.
Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are implemented to ensure the
working environment is healthy and safe. The Group provided health and safety
communications for employees to present the relevant information and raise
awareness of occupational health and safety issues. The Group values the health
and well-being of its staff. In order to provide employees with health coverage, its
employees are entitled to medical insurance benefits.

Relationships with the Group’s other stakeholders

The Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the services to its
customers in order to stay competitive. Save as disclosed in this report, the Directors
are not aware of any material and significant dispute between the Group and its
customers during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of at
least 25% of the Company’s issued shares as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

On 29 April 2022, Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant Thernton”) resigned and
ceased to act as the auditor of the Company (the “Independent Auditor”) and Elite
Partners Limited (“Elite Partners”) was appointed as the Independent Auditor to fill
the casual vacancy after the resignation of Grant Thornton (the “Resignation”) and to
hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM.

On 25 Qctober 2024, Elite Partners resigned as the auditor of the Company. The Board
also noted that in a public statement made by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s
Republic of China (the “MoF") on 2 August 2024, the MoF has imposed restrictions on
Elite Partners from undertaking audit services for Mainland enterprises listed outside
the Mainland for a period of five years. After taking into account the above reason and
circumstances, the Board believed that it was not appropriate to engage Elite Partners
as the auditor of the Company and hence accepted Elite Partners'resignation.

The Board appointed SFAI (HK) CPA Limited (“SFAI Hong Kong”) as the new auditor
of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Elite Partners
and to hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM.

Elite Partners has confirmed in its notice of resignation that, save as disclosed above,
there were no other matters connected with its resignation that it considered should
be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
The Board is not aware of any disagreements between the Company and Elite Partners
or other matters save as disclosed above in relation to the change of auditor that need
to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement of change of auditor
published on 25 October 2024. The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been audited by SFAI Hong Kong. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint SFAI Hong Kong
as the Independent Auditor until the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the
Board to fix their remuneration.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to
the shares of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the shareholders
of the Company by reason of their respective holding of the Company's securities.

On behalf of the Board

Kwok Ying Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2025
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To the Members of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kaisa Prosperity Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 185
to 325, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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IE%E"‘?IE@; KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

ETEETER

Key audit matter

BMEWESNEEEZSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BWE S RRARE

Impairment of trade receivables

HANER A PTG IRAR M T 20PTHEER - 702024F12831H - BES%
2 1) e U 2 5 AR SR B4 ) 40 78 A R #5455,570,0007T

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, as at
31 December 2024, the Group had trade receivables, net of allowances
amounted to approximately RMB455,570,000.

EREMTTERKESERNEREEEE((RBEEFE])
s MEGHEXRDRERERSEFRUBERENER AR
REBRERIE R AIBEETRMEL - WE B L B
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The management estimated expected credit loss (“ECL") provision for
trade receivables and the provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings as groupings of various debtors by their ageing, which are
considered of similar loss patterns, and taken into consideration the
historical recovery rates, probability of default by its customers and the
forward-looking information.

B EKE SERREBERF REEZEFFR - HHNE
HEARUBEETBRABREMEEBEN - k EXEEEREM
TEHEEREE -

We identified the impairment of trade receivables as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the significant degree of estimations by the
management of the Group.

B EKE SRR REETHETEFeEES S
BIATHRIE

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment of trade receivables
included, among others, the following:

s RERAEHEEBEBER - THREEEBNATEER
BHRARNEHEEERE

e To obtain an understanding on how the management assess
the ECL of trade receivables by applying the ECL model;

o SRR EREERN LA EKE S RRES
EEERRENER (BERROI) BT I
BEERRXM (BRERLELREE)

e To test the integrity of information used by the management
to estimate the ECL provision for trade receivables, including
the ageing analysis, on a sample basis, to the source
documents, including invoices and debit notes;

o FEBZEFLORE BFEOAREKAREE
ML R EEEREEXREREE + &

e To evaluate the appropriateness of the ECL provision
rates applied by reference to the historical recovery rates,
probability of default by its customers and forward-looking
information; and

o A BRGESVBMKRENE SHEFRETHD
= -

e To evaluate the disclosure regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables to the consolidated financial
statements.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023, were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 22 March 2024.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGE WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charge with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

e (onclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or business units within the
group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be though to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Lee Yan Fai.

SFAI (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Unit 2, 27/F, Wu Chung House
213 Queen's Road East

Wan Chai Hong Kong

Lee Yan Fai
Practising Certificate Number: P06078

Hong Kong, 25 March 2025
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meEEmRkHMEEKGER
Consolldated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

HE2024F 1283 A IFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

20244F 20234
2024 2023
AR¥ET T ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB000
Wz Revenue 6 1,735,427 1,794,267
HELLSHRX Direct operating expenses (1,290,941) (1,312,920
EX Gross profit 444,486 481,347
HAUg A - Wk M e 8 % 5E Other income, gains and losses, net 7 (7,022) (370)
HE RS HERS Selling and marketing expenses (10,854) (12,590)
TS Administrative expenses (171,250) (189,859)
TRIEERAGHEERE Impairment of financial assets and contract assets 10 (116,649) (698,562)
R (E518) Operating profit (loss) 138,711 (420,034)
AT ELETZARSN Change in fair value on financial assets at fair
SRMEEATEZS value through profit or loss 19 (89,825) (143,425)
REE N 2 REWERE Impairment loss on investment in an associate 17 - (24,070)
R (ERE Impairment loss on goodwill 18 (24,378) -
JEMREE N A A Share of results of associates 16,573 6,306
BhE Ak A Finance cost 8 (326) (673)
F%Fﬁ SR ANRF (BE) Profit (loss) before income tax 10 40,755 (581,896)
S (R EE Income tax (expense) credit 1 (15,192) 144,312
FERBF (E5E) Profit (loss) for the year 25,563 (437,584)

U AT SRR (E5E) - Profit (loss) attributable to:

—ARNATER A — Owners of the Company 14,576 (449,984)
— FEFERR i — Non-controlling interests 10,987 12,400
25,563 (437,584)

BRARET SRARERT
RMB per share RMB per share
BREF (E5E) Earnings (loss) per share 14
—EARREE — Basic and diluted 0.09 (2.92)
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rEEaRHEMEEWER
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

20245 20234
2024 2023

AR®TR ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

FERAN(EE) Profit (loss) for the year 25,563 (437,584)

FEHMEHEBX - HIBRHIE Other comprehensive expenses for the year, net of tax
B TS EFH S EFE707  Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to

EH profit or loss
RAFERLEMEEYEEABR  Fairvalue loss on financial assets at fair value through

NEREENAFEEE other comprehensive income - (11,250
FEHME2ERX Other comprehensive expenses for the year - (11,250)
FEZEWS(FAX)EEE Total comprehensive income (expenses) for the year 25,563 (448,834)

DTATEEEE2EWE  Total comprehensive income (expenses) for the year

(B )45 . attributable to:
—ARNARHEB A — Owners of the Company 14,576 (461,234)
— FEIE IR R A — Non-controlling interests 10,987 12.400

25,563 (448,834)
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wE BRI R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

202412 A31H

As at 31 December 2024

B &E

Notes

20244
2024

AR®TR
RMB'000

187

20234

2023
ARET T
RMB'000

EERAEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IRBEE Non-current assets
W - R MR Property, plant and equipment 15 19,464 19,250
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 164,031 184,041
REE N T ZRE Investments in associates 17 42,597 34,292
W EE Intangible assets 18 20,482 25,969
EES Goodwill 18 136,450 160,828
SRVEE Financial assets 19 94,481 184,306
HAbFEYGRIE Other receivables 20 3,649 8,495
R IEEE Deferred tax assets 28 361,484 309,865
842,638 927,046
RBEE Current assets
EUNE SER X Trade receivables 20 455,570 393,552
E At FEGRIE Other receivables 20 84,164 66,670
REEFHFK Payments on behalf of residents 21 135,873 95,107
BHEE Contract assets 22 54,835 52,460
FEURREE A L7008 Amounts due from related parties 23 8,562 6,697
SRHIRE Restricted cash 24 7,062 450
RekREFEEIAR Cash and cash equivalents 24 243,300 286,774
989,366 901,710
RERE Current liabilities
FERTE SRR Trade payables 25 206,574 194,032
H b FRIE QOther payables 25 329,500 359,556
aRaE Contract liabilities 22 233,890 221,268
FETEEEA TFIE Amounts due to related parties 26 2,620 4,081
HEAEG Lease liabilities 27 3,149 5,636
TENFREH: Income tax payable 86,598 81,857
862,331 866,430
RBEEFE Net current assets 127,035 35,280
EEABERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 969,673 962,326
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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20244F 20234
2024 2023
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB000

kFRBEE Non-current liabilities
HAbFERFIE Other payables 25 4,433 5,876
HEaE Lease liabilities 27 1,080 6,425
EERIBAGE Deferred tax liabilities 28 9,020 10,492
14,533 22,793
AEFE Net assets 955,140 939,533

fE= EQUITY

R Share capital 29 1,361 1,361
] Reserves 872,684 867,561
ARAREEAEEER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 874,045 868,922
eI e Non-controlling interests 81,095 70,611
ERBE Total equity 955,140 939,533

F185 =3B E MR A IS RKR TS EE 12025
FIABARERIRET R  WETHNEERE
FEORE:

BEE

Liao Chuangiang
BE

Director

The consolidated financial statements from pages 185 to 325 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2025 and are signed on
behalf of the board by:

2818
Mou Zhaohui

4

Director
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mEREmEER _ |
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE20UF12ANBILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

KRG ARGRR
Equity atributable to owners o the Company
Bt REtEE  AbGE  EAER BRERR SRR RROW gt FEhEk
Share Non-
Share Share Other Capital option  Contriution Statutory  Retained controlling

capital ~ premium*  reserves* resenve* reseve*  reserve* reseve*  eamings* Total  interests

ARBTR ARMTT ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR
RMB000  RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB0D0  RMBO0D RMBOO  RMBON  RMBOD  AMBIO0O
(P) ~ (Tchieth) ) “ i)

(note e} below] (ot b) below] ~ [note c]below (note (o) below

HuBEIA1A Asat1 January 2023 1361 s 160 - B §a01 M 0 1340 6261 1.3%762
EpBR)EHREE oss) prfitand ttel comprehensive
(R hasg Ipenseircomefor e ear - - - - - - N Tl N -1

BATESARAENE Fairvaleloss o rencal assetsat far
NEHEHEE vale hough ot compehensie

DVEEE HBBE  inome retofin - - - - - - S mE ) -
BB ER (98 Recogoton ofeuty-setled share based

25(E0) pament ransations rote 3] - - - . g B, _ _ % B 359
HERELR Captal necion by oncontolingnerets - - - - - - . - - m m
EXAFHERTEAR  Didendpaidtoronaontoling

EanRe st ofsbsdaries -l - - - - - S N
BA5(R)EE0E Trenser to from) stauoyresene - - - - - . naw o B B} _
HUIBENANAR As at 31 December 2023 and

UEIR1A 1 January 204 1361 519847 1601 - 5110 8501 1850 (14108 86882 T8 93958
EREHRAENALE Poftend ot compehensive income

forthe year - - - - - - - 14576 14576 10%7 25563

RHBLFFARERSS  Chargesdownership merestsin

(a5 L) subsdars it osig conrol - - - ] - - - - b s 13
HRERRE Capil educton by novaonoling nerest . - - - - . - - S )
EXNTHEATEER  Didendpoid ononcontoling

i eestof s - - - (460 - - - -l B ()
ERTETOE Trenser to statutor esene - - - - - - 0 (s - . _
AOUERENR As at 31 December 204 1361 519847 1601 (9.453) 5810 850 15643 (1748) 8705 81,09 955,140

* RERREGAVBERKAIRPAEEREARE  ~ The reserves accounts comprise the Group’s reserve of RIMB872,684,000 (2023: RMB867,561,000)
872,684,0007T (20234F : AR¥5867,561,0007T) ° in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

MG

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

HAb

HitRBHEEAR TN EEMEARRA
Z R ZE -

B
EARBIEERNNBEARMAREEE Y (L E
REFEHE) WFEE - 2RECTRCRRERIE
ZRRREEERESNRREZS  MHE
e

B
BRREREETAARRBRET NS -
EERTE
BEHEARLMBE([HE D EERAFER
VAR A S5 B BE T A B 2 ) ) 4R A8 J A2 A0 B A0 M

X BHRECEAEENENI0%DREEE R
B HERFDRBBEMEAR0% ML -

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Other reserves

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the share capital of
the subsidiaries under the restructuring.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the reserve relating to changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without losing control and the amount represents the difference between
consideration paid or received and changes in the carrying amount of the ownership interests
attributable to non-controlling shareholders.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the reserve relating to the Company’s share option scheme.
Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and the provision of the articles of association of the PRC companies comprising the Group, the

local investment enterprises are allowed to appropriate 10% of the net profit to the statutory
reserves until the accumulated appropriation exceeds 50% of the registered capital.
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meEReRER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE2024F12 AN B ILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

RETDAERTRE

Cash flows from operating activities

20244
2024

AR®ETR
RMB’000

191

20234

2023
ARET T
RMB'000

TSR R A (E518) Profit (loss) before income tax 40,755 (581,896)
KT YRR % - Adjustments for:
MEHEWE FERF K Written off of trade and other receivables and

Hoh e YR IE A K payment on behalf of residents

REFEFAR 7 10,239 6,424
YTE N Depreciation and amortisation 10 31,186 29,875
AN FELEERZARSN Change in fair value on financial assets

TREEATEED at fair value through profit or loss 89,825 143425
ISN =53 Interest expense 8 326 673
HEYE - BEMEE Net (gains) losses on disposal of property,

(M=) B8 558 plant and equipment 7 (68) 666
RIFTHEMNEE Loss on termination of leases (1,196) (22)
SREENSAEERME  Impairment of financial assets and contract assets 10 116,649 698,562
i NI ES = Share of result of associates (16,573) (6,306)
R R EEE Impairment loss on goodwill 18 24,378 _
W& N7 ZIRERE Impairment loss on investment in an associate

Eia 17 - 24,070
AP RE 45 E R (D S 1~ AY Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

3 30 - 369
MBESEBRTHILLLY%  Operating profit before working capital changes

A 295,521 315,840
FEUWE SR R E b EUL  Changes in trade and other receivables

FIREE) (186,183) (197,289)
REBEEMZTESD Changes in payments on behalf of residents (55,553) (22,478)
BHEEEH Changes in contract assets (6,882) (6,562)
JENE SRR b RS  Changes in trade and other payables

TIAEH) (8,186) 36,321
FEWRAE A TRIBE E) Changes in amount due from related parties (1,865) (2,734)
FERTREE A L FRIEE Changes in amount due to related parties (1,461) (5,548)
ERREES Changes in contract liabilities 12,622 15,142
KEMSIRE Cash generated from operations 48,013 132,692
BREEH Income tax paid (63,642) (66,699)
AREST B (BT )83 2 Net cash (used in) generated from operating activities

JHER (15,629) 65,993
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GEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

20244 20234F
2024 2023

AR®TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

RETBHHEBRERE Cash flows from investing activities

AU BB E A B Payment for consideration payable related

FERHRE to acquisition of subsidiaries (10,771) (10,770)
HEME - BER Proceeds from disposals of property,

RABSEIA plant and equipment 2764 1558
BEVE  BEMK Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 (6,346) (3,186)
R A FIER A AR B Dividend received from associates 8,412 1177
ZREIRSEICHD) Increase (decrease) in restricted cash (6,612) 4
I EBE N NTEE Capital injection for investment in an associate (144) -
RE TE AT % F5E Net cash used in investing activities (12,697) (11,180)

RETHAERENE Cash flows from financing activities
MIEEREEBMNBAR] Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders of

FEIE AR AR R S N I AR B non-wholly owned subsidiaries (10,244) (8,964)
IEIEBRER R E Capital deduction by non-controlling interest (1,040) -
IR T A Capital injection by non-controlling interests 1,328 200
EASHLE Interest paid (326) (673)
EBEHEARE Repayment of lease liabilities 34 (4,966) (5.922)
BETE TR FE Net cash used in financing activities (15,248) (15,359)
ReERFESEHEER Net (decrease) increase in cash and

CRA) 1 inFEEE cash equivalents (43,474) 39,454
FUNREEREEE

B H Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 286,774 247,320
FRONBSMASEE

IEH Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24 243,300 286,774
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2024F12ANBILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

—RER
FEREZHEEFRAB (AT K
201710 A 138 ER S HERIBE A BEAT
M BER R AR AT - HRDNES
BAERSHAERAR ([BRA Em - K
ISR M B B A E P 3R]
ANREN—EHE -

ARRNEERERARAEEREERA
A([EERE]) HERERBEXES
((EBELER ) EMAIHERERT
MARREEREREEEZRBERAT
(TMEREEZER]) RARRANERERA
A ZARRHASEEEMMKL - Bk
IREE X PTEAR £ o

RRRRAREEBRAT] » NDA) KR EKE
RE(HEAEE ]S RENEER
IR% - BEMEERE - KELEHRIEE
EREE HERFHEEERE  FEHE
B RBREMYEBRRE -

=

ZEEAVBHRRAARE(TARKEDZ
5 ARETRAARRRININEER -

R & SAR B MR 25BN T
BRI AR EIE A RER AR
AEFERAZ BT RRINT AR
BREREX A -
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Kaisa Prosperity Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 13 October 2017 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of its registered
office and its principal place of business are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section to the annual report.

The Company's immediate holding company is Ye Chang Investment Company
Limited (“Ye Chang Investment”), an investment company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), whereas the directors of the Company consider
that Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (“Kaisa Holdings") is the Company’s ultimate
holding company, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) engage in the provision of property
management services, which includes management of properties, maintenance
and repair of buildings and ancillary facilities, community security management,
car-park management, equipment installation, and property consulting services.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"),
which is also the functional of the Company.

The English names of all the companies established in the PRC presented in
these consolidated financial statements represent the best efforts made by
the directors of the Company for the translation of the Chinese names of these
companies to English names as they do not have official English names.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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RAPE®RE

ﬂIII' ‘

BEM B HREZER HERERHER
F165E(BFTA) WHEAaE
BFeHENFIR  HERENEAR
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MEEERE
5558 (20204F )
RIARREIEE]
EFGRTEREIR AERONIER
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ExeHERERL HEERE L
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FIFHEUERTA)
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HRARKRR,%ZE ?éﬁﬁi#&i‘éﬁﬁ%ﬁ
MREERYESEATE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENT
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2024 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liahilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENT
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendment to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKFRS Accounting Standards

Amendments to HKAS 21

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards — Volume 11°

Lack of Exchangeability?

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements*

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:
Disclosures*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
application of the amendments to HKFRSs is not expected to have material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements in the future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENT
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements ("HKFRS 18”),
which sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures in financial
statements, will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements ("HKAS
1”). This new HKFRS Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements to present specified
categories and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide
disclosures on management-defined performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation and disaggregation of information
to be disclosed in the financial statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs
have been moved to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors and HKFRS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (“HKFRS 7). Minor
amendments to HKAS 7 and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early application permitted.
The application of HKFRS 18 is expected to affect the presentation of the
statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the future consolidated financial
statements but is not expected to have material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial positions and performance. The Group is in the process of
assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group's future consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is considered material if
such information is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost except for certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair value. The measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equal the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e level Z inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

e level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other
parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group
has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss on disposal is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude
cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met,
the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no

further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to investment properties which are subsequently
measured under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is
then allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does

not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which includes
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue producing outputs,
including an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or
experience to perform the related processes or they significantly contribute
to the ability to continue producing outputs and are considered unique or
scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in

the ability to continue producing outputs.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet
the definitions of an asset and a liability in the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework") except for
transactions and events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, in
which the Group applies HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.
Contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

e  liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and
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3. BAMBRRNERNELERE 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
AREFBRERBE ») FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 EAEHEEER(E) 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

ERASHREEWE(E) Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

HEFRA (1B Business combinations (Continued)

o MHMEABEWMHTHENZ(TE e lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present value of
REEVMERELEDF165H the remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS 16 Leases) as if
E)ZIRERAREE - MWFT the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition date, except
W HEAKE R FHHE for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
S WA EHRAIEE acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-
H+—EARNGR : (b)iERE of-use assets are recognised and measured at the same amount
BEBEEZEERI - £H as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
HEEREEEEEa EER unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with market terms.

WEBERLTE  WIELH
B URBETISERELE

Rk R RO E IR o

PR B P FREEE Y R (T - IR AE RS Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
R R e%E - RUEE LA transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
FEAZHIE TR A E (D and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
B)ZEF - RTINS A SR E B acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
RREEBERIWE R SE and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
1% - FREBH 7 ZXEEHE o HBE the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
A - FTUREE 2 O] 3B B B BT exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
EBEFHEINER ZRE - JEE controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
PE e A U B T R P s & %8 ] Ui previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
FEpEARWEr 2Ry AT E immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

(FA)z 4 - BIEEAIRRERA
R BEYRERE -

B a RN AN GRS EES Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
ABGREIZE P D5 BB ATIEE their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets
B IEIRRRERS - I HIRIEIE AR RS in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
FE(L W NEE H AR EE Y B R interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
SREL IS A TE{BEETE - StEEER identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is
THIBZ S mMEHIEE - made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
WMAREBRREBRSHPEENRES When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination
ERAREBLEE - BISARBIRER includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
Wi B EIR AT EE 2 - WEFARE consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as
BEHEZREBH 2D - FEER part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in
Bit SR TR ARB AT EE the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
B TIE TR - St E T AR period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period
(3 S8R | (AR @ U BE B BR e =t adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information
—EVREEERKEBBEEEN obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
EELEREEINE R PTEL B from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at

#" o the acquisition date.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
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Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to
fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control), and
the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests
in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments would be accounted for on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously held equity
interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the
end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during
the measurement period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount (being the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of the cash generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or groups of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the cash-
generating unit within the group of cash generating units, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within the
cash-generating unit (or a cash generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit)
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of
cash-generating units) retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Investments in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of associates used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of assets to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, including the
impairment requirements, to long-term interests in an associate to which
the equity method is not applied and which form part of the net investment
in the investee. Furthermore, in applying HKFRS 9 Ffinancial Instruments,
to long-term interests, the Group does not take into account adjustments
to their carrying amount required by HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures (i.e. adjustments to the carrying amount of long-term
interests arising from the allocation of losses of the investee or assessment
of impairment in accordance with HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures).
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Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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Changes in the Group’s interests in associates

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but the
Group continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

e  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.



¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2024 fEJKZEE4FEBABFRAE KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 21

R B RAR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ZFEUBEHERNERELENE 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
AEFHRERBE ») FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 BEREFEEERE)

BEFEHWE(E)
B KRENEPEFHEE MR
TSR B RS FERR -

BHEEEARERASERNEFE
&I E Gn Sk BRI AR E RO R (B
R AR R EIRNE) - TIIRBEE BN

SERNESR LM T AETRER
fl o #AR - FRUGRIREIE A S BUERR
EOEGIEN - DRFBHERB
% HERH{AHRE -

BRABEAKRERCD AEPKEK
E(XERHRRRE) - MEAREP
EEEMARBOEL -

HE-GHNBRENANEERANA
BERFREEARLZS -

ZEEA BN

B RAEFPREMERIRSE
B AEBETEARNEERE R
REETERIRBAGHNENEE
(AAEEREZFEARLZERAS T
REZEEMARGE(AIAEE LK
BA) -

HAREEREFEEEmIRE
AIERIEE B ma iR - AIAKER
N

HARENENEETRLHER 7R
HIEEM BRI - AKESK
BA - EMRERT @ ESEmKIRE
EETEPZA - ARETES S —
TREMNEEERIRE - EAKHE
RREAE - BRLAERI ST L
RHEMNIETEE MR ARG
MR &R fEr SRR -

ERASEENEPANKENER
BURHY BRI BRI FE6 ©

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself
(i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before
that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the
provision of the specified good or service by another party. In this case, the
Group does not control the specified good or service provided by another
party before that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods or services to be provided by the other party.

Information about the Group's accounting policies relating to revenue from
contracts with customers is provided in note 6.
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Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application or arising from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 Leases at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of ownership
interests of a property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
of rental premises that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term
are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures
the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

e  the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income, gains and losses, net”.
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Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme administrated and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group’'s PRC subsidiaries contribute
funds which are calculated on certain percentage of the average employee
salary as agreed by local municipal government to the scheme to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under the rules and
regulations of the MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong. The
contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income, subject to a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month per head.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus plan is recognised as a liability when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.
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Employee benefits (Continued)

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the share options is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting condition. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve.
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Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments (Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interest only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in
which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the
lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
on initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision to
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting
from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are
not subject to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.
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3.2 EAESHBEER®E) 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
FIE(E) Taxation (Continued)
1878 AT oo il 1T AE F) 45 BN EA R 18 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
BEHEMKRIBAEMEEE - M enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
IR EE N BEERE— R SHE and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
AE— R T ek o Friafifae the same taxation authority.
ARIERIAE E R B E A EE I
BIEA R EFR BN BN ER - HME Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
HNEMmEmEm S RS ER they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
WIEE A - BIENEA REIER B e or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
SRR EM e E s sl B R R also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
2 o HENHAR B SR EF B R ERS respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
HOvS et REmEL - BIE@H accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
FEE B N EBEHNDRIE - accounting for the business combination.
W% BERRE Property, plant and equipment
%% e N A e E it E Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use
BERE  SHETTHB SN AR E in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
E W« BE N EEEKARE R purposes. Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
St ENEGERERRE(WAE) statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
R E AR R B BIEE - depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
HEMER D AT EENHET{F A Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
FHAA - B EEMSE E AR = residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
HERNSEEE o (hEra/{EAEE - method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
FABELITE ) FenN&REHk method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
et - MEEEET 2 S8 2R AT of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
BEREAER o
W BENEEE B N EsTEH An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
WIS R EE NS A 4 {r] R AR when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
FER B AR FHER o HEHHREY use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
% . BENEREEE EENE W an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
NEERIREEHEMSRIEEERE between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

R ZREET - WHNBSIER - recognised in profit or loss.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with finite useful lives are reported at revalued amounts,
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately. Intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets, other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets with finite useful lives and investments to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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3.2 EAEHEEER(E) 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
V% . BMERSE FARSEUR Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
WML EE(BERIMNBESE) and intangible assets, other than goodwill (Continued)
WIS EASEMETRERISE - 4 In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
A Bm— Dl EE AT allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
BEBSREBBERSELSA 4§ consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
Ao E s YA B m—% 2 9D/ are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for which
EES/NRSEABEMNMAR - Allk a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
ClSEBIR AR BENMBZIRGESL recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group
BN SEASEMNARET - W of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
HERSEASNIIRSELSEMNAE compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
Bl BEEEEITHEE o group of cash-generating units.
AUk O£ 58 A KRR R A A E R Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions
ERANEFEHEERENESE - B less costs of disposal, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
SHEEEREER - AR AIENIR R estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
BlEstARE S RENEEZHIRE pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
2% B4 I8 XK FE I B B T 35 4 B S R RS value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
BREE(KIBEELESEMN)IETRR unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

(RRBERREZ B RAZFRER
TEHAAR) ZFFdE

s EE (IR ELE B ) Ak If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
Bl EANEEmE @ B&E (1 estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
SESAEMN)NERESAREEHT asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
B £%E o GERREIR S IE — By EE For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be
SEERSEL BN ARIEESED allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
DNTEE  AEESH E—EE R the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
MBS ESASEMERE(BIEE D units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
ERARSELEBNTARIEEED corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
SARIEENERE)EZARESE recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
HEBAHARESEE o NOERIEE the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
188 - B E o B REE B LUR D[] carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
HENREE(ER) - REIRLD on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
Wi BB SELBMNEE or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
ENEAEIREEMEE - BEE not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
EETNERLEEREAFETEREE measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.

A (oA ETE) - EEREE R
BE)REZTHNHESE -

RESREEENREEIESEIRY The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
BB R B sk — IS EA BN allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
HEMEE - BEEBERREZF or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised

B o immediately in profit or loss.
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Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets, other than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events but
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the part
of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties is treated as
a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Contingent liabilities (Continued)

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it
becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be
required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a
provision is recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs, except in the
extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liahilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that
at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near

term; or

e oninitial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging

instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or as measured at FVTPL if

doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “Other income, gains and losses, net” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss
(“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade receivables, other
receivables, payments on behalf of residents, contract assets, amounts
due from related parties, restricted cash and bank balances and cash)
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e anactual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e anactual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have
low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collateral held by the Group).
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3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
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Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

(iv)

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

e ahbreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

e tis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganization.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY

OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The Group uses
a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables using
a provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience and forward looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract assets are
considered on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration the
following characteristics when formulating the grouping:
e  Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of
the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a
foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

e For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other income, gains
and losses, net’ line item as part of the “exchange gains and
losses, net”;

e For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Financial liahilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables, lease
liabilities and amounts due to related parties are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and
are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the
foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised
cost of the instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the ‘Other income, gains and losses, net’ line item in profit
or loss as part of ‘exchange gains and losses, net’ for financial liabilities
that are not part of a designated hedging relationship. For those which are
designated as a hedging instrument for a hedge of foreign currency risk,
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in a separate component of equity.
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Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is unconditional if
only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The description of the Group’s impairment
policies is set out above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated statement of
financial position include:

(a)  cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits,
excluding bank balances that are subject to regulatory restrictions
that result in such balances no longer meeting the definition of cash;
and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises short-term (generally with
original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
rather than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management. Such overdrafts
are presented as short-term borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Share capital
Ordinary shares of the Company are classified as equity in the consolidated
financial statements.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM").
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that make strategic decisions.

Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note
3.2, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects bath current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated above. Other intangible assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances, including, among others, the current economic
environments impact on the operations of the Group, indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates.

As at 31 December 2024, details of the Group's goodwill are set out in note 18.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets at the end of the
reporting date. These non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value-
in-use. When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or CGU and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

As at 31 December 2024, details of the Group's property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are set out in notes 15, 16 and 18,
respectively.

Impairment assessment on investments in associates

At the end of the reporting period, the Group performed impairment assessment
on investments in associates in relation to those investments that have
impairment indicators. Determining whether impairment loss should be
recognised requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the relevant
associate which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the management of the Group to estimate
the present value of the estimated cash flows expected to arise from dividends
to be received from the associate and the proceeds from the ultimate disposal
of the investment. In case where the actual cash flows are less or more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
cash flows estimation or discount rate, a material reversal or further recognition
of impairment may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2024, details of the Group’s investments in associates are
set out in note 17.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the Group makes allowances on items
subjects to ECL (including debtors, deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments and prepaid other taxes)) based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected, such difference
will impact the carrying amount of trade receivables and other items within the
scope of ECL of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and credit losses in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2024, details of the Group’s trade and other receivables are
set out in note 20.

Fair value measurement of financial assets

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at
fair value with fair value being determined based on significant unobservable
inputs using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair value of these instruments.

As at 31 December 2024, details of the Group's financial assets are set out in
note 19.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Operating segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM"). The CODM,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance
of the operating segment, has been identified as the executive directors of
the Company.

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the
Group mainly engaged in the provision of property management services,
community value-added services, pre-delivery and consulting services and
smart solution services in the PRC. Management reviews the operating
results of the business as one operating segment to make decisions about
resources allocations. Therefore, the CODM of the Company regards that
there is only one segment which is used to make strategic decisions.
Accordingly, no operating segment information regarding the Group's
revenue, reported results, total assets and total liabilities was presented.

Geographical segment information

The major operating entities of the Group are domiciled in the PRC.
Accordingly, all the Group's revenue were derived in the PRC for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, all of the non-current
assets were located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue from Kaisa Holdings and
its subsidiaries (the "Kaisa Group”) and its associates and joint ventures
contributed 11% (2023: 15%) of the Group’s revenue. Other than the
transactions with Kaisa Group and its associates and joint ventures, the
Group had a large number of customers and none of whom contributed
10% or more of the Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023.
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REVENUE

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable for goods sold and
services provided by the Group to outside customers, less discounts, returns and
value added tax or other sales taxes.

Revenue mainly comprises:

(a)  Property management services — provision of property management
services to property projects mainly located in Guangdong, Hong Kong,
Macau Bay Area, Yangtze River Delta, Bohai Economic Rim, Western China
and Central China.

(b)  Value-added services to property owners — provision of community added
services to property owners.

(c) Value-added services to non-property owners — services including: (i)
provision of pre-delivery services, such as construction sites management
services and display units and property sales venues management
services; (ii) consulting services to other property management companies;
and (iii) smart solution services.



3 ANNUAL REPORT 2024 {£Jk33=1FE@APR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED

6. WS )
(a) REEFEFASHNMWEHH

FrREZETEEMRRRESD
BEOHNKEHE K fR 3%
Wz

(i)

e

243

R I RAR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE (Continued)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

(i) The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and

services by categorise of major product lines and business

20245
2024

20235
2023
HiEge
X

Direct

BHELE
Fx

Direct
operating
EXpenses
ARETT
RMB’000

b E

operating
expenses
ARBTR
RMB'000

Revenue
AR¥TR
RMB’000

Revenue
ARBFT
RMB000

REZFAKAMUE  Revenue from contracts with

customers
WE SRR Property management services 1,389,375 1,091,244 1,338,099 1,031,662
EFIRERY Value-added services to

property owners 162,139 61,899 176,065 76,205
FEETEERE Value-added services to

non-property owners™ 183,913 137,798 280,103 205,053

1,735,427 1,290,941 1,794,267 1,312,920

*

SEEERN A REERE M
BEERRRTT R RS -

FEEZUEEIAR[EIH
REERE MR RS

(ii)

The amounts include pre-delivery and consulting services and smart
solution services.

(ii) The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and
services by timing of revenue recognition

20234F
2023
ARETIT
RMB'000

20245
2024

AR®TR
RMB’000

REEFEFEHWRE Revenue from contracts with customers

—PERFE — Over time 1,708,096 1,751,380

— KR — Ata point in time 27,331 42,887
1,735,427 1,794,267
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(b) EHEER

REVEN U E (Continued)

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)
(iii) The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and
services by geographical markets
Information about the Group derives revenue from the transfer of
goods and services by geographical markets is set out in note 5.

(b) Contract balances

M2831H M1 A1H

As at 31 December As at 1 January

20245 20234F 20234F

2024 2023 2023

AR¥T T AREFIT ARETIT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

FEUE SRR Trade receivables 20 1,443,858 1,286,943 1,100,822
VB EE Less: Allowances (988,288) (893,391) (271,977)
455,570 393,552 828,845

EHBE Contract assets 22 143,090 136,208 129,646
Vo YEE Less: Allowances (88,255) (83,748) (16,010)
54,835 52,460 113,636

EREE Contract liabilities 22 233,890 221,268 206,126

BERAEERKE SRR  ANEE
RERBBENFIED RIS M 20 -
225222 -

Details of the Group's trade receivables, contract assets and contact
liabilities are set out in notes 20, 22 and 22, respectively.
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

(c)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
and revenue and other income recognition policies

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities.

The Group's revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in
a contract with a customer, less discounts, returns and value added tax or
other sales taxes.

The Group’s performance obligations for contracts with customers and
revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Property management services
Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

The Group bills a fixed amount for services provided on a monthly
basis and recognises as revenue in the amount to which the Group
has a right to invoice and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

For property management services income from properties managed
under lump-sum basis, where the Group acts as a principal and is
primary responsible for providing the property management services
to the property owners. Revenue relating to property management
services are recognised over time. The Group recognises the fee
received or receivable from property owners as its revenue and all
related property management costs as its direct operating expenses.

For property management services income from properties managed
under commission basis, the Group recognises the commission,
which is calculated by certain percentage of the total property
management fee received or receivable from the property units, or
total property management cost incurred or accrual by the property
units, as its revenue for arranging and monitoring the services as
provided by other suppliers to the property owners.
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
and revenue and other income recognition policies
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Pre-delivery and consulting services

Pre-delivery and consulting services to non-property owners mainly
includes fees for construction sites management, display units
and property sales venues management and consulting services
to property developers at the pre-delivery stage, and property
management consulting services provided to other property
management companies which are billed based on actual level of
services provided at pre-determined price. and revenue is recognised
when such services are provided.

Revenue is generally recognised over time when the Group satisfies
its performance obligations by rendering services and the Group
allows a credit term ranging from 0 days to 90 days to its customers,
which is consistent with market practice.

Community value-added services
Community value-added services mainly include:

(1) value-added services, which mainly include a K Life mobile
app to consolidate the Group's previous platforms to offer
an upgraded one-stop service for all of the residential
communities, is recognised at a point in time when the
services are rendered;

(2)  fees generated from our car parking and space leasing, which is
recognised over the time when such services are rendered;

(3)  commission income from real estate brokerage and asset
management services is recognised at the point in time when
the services are rendered and accepted by the customers; and

(4)  revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the goods is transferred to the customer,
generally on the acceptance of the goods by the customer.
Payment of the transaction is due immediately when the
community value-added services are rendered to the customer.
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

(c)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
and revenue and other income recognition policies
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(iv)

Smart solution services

For smart solution services, the Group's performance creates or
enhances an asset or work in progress that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced, thus the Group satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, by
reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on
the basis of the actual costs incurred up to the reporting date as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Other income

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Government grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same period in which the expenses are incurred.

Further information about the Group's accounting policies relating to
revenue from contracts with customers is provided in note 3.2 to the
consolidated financial statements.



248 EIKEEFEBABR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 23 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

A BB IRARMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. u&(é(%) 6. REVENUE (continued)

(d) ZEESRTENEENXZER

SAYDEEE R RS B XA A B B AR S
(BNIEEERERE)ME - EHER
HEZNSBEAKEES KRN
BEFNEEERHRER - AEEKK
SR BEENBEEAARENS
B EREREEN L AREDE
BIRBEZEFRRANZRBENR
£

METREREME @ ZFRHBRE
R iR - AREIRI & A RETT
MBEREE

P RERIR S RIRTS (RNIEE EEE
R#) TS - 2024412 A31 8 }2023
F128318 - DEEHR T HARELHK
BEABOBEBNZZERIT

(d) Transaction price allocated to remaining performance
obligation
For property management services and pre-delivery and consulting
services, being value-added services to non-property owners, the Group
recognises revenue in the amount that equals the right to invoice which
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group's
performance to date. The Group has elected the practical expedient for
not to disclose the remaining performance obligations for these types of
contracts.

For value-added services to property owners, they are rendered in a short
period of time and there is no unsatisfied performance obligation at the
end of the period.

For smart solution services, being value-added services to non-property
owners, the transaction price allocated to the remaining unsatisfied or
partially satisfied performance obligations as at 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023 are as follows:

20244F 20234

2024 2023

AR¥T T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

—&FR Within one year 37,365 97,482
BiE—F More than one year 55,758 94,920
93,123 192,402

EXBENZESEIBRENRE
BRIZBNXZER  ZEXHER
EARFEAYME 1A R B (B IR I i AR B

27
e

These amounts disclosed above do not include transaction price allocated
to performance obligations which have been satisfied but not yet
recognised due to variable consideration constraint.
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7. HigA - SR EERE 7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

2024F 20234
2024 2023
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB000
AR BT ARG IR A Unconditional government subsidy income (note below)
(R PfE) 4,299 8,044
HEWE - BE LR ERE Gains (losses) on disposals of property,
(E18) plant and equipment 68 (666)
WeEEW SE SRR R EHMELY  Written off of trade and other receivables and
HEARKRKELFE payment on behalf of residents (10,239) (6,424)
SINEE U2k N B 1R S 5 Exchange gains and losses, net (35) 81
Efth Others (1,115) (1,405)
(7,022) (370)
MizE :  Z&ZEIEUENER @ b B 7 BT 2R a i Note: The amount represents subsidy received from the local government bureau in the PRC
Bh o BEEE S URENGZ A EL T A 18 AR R A and there was no unfulfilled condition and other contingency attached to the receipt of
R EA K AEE - subsidy.
8. MEMA 8. FINANCE COST
20244F 20234
2024 2023
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB000
BERA Finance costs:
HEaENBRAX Interest expense of lease liabilities 326 673




250 EIKEEFEBABR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 23 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

A BB IRARMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. EEEFHX(EIEE=ES) 9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

20244F 20234

2024 2023

AR%ET ARET T

RMB'000 RMB000

TE& - HH &k EMiEF Wages, salaries and other benefits 696,992 709,810

ARG RE 4 B () A Y B 52 Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

(Bt5E30) (note 30) - 369

FEAESHK Contributions to housing provident funds 12,657 14,664

REHEFCRIRET SR Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 81,513 81,129

791,162 805,972
REEBARNEE BT RESTETE The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of a retirement benefits
SRR EFEEIZRE c REBTAT scheme operated by the government of the respective cities in the PRC. The
BT EREEZEBTESFT2IAVRE B N AR B Group also participates in the pension scheme under the rules and regulations
THEERAREETE - HEKREFEFEMS of the MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong. The only obligation of the
AEBMOE —BEEAELEERK - Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to make the specified

contributions.

B Z=2024512 4318 K 2023F12 A31H IEF During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, there is no
B BEAERER(REERENE forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the
FRARFEHERIRLZEINESE scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by the employer
HEHER) PT E E EE LARIR IR B B9t to reduce the existing level of contributions.

FOKFE -
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10. BRETSHAEFI (B51R)
P P19 LA S 1) T A0 (5 A) A

10. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit (loss) before income tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

TEIFRE

20244
2024

AR®T R
RMB’000

20234
2023
ARET T
RMB'000

ETIRA(BIEESEMNE) Staff cost, including directors’ remuneration
T&  HEREMEF Wages, salaries and other benefits 709,649 724474
— DARS I A S 1 2 AFHY — Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
A - 369
— BRI — Performance bonus . -
— AEHFGERRET IR — Contributions to defined contribution retirement
schemes 81,513 81,129
791,162 805,972
RUATEIEHRSEE Amount charged to:
—HERERY — Direct operating expenses 658,716 660,671
—1THRAX — Administrative expenses 132,446 145,307
791,162 805,972
TR SIENEHERITE Amortisation and depreciation on:
—ME - WENEE — Property, plant and equipment 7,359 5,271
—([FREEE - Right-of-use assets 18,340 19,117
—\BILEE — Intangible assets 5,487 5,487
31,186 29,875
TREENEHNEEN Impairment of financial assets and
BERRE contract assets comprises:
—FEWE SN — Trade receivables 94,897 621,414
— H b E U R IE — Other receivables 2,458 2,847
—REREPNK — Payments on behalf of residents 14,787 6,563
—BHNEE — Contract assets 4,507 67,738
116,649 698,562
Hith Others:
ZE AN & Auditor's remunerations 1,500 1,600
BERERS Direct operating expenses 1,290,941 1,312,920
HHLRREANCEEE Short-term leases with lease term less than 12 months 14,182 20,171
K\ EEE Loss on termination of leases 1,196 22
BAELERAERN Change in fair value on financial assets at
SREENTEES) fair value through profit or loss 89,825 143,425
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11. FiSHMAX(ER) 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

20245 20234
2024 2023
ARBT T

AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB'000

BNERFTIS A Current income tax
— PSR — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 68,183 77,349
RTS8 (M97128) Deferred tax (note 28) (52,991) (221,661)
15,192 (144,312)
BN Overseas income tax

ARABRREBEFEHEAFIEARHEEHS
MR R ER R AR AR - BMERMEH
MHASEEMEN - RERRREREBRE
LEREEEREAREANRBRERZE ST
AL - FUtER R BN R B LB S P
B -

EBFBH

RIBEBRBFESHMRS - §EBEEE?
A BB TR B 5 128.25% B9 B R B -

MARA2E & /8 LAY % 7 RII3Z 16.5% A 7 2
B o BN AEEREE2024F12H31H
2023 12 A 31 B 1 F 5 I E AL B R
mA o A E BB FS AT IR -

HZE202412 A31 B 202312 3185 1L
B RAAEBTEELAAIREEEN
JERFUEF - B EFHRE EFEH
1% o

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Company Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly,
is exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax. The group companies
incorporated in the BVI were under the International Business Companies Act of
the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, exempted from British Virgin Islands
income tax.

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Under the Hong Kong two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of qualifying corporations are taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million are taxed at 16.5%. No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as the
Group did not have any assessable profits during the years ended 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023 as the Group has no assessable profits arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the years.
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EMEESEERARIRMMEEDEE
EAERQRNE 22024512 A31 8 12023
FNRANALEMEFENFTRPEMSH
BARE TR R R E SR R 1 2 15%EH & o
ZERNEFEFEASANHAERBETHNE
BIRAF] - AJZEEFSHEIY

YT ERIS e R AR A E B 2023F 1
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B AR TS M R RIS BT IR OFA o IVETT
BREZE  AEEAERPABERLEN
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in Mainland China has
been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits
for the years, based on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

The general enterprise income tax rate in the PRC is 25%. Provision for the PRC
Corporate Income Tax for S &R EILE M E IR B R A 7] (Kaisa Property
Management (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.), EETEKXEMEEIEER A (Kaisa
Property Management (Chongqing) Co., Ltd.) and 80 EIKE Y EEES
[R /2 7] (Kaisa Property Management (Liuzhou) Co., Ltd.) are calculated at 15%
of the estimated assessable profits for both years ended 31 December 2024
and 31 December 2023. Those companies are qualified as the companies under
the development strategy of the PRC’s western region and are able to enjoy a
preferential income tax rate of 15%.

FEYNTERVE se R B R A B] (Shenzhen Jiake Intelligence Technology
Co., Ltd.) has obtained the certificate of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
("HNTE") with effective from 15 November 2023 and was registered with the
local tax authority to be eligible for a concessionary tax rate of 15% for three
years from 2023 to 2025.

For certain group entities engaged in property management services (The “PM
Entities”), pursuant to relevant local tax regulations in the PRC, the Group
has elected to file consolidated tax return for the PM Entities incorporating
assessable profit and tax losses attributable to the PM Entities as well as certain
communities which are managed by the PM Entities under commission basis. As
a result of such arrangement, the Group is able to temporarily utilise tax losses
of loss-making communities, resulting in deferral of payment of certain provision.
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11. Fi8HiFX(ESR) & 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continced)

hEITR B

REBEFBELEAEHL - 5200851818
AR - i BIPA B 2 B 200841 A1 H AR
ERMBMMBNPEIREE - FEEINEE
IR R & BEIR0%TBI0H o RIEP
EEBOBRBEEOLEE WP EMNEAR
M EEERAREREEMAMA - RIR]RE
A BIK RS TETLE -

REZE 2024512 A31 8 %2023 12 A318 1k
FE ARRMBARZBIRE(FEB)A
FRA &) A] fEFAS%TEFIRL K o

FRABEHAX (ER) RS BEREM
EEBERANRHRADENERRNT

BRATS T AT N (&1R)

PRC Withholding Income Tax

According to the Corporate Income Law of the PRC, starting from 1 January 2008,
a withholding tax of 10% will be received on the immediate holding companies
outside the PRC where their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend of profits earned
after 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate can be applied to the
immediate holding company of the PRC subsidiaries, which is incorporated in
Hong Kong, according to the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Company's subsidiary, Profit Victor Investments (Hong Kong) Limited, is able
to apply for the 5% withholding tax rate during the years ended 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023.

Income tax expense (credit) for the year is reconciled to profit before tax per
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

20245 20234
2024 2023

ARETTT

ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000

Profit (loss) before income tax 40,755 (581,896)

B P SBATEA (BR) i
B BREFECERRAT
W RS R AR R Y T

Tax on profit (loss) before income tax calculated at
the rates applicable to profit (loss) in the tax
jurisdictions concerned

(E518)) 10,189 (145,474)
—HTREINEBRFE — Preferential income tax rates of certain
xR companies (3,204) (3,943)
— AR — Non-deductible expenses 12,083 6,215
(NIt — Share of results of associates (4.143) (1,576)
— AR FERHIAEE — Tax loss not recognised 972 1,197
—(FRBERBHNT — Utilisation of previously unutilised
IHES 18 tax losses (705) (731)
FriSfi (%) Income tax expense (credit) 15,192 (144,312)
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12.EERTHEAFME R LR E& 12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SEAL OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) EERITHAZMS (a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's emoluments
WEER FTRE - HEATHENE Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
WMER AR (RBEEEHNZER) pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong
BOE 2T EE RITHARTE Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
RNZMEEF T : Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

NRELE
e 2H BINGTE  ROXAH
RENEN  &XES #x AR

Salaries, Performance

allowances related  Retirement Equity-settled

and benefits incentive scheme  share-hased
Fee in kind bonus  contributions payment Total
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTR ARMTRT ARETRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BZ0nE128NA Year ended 31 December 2023

LEE
HTES Executive directors
BERLE(ERE) Mr. Liao Chuangiang (Chairman) - 2,240 - 123 787 3150
FEBEE Mr. Li Haiming 90 - _ _ _ 90
284 (M) Mr. Nie Qiang (note (b)) 47 _ _ _ _ I
HEERE Mr. Zhao Jianhua 2 - - - - 7
S Ms. Mou Zhaohui

(TR E) (Chief Executive Officer) 540 559 - 123 - 1222
FPBERE LA (M) Mr. Kwok Hiu Kwan (note (c)) Ik - - _ _ 3
HEB LA (P FE() Mr. Xie Binhong (note (d)) 3 - _ _ _ 3
BYFHTES Independent non-executive

directors

BHAEEE Mr. Liu Hongbai 163 - - - 20 183
SAgLL Ms. Ma Xiumin 163 - - - 20 183
LA Mr. Chen Bin 163 - - - 20 18

1,513 2,799 - 246 847 5405
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a)

Fee

ARBTR
RMB'000

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's emoluments

(Continued)

5e 20
RENER
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind
AR®T T
RMB'000

BERRSE
Performance
related
incentive
bhonus
ARETR
RMB'000

RIKEE
EEA
Retirement
scheme
contributions
ARETR
RMB’000

NRELE
BAXMH

ME

Equity-seftled
share-based
payment
ARBT T
RMB’000

Total

ARBTR
RMB'000

BZ2024%512831A Year ended 31 December 2024

LEE
YTES Executive directors
R E(ER) Mr. Kwok Ying Shing

(Pifz(a)) (Chairman) (note () 65 - - - _ 65
BEREE M. Liao Chuangiang - 1M - 8 _ 1,857
FESEE Mr. Li Haiming 92 - _ _ _ @
HRERAE Mr. Zhao Jianhua 215 - - - _ 275
BEELT Ms. Mou Zhaohui

(THez) (Chief Executive Officer) 207 29 - 51 - 552
SRR AT A (P FE(C) Mr. Kwok Hiu Kwan (note (c)) ) - - _ _ 9
HE ST (PR FE() Mr. Xie Binhong [note (d)) 27 - - _ _ 2
BUFHTES Independent non-executive

directors
) gishie Mr. Liu Hongbai 165 - - - - 165
SAEHLL Ms. Ma Xiumin 165 - - - - 165
[y ke Mr. Chen Bin 165 - - - - 165
1,253 2,065 - 137 - 3,455
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’'s emoluments

(Continued)
Notes:

(a) Mr. Kwok Ying Shing was appointed as executive director on 16 April 2024.

(b)  Mr. Nie Qiang resigned as executive director on 12 July 2023.

(c) Mr. Kwok Hiu Kwan was appointed as executive director on 12 July 2023.

(d)  Mr. Xie Binhong was appointed as executive director on 25 August 2023 and
resigned on 16 April 2024.

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The performance related incentive bonus payment is determined with
reference to the operating results and individual performance for each year
by the board of directors of the Company.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group. The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the Chief Executive
Officer waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. In
addition, there was no inducement paid for directors to join the Group and
no compensation for the loss of office as a director in connection with the
management of the affairs of any member of the Group.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses are measured according
to the accounting policies as set out in note 3.2. Particulars of the share
options granted to the directors under the share option scheme of the
Company by the Company and the ultimate holding company are set out in
note 30.
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R.ESRTHAENERAEE
S AT

(b) EEBEHFAL
FR - AEENLERSHALTERE
MG (2023F - MB)EF - HBlER
BRI EXXFIR DT o FA - B ER
T=%(2023% - =R)EARB S
T

BT #Ha MRk
AR E D ST A YRR
FUE HFURRE BIHK

Staff salaries and allowances
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses - 328
Contributions to defined contribution retirement

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year included two (2023: two) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining three (2023: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

20245 20234F
2024 2023
ARET T
RMB'000

AR®TR
RMB'000

2,187 2,317

schemes 258 370

2,445 3,015

Fat AEBE N F AT EE

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the following bands:

20244 20234

2024 2023

£ 251,000,0007%% 7T Nil to HKD1,000,000 3 -
1,000,0017% 7T £ 2,000,000/5 7T HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000 - 3

H E2024512 318 %2023 12 A 31
AIEFE  BEEEXhREETA
TA AR & B U EUE AT < 1 A % 31 hn
AN 6 B 5 A B B Y 22 B of B B
E o B E 2024512 A31 H 20234912
ANELEFE  BEEERRELES
FALTHERRZERETAME -

No directors or the five highest paid individuals received any emoluments
from the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 31 December 2023. No directors or the five highest paid individuals
have waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023.
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13. iR B 13. DIVIDENDS
A ZE2024F12 318 2023 FE12 A31B IEEF No dividends were paid, declared or proposed for the years ended 31 December
EiEREN -« S REZRNEE - AR 2024 and 31 December 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end
EEIRAR I 2 IR AT ALS. of the reporting periods.

14. BIREFI(E58) 14. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
RATEBEANELERERNG#HBERF The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to
(E48) IR IE T 38Rt E - owners of the Company is based on the following data:

20245 20234F
2024 2023
ARMT T AR¥ETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RABER ANEHFRGER Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
(E5HE) owners of the Company 14,576 (449,984)
BROEE Number of shares

20245 20234F
2024 2023

REBE (T&R)

(number of shares "000)

FRE BT LB INEFHE Weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year 154,110 154,110
HZE2024%12 8318 X2023F12 A318 1k The diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years ended 31 December 2024 and
FEENEREERF(EB) X TRETE 31 December 2023 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
RARZERE  HAAEZSHEEREZITE because the exercise price of those share options was higher than the average
BRRRHOFHTE - At - #ZE2024%5 market price for shares. Therefore, the diluted eamings (loss) per share is the
124318 &2023F12A31B IEFE » % same as basic earnings (loss) per share for the years ended 31 December 2024
Ba R (58 BEeRERER (E1E)E and 31 December 2023.

BB
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15. 9% - BERRE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B
HEW¥ EBETEER
Furniture,
fittings
Leasehold and office Motor
Buildings  improvement equipment vehicles
ARETRE AR¥TR AR%®Tx AR%Tx AR%Txn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R Cost:
RNBF1A1H As at 1 January 2023 1,246 446 45,447 6,258 53,397
e Additions - 626 2,447 113 3,186
HeE Disposals - (714) (3.237) (1,939) (5,890)
R2023F 128318 K As at 31 December 2023 and
024F1A1H 1 January 2024 1,246 358 44,657 4,432 50,693
NE Additions 3923 2119 2,995 1172 10,269
HeE Disposals - (4) (4.219) (1,845) (6,068)
R2024512831H As at 31 December 2024 5,169 2533 43,433 3,759 54,894
RiiE Accumulated depreciation:
R2023F1 A1H As at 1 January 2023 275 405 25,945 3.213 29,838
FESH Charge for the year 83 83 4,609 496 5,271
R Eliminated on disposals - (420) (2,508) (738) (3,666)
2023124318 |2 As at 31 December 2023 and
20241 A18 1 January 2024 358 68 28,046 291 31,443
FEXH Charge for the year 108 2,435 40 805 7,359
HERE Eliminated on disposals - - (1,670) (1,702) (3.372)
2024512 831H As at 31 December 2024 466 2,503 30,387 2,074 35,430
REFE Net book amount:
20245128318 As at 31 December 2024 4,703 30 13,046 1,685 19,464
R2023E12A318 As at 31 December 2023 888 290 16,611 1,461 19,250
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15. Y% - BERRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Lt - MEREEEE R RREE The above items of property, plant and equipment, after taking into account the
IR EGEE N AT RIEEHEITE - residual values are depreciated on a straight-line basis on the following bases:
== 2.5%-5% Buildings 2.5%-5%
HEMEEE 20%-33.33% Leasehold improvement 20%-33.33%
B BERER 10%-33.33% Furniture, fittings and office equipment 10%-33.33%

ENES

T 10%-20% Motor vehicles 10%-20%

16. FHEEE 16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

R

XA EERE
HEEE HEEE
Leased

Leased assets for
assets for provision of

owners- properties

occupied management
purpose services Total
ARBF T ARBTFT ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

('~ X H=E)

(Note below)

720231 A1H As at 1 January 2023 13,899 186,667 200,566
R Additions 5,264 - 5,264
KIEHE Termination of leases (2,672) - (2,672)
e Depreciation (5.784) (13,333 (19,117)
20235128318 & As at 31 December 2023 and
20244F1 A1H 1 January 2024 10,707 173,334 184,041

TR Additions 4,589 - 4,589
wFHEE Termination of leases (6,259) - (6,259)
e Depreciation (5,006) (13,334) (18,340)

2024512 A31H As at 31 December 2024 4,031 160,000 164,031
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16. EREBE 4

Mzt REBEARE-RMEBARESZEBIFE=
HREZE2021F12831BIEFERGTH
B THRERZ  AEBERER 820245
TA1ERBFSFAERE THBEIEFEY
¥ BRERETERREDEEERB LS
FIEEEME ARSI - HERZ
BN  AEBEEXHBRREARE
200,000,0007T + WiEE— S EAFEREE
BEZNRIE - 2 ERAEEERKAN
B EER () HIRR °

A ERBERENEF A A F X
MEFMABIEE HE)NFHRINE -

17. REtE QAT 2ZIRE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Note: Pursuant to certain leasing agreements entered into by a subsidiary of the Group with a
number of independent third parties during the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
was granted the rights to use certain non-residential properties in the PRC for 15 years
commencing from 1 January 2022, including but not limited to the right to provide property
management services and sublease the non-residential properties for rental income. The
leasing agreements were non-cancellable and the Group had paid total considerations of
RMB200,000,000 and no further obligation to pay for the use of the leased assets. These
right-of-use assets are carried at costs less impairment loss, if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
its estimated useful life and the lease term.

17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

20244 20234

2024 2023

AR¥T T ARETIT

RMB'000 RMB000

NI e g = DN Cost of investments in associates 23,326 23,182

R SR R e Share of post-acquisition profit and other

et - HBRE WA S comprehensive income, net of dividends received 43,341 35,180
B REEE AR ZIRERE Less: Impairment loss on investment in an associate

E1E (24,070) (24,070)

42,597 34,292
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17. REFE QR 21 E () 17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continved)
2024412 A31 B %2023 12 A31H - A& As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, particulars of the Group's
B FmEE AT (EWETSRE - unlisted associates, whose quote market prices are not available and having a
BEBEABAIZANB)EFBOT : reporting date of 31 December, are as follows:

MRS K& EMER EAREFE
e Hh B 15 o fE 2 b
Proportion of
Place of Particulars of interest
incorporation registered held by the
Name of associates and operation capital Company Principal activities
FINEIRERHEEEBR AR A AR 4520% BISHLEFE RIHE
(MERENE D) 16,327,0007C (2023% -
45.20%)
Kaisa Technology Group Co., Ltd.* (i) PRC RMB16,327,000 4520% Development and sales of
(“Kaisa Technology”) (2023: 45.20%)  computer network
T =R T RS B R A A A ARHE 49.00% IRIMBEAHZIEE R
(e ) 30,000,0007¢T (20234 :
49.00%)
Yancheng Tingyuan City Service Co., PRC RMB30,000,000 49.00% Environmental and public
Ltd.* ("Yancheng”) (2023:49.00%)  facility management
AL TiEE REBRAF AR AREE 49.00% MFEERE
(M&%]) 10,000,0007T (20234 :
49.00%)
Zhejiang Derui Urban Operation Service PRC RMB10,000,000 49.00% Property management
Co., Ltd.* ("Derui"”) (2023: 49.00%)
MfsE - Note:
(i) EIRERI IR E O A 2023FHKEURE © (i) The investment of Kaisa Technology has been fully impaired during 2023.

*

The English translation of the name of the company established in the PRC is for reference
only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.
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17. REE QAT 2R E ») 17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
AT S ig s = AR E AR < Qa1 Set out below are summarised financial information of the material associates,
TS AR E - which is accounted for using the equity method:

B3

Yancheng

AR®TR
RMB'000

m

Derui
AR¥T T
RMB’000

R20245F12A31H As at 31 December 2024

mEEE Current assets 64,184 32,407
IERENEE Non-current assets 18,480 1,569
mEAaE Current liabilities (18,279) (16,209)
BEFE Net assets 64,385 17,767
BZ204F12A3101LFE Year ended 31 December 2024

Was Revenue 105,861 73,221
F R T Profit for the year 21,325 7,184
FREMEEEE Other comprehensive income for the year - -
FAREHEWERTE Total comprehensive income for the year 21,325 7,184
AEBEEFAZE Total comprehensive income 10,449 3,520

Wes1B5E for the year attributable to the Group

EENSIE GG

Dividends received from the associates (5,066)

(2,940)
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Ea
Yancheng

ARBTT
RMB'000

=i

Derui
ARET T
RMB'000

72023512 A31H As at 31 December 2023
MENEE Current assets 47,050 27,639
FERBEE Non-current assets 24,900 1,848
mEaE Current liabilities (18,549 (12,903)
BESE Net assets 53,401 16,584
HE2023F12A3NBILFE Year ended 31 December 2023
Weas Revenue 85,915 59,837
F R Profit for the year 10,323 7,292
FREAMEERE Other comprehensive income for the year - -
FAREEWGBTE Total comprehensive income for the year 10,323 7,292
AEBEEEFAEZA Total comprehensive income for the year attributable

&R to the Group 5,058 3,573
EEANGI GGy Dividends received from the associates - (1.176)
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17. %Hﬁ%ﬂaZ?ﬁﬁ(%) 17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
bl BA #E R B B T B B A N T B A, A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
IS EREEmENSRESYT - amount of investment in following associates, Yancheng, is set out below:
i 3, Ein
Yancheng Derui
AR®T T AR%ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
72024512 A318 As at 31 December 2024
BN RN B E S EERE Total net assets of associate 64,385 17,767
NEEFFHESE Proportion of ownership interests
T2 el held by the Group 49% 49%
AR KR AR Carrying amount in the consolidated statements of
BEmEE financial position 31,549 8,706
72023124318 As at 31 December 2023
BE N RN EE R EETE Total net assets of associate 53,401 16,584
REEBIFTISE A HE Proportion of ownership interests
- dadedit]] held by the Group 49% 49%
REMBIRRER AR Carrying amount in the consolidated statements of
BRMEE financial position 26,166 8,126
AEEWEFENBE AT 2 HEMESE The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other commitments

o

TR AR EE AR

relating to its investments in associates.
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18. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

e
YIREE
BR# 2 &

Goodwill -
Property

management
services
segment
AR®T T
RMB’000

BILEE-
EFRE&

Intangible
assets —
Customer
relationships
AR®T T
RMB’000

Total

ARMT T
RMB’000

Cost:

As at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023,

2024512 A31H 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 160,828 46,187 207,015
Bt - Accumulated amortisation:
R2023F1 A1H As at 1 January 2023 - 14,731 14,731
#oH Amortisation - 5,487 5,487
A2023F 128318 & As at 31 December 2023 and

20241 A1H 1 January 2024 - 20,218 20,218
SR Impairment 24,378 - 24,378
By Amortisation - 5,487 5,487
742024512 A31H As at 31 December 2024 24,378 25,705 50,083
BREFRE - Net book amount:
42024128318 As at 31 December 2024 136,450 20,482 156,932
72023512 A31H As at 31 December 2023 160,828 25,969 186,797
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18. BENREBHEE ») 18. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

BILEE-BFBHE
REBEHHERNETFRBIEIRNKE
A AFERR SHNEFHEAR
HEE A R YRR AR RET#EEE D
fR o BTN BRI R BT =10
WHERAE -

BB -YREERE DB
BERBEFREEREFAMHN—F DM
AL WNEBHKEREE - RIS
RELEFEBARBBIFEEAFENE
B

AEENHETIEZRBRATRSELE

Intangible assets — Customer relationships
Customer relationships acquired in business combinations are recognis

ed at fair

value at the acquisition date. The contractual customer relations have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the expected life of 7 to 10 years.

Goodwill - Property management services segment

The goodwill arose as part of business combinations in prior years and were

determined at the respective acquisition dates, being the differences

between

the purchase considerations and the fair values of net identifiable assets of

acquirees.

The Group’s goodwill is mainly attributable to the following CGUs which are

A BB T ENREREHEEETER mainly relating to property management services segment of the Group:
7%

BERATREELEMNEHE
—REABMEEEBRARLK
HIE AT

20244
2024

ARET T
RMB’000

R

Goodwill attributable to the following CGUs:
— Jiaxing Dashu Property Management
Company Limited and its subsidiary

20234
2023

ARETTT

MB'000

([EEAHER]) ("Jiaxing Dashu Group”) 18,980 18,980
—IEERMEEEBRAG R — Jiangsu Hengyuan Property Management
HIB AR Company Limited and its subsidiaries
(I&ERER)) (“Jiangsu Hengyuan Group”) 23,864 23,864
—ERBYERB BRI R — Ningbo Langtong Property Service
EifB A ([Z=E]) Company Limited and its subsidiary
(“Ningbo Langtong”) - 24,378
—WIEEMEEERER AR X — Zhejiang Ruiyuan Property Management
EHIBRAR(HIER]) Co., Ltd. and its subsidiary
(“Zhejiang Ruiyuan’) 93,606 93,606
136,450 160,828
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18. BEREBHEE »)
BERERR
AEEZEBYEESERGHEME—K
FTEAENGEEAZEBM (PR AER
Al LARAIRE B EIR AN SE B i B 7T
BEF -

EBERERNGN  ARREEERRE
EREMEM{BERNMEAREBEEG
g BEEEBVEXRSERMEMER

B MEEEEMR[ERN - T2RR
KR HEABRN AL -
SUBRERHETN S - REEE B A KD

SRNREBEEFAN D FRETZNE
REEFEMETE - RE T XAagE
REHERRSRE - YWBLEME
TRERARREFE - BRERKRER
TEABMREGGORMFIGERE -

TREHNEBEEAN2024F12A318 K&
2023F 12 A3 B#ETEERENANIRS

R B RAR MR
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18. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill

The Group engages an independent professional qualified valuer, Savills
Valuation and Professional Services (China) Limited, to perform the impairment
assessment of the Group’s goodwill as at the end of the reporting date.

In determining the impairment assessment, the management of the Company
is responsible to determine the appropriateness of valuation techniques and
inputs for the impairment assessments. The management works closely with the
independent professional qualified valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques, key assumptions, inputs and data to the model.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amounts for the cash
generating unit were determined based on value-in-use calculations covering
a detailed five-year budget plan followed by an extrapolation of expected cash
flows at the growth rates stated below and the valuation conducted by an
independent valuer and approved by the directors of the Company. The growth
rates reflect the long-term average growth rates for the service lines of the cash
generating unit.

The following table sets forth each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill as at

TEIEANEENKRIBTIEMRE - 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023:
2024 20234
2024 2023
hEHRE KRR Growth rate within the five-year period 0-11% 0-11%
T ATALER = Pre-tax discount rate 14%-12% 14%
KA R R Terminal growth rate 2% 2%

BEERBBERALEHTIZRRNE
HEEERE - RIAE MR ERMKAL
REDRIBTEIRD A5 o FAEMRLAE
ATRATRRIRE - WIRIRER S EA B A
R ERR -

YR E IR #EE T U BB AT 2 RIAY
A ElE R R EEBEE(ERERD
(HBHREE)FTE - EEREABRI

Management determines growth rate based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development. The terminal growth rate applied
beyond the budget period is estimated based on industry forecast. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the CGU.

The recoverable amounts of the subsidiaries acquired under property
management service segment are calculated based on value in use ("VIU”)
which exceeded its carrying value except for Ningbo Langtong.
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18.HEREBHEE

i

EERENRE

ERABTEEMIEERMIEERTE
DEEYERBEYEEERE - EREE
METERBERFHZ - BRABAT
EFALIREREE - XA EEEET
HERBBRATRESEE  AEBEE
04FN2ANBLEFERBRNERRBRY
EEHREERE -

BEFEER  ARFEEBRAETEN
R EEERSIRHYESEREHE
thREELEBEMHATNODSESNESS
FERTEE - Hit - REZE2024512H31H
LIEFEIWEERREEE(20234F : &) -

AEBERERE  EREEFERIE
AEtEMAER RS K TS EHRE
B E AT S5 -
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18. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

Ningbo Langtong is principally engaged the provision of property management
services to industrial and commercial properties located mainly in Ningbo
City, Zhejiang Province. In view of severe competition in commercial property
management service sector, Ningbo Langtong started to incur significant loss in
current year. After the management of the Company assessed the recoverable
amount of Ningho Langtong, the management decided to fully impair the
goodwill attributable to Ningbo Langtong for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management of the Company
determined that the recoverable amounts of the other cash generating units that
are principally engaged in providing property management service to residential
property owner are higher than their respective carrying amounts and thus, no
impairment loss was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
nil).

The management of the Group believes that any reasonably possible changes in
the key estimation of the VIU calculations would not cause the carrying amounts
to exceed its recoverable amounts.
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS

20244
2024

20234
2023
AREF T
RMB'000

AR®TR
RMB’000

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI")

—Interest in unlisted entity - -

Financial assets at fair value through

(a)

BEREZARNESREE profit or loss (“FVTPL") (b)
— WA HREF — Contractual rights on Properties 94,481 184,306
94,481 184,306
Mi3E Notes:
(a) TAFELEMEEWIARNCREE— (a)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income — Interest in unlisted

JELTEERES

ZEEERENTER I ETEEAK
Afn  ZERIBEPBERERMEITET
KB ERBIRY - ZREXIFRRH M
B MEAKEMBEENMEE  EFRE
1B A A THEAE 2 R A
ROBATE - RARKRERR/NERDHE
REZERENTENERRBHITFAAE
EARPANMHEEZSREANEHESR
HRBE DB -

ENPELSEEBEFENERRBYE
18 MREBIUFEGHEMETHMHE B
A FEDHERATFEEEAR15,0000007T

ETRER - HELSEE 8 M2 EREN

AAPHEES33FT AL - FE ERARE N A TE
AESEREMATEER -

entity

The amount represents an investment in equity shares in an unlisted entity established
in the PRC, which is mainly engaged in provision of internet insurance services of car
industry in the PRC. This investment is not held for trading, instead, it is held for long-
term strategic purposes. The directors have elected to designate this investment as equity
instrument at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in these
investments' fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group's strategy
of holding these investments for long-term purposes and realising their performance
potential in the long run.

Inview of the unexpected slow recovery of the PRC economy in prior years, with reference to a
valuation conducted by an independent professional valuer, a fair value loss of RMB15,000,000
was recognised and the amount has been charged to the other comprehensive income in prior
year.

The fair value measurement of the unlisted equity investment is classified as Level 3 fair
value hierarchy as described in note 33.3.
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19. ERBE »

BRE - (#8)

(b)

BATELBEZARNEREE -MENE
HRER

ZEEAN021F12 A 5 HF BN E
ENFEEETHEEWEYE]D NS
REMZINERE - RIEEBEEOTH - &
RA-ZMBARARSGEBEBEAY
RHORZHHEFHENKEBEENE DN
70% © P A R RS E AT IR A R UE )
EMMEBWA - BINERI S A PEATR AL -
WEEMTRE  ARERBEFEXND
DEAAI TIARE ©

RAREERD LB ERN T 0 275 (B
RUEHERE) BRASE —REBE
7 e ARG KL T 78 5K BUCER Lt o] &
REMAREN - ZEEWRE BRI TER
BRARNSREE

HRAAFERELEEREESREE  £2
EBFEGHEMETNGHE  BE204F
NANBILEFEERBERRE— S AFE
8518 49 A R 689,825,000 7T (20234F = A R
143,425,0007T ) °

HIFE333FTIL - AT ER 2D EARAEIRA
FEERH -
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — Contractual rights on Properties

The amount represents consideration paid for an exclusive right to sell certain non-
residential properties in the PRC (the “Properties”) for a five-year period since December
2021. Pursuant to the relevant contractual arrangements, a subsidiary of the Company
is entitled to 70% of the excess of the selling price over the agreed minimum price with
the counterparties to the contractual arrangements. The subsidiary also has the right
to receive rental income arising from the Properties before the Properties are sold. The
amount paid by the Group in prior years is refundable in case of any shortfall as stipulated
in details in the related contractual arrangements.

The directors of the Company considered that the operations under the abovementioned
exclusive right namely, the provision of sale services, form part of the Group's ordinary
course of business. Since the contractual arrangements give the Group a contractual
right to receive cash which are variable as described above, the asset is considered as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

In view of the unexpected slow recovery of the PRC economy in the current year, with
reference to a valuation conducted by an independent professional valuer, a further fair
value loss of approximately RMB89,825,000 (2023: RMB143,425,000) was recognised in
the profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2024.

The fair value measurement is classified as Level 3 fair value hierarchy as described in
note 33.3.
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BEAFESBSEARNEREEN QI FE
FrE
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EEERATHELBE ARNEREEN
NFER  ARFREREAREEEATE
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial assets at FVTPL

The Group engages an independent professional qualified valuer, Savills
Valuation and Professional Services (China) Limited to perform the fair value
valuation of its financial assets at FVTPL as at the end of the reporting date.

In determining the fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL, the management
of the Company is responsible to determine the appropriateness of valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. The management works
closely with the independent professional qualified valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques, key assumptions, inputs and date to the model.
This valuation requires the use of unobservable inputs and is within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

Details of the movements of the Group's financial assets at FVTOCI or FVTPL are

NEEEEEAENSREEZBNTE set out below.
3T e
RATE
KHEHMEM N
WKz ABRE KEZARNG
Financial
assets at Financial
fair value assets at
through other fair value
comprehensive  through profit
income or loss Total
AR¥T T ARET T AR%T T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
R2023FE1 818 As at 1 January 2023 15,000 327,731 342,731
NEEEZH Change in fair value (15,000) (143,425) (158,425)
MN203FE12831B R As at 31 December 2023 and
202451818 1 January 2024 - 184,306 184,306
NEEE) Change in fair value - (89,825) (89,825)
A20245128318 As at 31 December 2024 - 94,481 94,481

BAFELHEbE2EBEARIIZ AT E
LEZABENEHEEN AT ET2FE
BAKIRE333 ©

Details of the fair value measurement of financial assets at FVTOCI or FVTPL are
set out in note 33.3.
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20. EWE SRR EMEYFIE  20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20244F 20234
2024 2023
BosE AR¥T T AREFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FEWE 5 BRI Trade receivables (a)
—$=5 — Third parties 527,222 426,310
— A AT (P7E23) — Related parties (note 23) 916,636 860,633
1,443,858 1,286,943
W EE Less: Allowances (988,288) (893,391)
455,570 393,552
HibEWFRIE Other receivables
Hibigse Other deposits 21,793 23,538
FE RIE Prepayments 23,578 19,060
REEINK Payments on behalf of staff 15,654 15,076
EeRBHRERELHR Payments on behalf of residents
under lump-sum basis 21,225 21,018
HAib Others 9,745 4197
97,995 82,889
T L Less: Allowances (b) (10,182) (7,724)
Efb el R ERE Total other receivables 87,813 75,165
DR Analysed as:
—BNER — Current 84,164 66,670
— JEBNEA — Non-current 3,649 8,495

87,813 75,165
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20. EWE SRR EMEYFIE 20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(#&)
BfEE - Notes:
(a) EWESIRK (a)  Trade receivables
REMEBTERBHERE FERAREL Trade receivables from property management services are trade receivables due for
MFBAERE R MR EKRE SRR - 3E payment upon the issuance of demand notes. Value-added services to non-property
3 38 E AR SR IR 4B B8 AR 75 15 2 MO IR 3Rk owners are receivable in accordance with the terms of the relevant service agreements,
o MARE—RATFETHEHEER and the Group normally allows an average credit period ranged from 0 days to 90 days to
N FORZEA - its customers.
HA2024F12 A31H K% 2023F12A31H + FEE The ageing analysis of the trade receivables before loss allowances as at 31 December
SRR GHEEEEFR) RER A PR 2024 and 31 December 2023 based on the invoice date is as follows:
AT :
20245 20235
2024 2023
ARET T ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
1804 Within 180 days 455,227 495,049
1812365H 181-365 days 214,781 196,907
1229F 1-2 years 286,923 302,794
2E3F 2-3 years 218,876 261,294
3L Over 3 years 268,051 30,899
1,443,858 1,286,943
B SRR FURERE BN T ¢ The movements in the impairment of trade-receivables are as follows:
B=F BEAL wast
Third parties Related parties Total
AR¥T T ARETT AR%T
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R2023F1 A1H As at 1 January 2023 43,023 228,954 271,977
AR Recognised during the year 13,403 608,011 621,414
72023124318 &
202451 A1H As at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 56,426 836,965 893,391
RERNER Recognised during the year 40,433 54,464 94,897
20245124318 As at 31 December 2024 96,859 891,429 988,288
B E2024F12 A31H R2023F12 A31H IEF Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the years ended 31 December
E e E R FUR BT e R B E T i 2024 and 31 December 2023 are set out in note 33.1(b)(ii.

33.1(bJi)
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20. EWME SRR HMEYFIE 20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(%)
MizE : (&) Notes: (Continued)
(b)  E e FIE () Other receivables
Hih R F IR EZF eI T - The movements in the impairment of other receivables are as follows:
20245 20234
2024 2023
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Hib e IE Other receivables
M1 AR As at 1 January 1,724 4,877
RENTER Recognised during the year 2,458 2,847
MW12A318 As at 31 December 10,182 7,724
HE2024F12A318 R2023F12 AN A IEF Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the years ended 31 December
JE H A U R TE R (B AT A A FE B SR M A 2024 and 31 December 2023 are set out in note 33.1(b)(ii.
33.1(b)(ii) ©
(c)  Hfth (c)  Others
RNEBRWUENRAINENFFEREKE S All of the Group's trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2024 are denominated
B R E At FE MR IB Y A A R 5HE (2023 in RMB (2023: all RMB).

FMAEBAARKERE) -
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21. KREP AR 21. PAYMENTS ON BEHALF OF RESIDENTS
20244 20234
2024 2023
AREET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEPHR Payments on behalf of residents 167,900 112,347
B EE Less: Allowances (32,027) (17,240)
135,873 95,107

HALEZMSHEBETELENMEE
BREENEHREASERRFERES
NHFX BB A ZETHEEP WY
EEENES -

RREPNFRENZEINT :

The balances with the property management offices of residential communities
managed by the Group under the terms of commission basis represents
expenditures paid by the Group on behalf of the residential community in excess
of the property management fees collected from the residents of that residential
community.

The movements in the impairment of payments on behalf of residents are as

follows:
20244F 20234F
2024 2023
AR¥F T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB000
®W1A1H As at 1 January 17,240 10,677
RERTER Recognised during the year 14,787 6,563
M®12A318 As at 31 December 32,027 17,240

HE2024F12 A31 B 202312 318 IEF
ERREFMNRORET G FEHAME
33.1(b)ii) °

R2024512 A31 B K20235F12 A318 - K&K
EPNRTIAAREE -

Details of impairment assessment of payments on behalf of residents for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are set out in note
33.1(b)(ii).

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the payments on behalf of
residents were denominated in RMB.
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SHNEEREHEAR 22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES
2024 20234
2024 2023
ARMT T AREBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERHEE Contract assets
B EEEA T RARB AR Contract assets related to smart solution services
BREE 143,090 136,208
L Less: Allowances (88,255) (83,748)
54,835 52,460
BRAE Contract liabilities
B REEA T RARE A AR Contract liabilities related to smart solution services
aWmaRE (42,563) (38,759)
H1Y) B TR AR TS A B HY Contract liabilities related to property
AHBRE management services (191,327) (182,509)
(233,890) (221,268)
BNEETRRASEERZENEE A The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for
/Hﬂré“*ﬁﬂﬁmaﬁﬁlﬁmfﬂﬁﬁ%a B work completed but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are
HEERNBBEEINKAEEGRERERE transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. The contract
WHE - BB EE BEEARIEHERR liabilities primarily relate to the advanced consideration received from customers
BmBEKREFREGR - KE—RERED while the underlying services are yet to be provided. Considerations are usually
AR - FRAEERABERARERHIE received in advance of the performance under the contracts. Such assets and
R o liabilities increased as a result of the growth of the Group’s business.
FABEATHENEERENRED The contract assets and contract liabilities included the related parties with
Bl A K H579,844,000 7T (20235F = AR amount RMB79,944,000 (2023: RMB79,647,000) and RMB23,174,000 (2023:
79,647,000 7T ) K A R # 23,174,000 7T ( 2023 RMB23,174,000) respectively.

0 AR#523,174,0000T) ©
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22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LlAB".lTlES (Continued)

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current
reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities:

ARMT T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year 146,548 129,355

BEHFEANEERBBERR —EMFR
Yo e B 4E A

BREERENESHINT

All contract assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered and settled within
one to two years.

The movements in the impairment of contract assets are as follows:

20245 20234

2024 2023

ARET AREEFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

W1 A1E As at 1 January 83,748 16,010
RERNER Recognised during the year 4,507 67,738
128318 As at 31 December 88,255 83,748

HE2024512 A31 8 % 2023512 A31H 1k
FEANEENRETGFBHAME
33.1(b)ii)

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are set out in note 33.1(b)(ii).



280 EIKEEFEBABR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 23 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

A BB IRARMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. FEUREAE ALK 23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

20244 20234
2024 2023

AR®TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

FE W /2 2 fY 186 A BIRRIR

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

—E51tE — Trade nature 586,390 534,204
—JEE5MHE — Non-trade nature 6,345 4,605
592,735 538,809
EBYRZRMEBARGEE Amounts due from joint ventures of fellow
RIE subsidiaries
—E54E — Trade nature 223,261 229,812
— B HHE — Non-trade nature 2,185 2,060
225,446 231,872
BB AR N ] B Amounts due from associates of ultimate
ARIFRIE holding company
—Z 5 Mg — Trade nature 106,985 96,617
—EEZHME — Non-trade nature 32 32
107,017 96,649
925,198 867,330
T L Less: Allowances (891,429) (836,965)
33,769 30,365
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23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

(Continued)

In general, the Group normally allows an average credit period ranged from 0
days to 90 days the trade receivables due from related parties. The following
is the ageing analysis of the trade receivables due from related parties before
impairment loss based on invoice date presented at each of the reporting dates.

20245 20234
2024 2023
ARBT T

AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB'000

PEUREEE A T FRIE — Amounts due from related parties —
& 5 M E (RHE20) Trade nature (see note 20)

180H Within 180 days 196,498 258,079

1812365 H 181-365 days 125,933 124,783

1224 1-2 years 204,529 247,644

2E3F 2-3 years 167,083 222,681

HBiE3F Over 3 years 222,593 7,446
916,636 860,633

2024512 A31H %2023512 8310 - 3EZ
SUHENERFERMBAR - AEKBR
AIMA B ¥ R RRIZER A B A2 A8
RFUE AT - BT AREREE -

2024512 A31H 2023512 A31H - [EUL
BEATHEUARBEE - AEBL T
BB QRS EREE D ENE K SN
ATHERERNRE (BB EMN ) E
TTRIREAS ©

The non-trade nature of amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures of
fellow subsidiaries and associate of ultimate holding company are unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable on demand as at 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, amounts due from related
parties were denominated in RMB. The Group's credit limits offered to related
companies are based on assessment of their financial viability and reputation in
the industry, including historical payment records.
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23. EURBAEA TRIE )

AEECEATBMEREERFEISR2
#BTABREMNBLA AN IRESHE LS
BRTEHREEER % E2ABKESE
KEER AR E - BAMKRELERSE
Ve TANERYBRENEE 2
P ERRKFE ERGRAEEEZE
2024412 A 31 B Lk 12 B9 57 75 5 5% R 30 A

2 -

JEMBRE N LRIBRENEFNT

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

(Continued)

The Group applied simplified approach to provide the expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or the trade nature balance. Such
approaches were generally accepted approaches to the valuation of trade
receivables, the HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments in relation to the disclosure and
presentation, recognition and measurement of financial instruments. It has not
been changed in the preparation of the Group’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

The movements in the impairment of amounts due from related parties are as

follows:
20244F 20234
2024 2023
AR¥T T ARBTIT
RMB'000 RMB000
»1A1H As at 1 January 836,965 228,954
RERER Recognised during the year 54,464 608,011
®12A318 As at 31 December 891,429 836,965

FEE 5 MG AR R
- RBAARERERE -

THRERER

The non-trade nature amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.
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24. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions are denominated
in the following currencies:

2024F 2023F

2024 2023

AR¥T T AREBTT

RMB’000 RMB000

FHE— AR Denominated in — RMB 249,504 283,267
HE—- BT Denominated in — HKD 857 2,393
HHE—AETT Denominated in — USD 1 1,564
250,362 287,224

o ZREIERE Less: Restricted cash (7.062) (450)
BekReSHEIER Cash and cash equivalents 243,300 286,774

R2024F 12 A318 - ZXRFHIBEEER/N
REFPRHEMNEERLS ARK276,0007T
(20234 : A R#5388,0007T ) LA K2 st 4 A3 P
BB IMRITREMIEL A ERERER - 551
A AR #61,0007T (20234 @ A R #62,000
JT) °

STAREERIE S RIRTTAE & g g
NERBTFERTREMRITHINAARE
SHEARSRTT 4 54 A R %5 249,504,000 7T (2023
&F 0 AR¥.283,267,0007T) ° AREE BT
BRLBNER o RIEHEINEEIRED
MONELZEE - HE RNTREREKD - K&
B HF RERERRIMNEZEBRERITH
AR HIRBING o

As at 31 December 2024, restricted cash mainly represents the maintenance fund
held on behalf of the residents amounting to RMB276,000 (2023: RMB388,000)
and guarantee deposits for the use of bank service outside mainland China
amounting to RMBG61,000 (2023: RMB62,000) respectively.

Included in cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
of the Group is RMB249,504,000 (2023: RMB283,267,000) of bank balances
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies
through banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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25. BB IR R H B mIE 25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
202455 20234
2024 2023

ARETT

AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB'000

EBHES RN Trade payables
—8=5 — Third parties 201,604 180,002
— B AT (M95126) — Related parties (note 26) 4,970 14,030
206,574 194,032
HAib TR\ Other payables
WM E A Rl (E Consideration payables for acquisition of subsidiaries 5,400 16,171
fEstE TR A Accrued staff costs 86,040 87,264
Hth rE R I8 Other tax payables 7,550 8,843
g lize Deposits received 86,302 83,217
REEFPUGK Receipt on behalf of residents 120,244 138,557
HEm e FIE R ERTE R Others payables and accruals 21,897 31,380
A IR AR Total other payables 333,933 365,432
DA Analysed as:
—BNHER — Current 329,500 359,556
—JERNER — Non-current 4,433 5,876
333,933 365,432
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25 BN ESRMREMETFIE 25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(&)
ENESERPEENAEEHERR Included in trade payables were amounts due to the Group’s suppliers. The
B o REBEHKRALESIME  EEHNT outstanding balances were trading in nature and credit periods ranging from 30-
3021808 - RIERZEHE - H2024%F12H 180 days were granted. Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
N KE2023F12ANBENSE SEARNE trade payables as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 is as follows:
AT
2024 20234
2024 2023
AR¥T T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
PAER Within 90 days 101,798 96,456
91E180H 91-180 days 41,644 39,497
1812270H 181-270 days 18,502 16,921
271&365H 271-365 days 13,506 12,019
i 3E365H Over 365 days 31,124 29,139

206,574 194,032
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26. E{TEAEANTFRIE 26. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
20244 20234
2024 2023
AR¥ET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB000
PE{TRBE AN T FE Amounts due to related parties
—E54E — Trade nature 4,970 14,030
—JFESHHE — Non-trade nature 2,620 4,081
7,590 18,111
—RME - BNEEALNEZERNE In general, the credit periods for trade payables to related parties ranging from
BN TI0E180H - TREFINRREHH 30-180 days were granted. The following is the ageing analysis of trade payables
REZAHMEVNENBEATHNES to related parties based on invoice date presented the reporting date:
BRFEREC AT -
20245 20234
2024 2023
ARET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB000
FESBEANLTRIE - Amounts due to related parties —
& S ME (RHEE25) Trade nature (see note 25)
90H K Within 90 days 2,487 3,205
91E180H 91-180 days 757 1,766
181%270H 181-270 days 86 2,053
2712365H 271-365 days 3 2,094
33655 Over 365 days 1,567 4912
4,970 14,030
FEZEENENEEEATRIBRER The non-trade nature amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free

B REWEZEKEE - and repayable on demand.
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27. HE&E 27. LEASE LIABILITIES
TRIRAEEHREGENTGE DT E The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group's
B : lease liabilities:
2024 2023F
2024 2023
AR¥T T AREBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000
HIEESBE - Total minimum lease payments:
—FREIHE Due within one year 3,261 6,084
F_ERFEH Due in the second to fifth years 1,116 6,639
4,377 12,723
THEAGHARKEREEH Future finance charges on leases liabilities (148) (662)
HEABERNIRAE Present value of leases liabilities 4,229 12,061
HIEBEEHIRE : Present value of minimum lease payments:
—FRE|H Due within one year 3,149 5,636
FE_ERFEH Due in the second to fifth years 1,080 6,425
4,229 12,061
B R—FREERE D Less: Portion due within one year included under
FIRNEEIREN) current liabilities (3,149) (5,636)
R—F &I EHE D Portion due after one year included under
(FIRIERBEERN) non-current liabilities 1,080 6,425
REZE2024F12ANBILFE - KEEF] During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered into additional 6
STEBANG D (20234 ¢ 810 ) MR E W E (2023: 8) new lease agreements for office uses for one to five years. All leases
RERZ FENTF—Z2RF - FIEHED are subjected to monthly fixed rental payment.
AxfNgAEEHRES -
AEFBRAZEHEVTETAEHERL L The Group considered these leases do not have any extension or termination
RIBHE - options.
REE2024F12ANBIEFE - HOW During the year ended 31 December 2024, the total cash outflows for the leases
e ML @R A K ¥19,474,0007T (2023 are RMB19,474,000 (2023: RMB26,765,000).

F . AR#526,765,0007T) °
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EEHIEESERIEERIEAE  28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED
TAX LIABILITIES

ERZHNELERBEEELABEERER & The deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised and movements during the
BERSHE MO T - current and prior reporting periods are as follows:
Hity N
&R SREE DNREZRE
Bkt AT EED BEEE
Change in Impairment
Provision fair value loss on
for loss of other  an investment
allowance financial assets in associate Total
ARBTRT AR%®TR ARBTR AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EEHEEE Deferred tax assets
20231 A18 As at 1 January 2023 75,885 13,691 - 89,576
EATEEEH\( BiIzE11) Credited to profit or loss (note 11) 174,641 35,856 6,042 216,539
RigAH M2 EUER A Credited to the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income - 3,750 - 3,750
R2023F 128318 &% As at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024
20241818 250,526 53,297 6,042 309,865
PEmEt A1) Credited to profit or loss (note 11) 29,162 22,451 - 51,619

20245128318 As at 31 December 2024 279,688 75,754 6,042 361,484
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28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED
TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

BREE
fREERR AP IEEF
BHENHE HYFRHIB
Excess of
carrying amount Withholding
tax for
undistributed
profits
ARBTT
RMB'000

of intangible
asset over
the tax bases
ARBTT
RMB'000

Total

ARBTR
RMB'000

EEHEERE Deferred tax liabilities

2023F1 /18 As at 1 January 2023 (7,864) (4,000) (11,864)
RiazEr A1) Credited to profit or loss (note 11) 1372 - 1372
202312 A318 K%2024F1 518 Asat 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 (6,492) (4,000) (10,492)
PEzsET A (M) Credited to profit or loss {note 11) 1,372 - 1372
S TEH Payment of withholding tax - 100 100
2024128318 As at 31 December 2024 (5,120) (3,900) (9,020)

EEMBWENEERARRETEER
123200841 A1 B R EE A HO)a N A EL 3F
REERQBREHIKE BB AN
10% BO FEAN AL (B o A5 7% 16k 49 38 %2 R IR 2%
$7|\) F 1A 7 55 [ B 22 1 7 5 [ o Y U8
7R M) 2 SRR N B E&JLHEE
E%%iﬁ?ifrlﬁ,ﬁﬁﬂﬁ"—}EU?I%X—Hﬁ"/)fEZ|
TMaFHERLER RS °

REBRBILH BN E QR B ER D
AR IR B A B PIR] LRI IRO R
BHRIE - 126% 2 BURT R G IETR -

AN B A ] A5 S R DA 85 R R R AR T Uk
A B R HE R T TR B 18 A R % 17,960,000 7T
(20234 : AEE10,963,0007T) © LLEHIIE
&5 18 1 72 20255F 22 20294F 1 fE i ©

The EIT Law and its implementation rules impose a withholding tax at 10%,
unless reduced by a tax treaty or arrangement, for dividends distributed by the
PRC-resident enterprises to their non-PRC-resident corporate investors for profits
earned since 1 January 2008. Since the Group controls the quantum and timing
of distribution of profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, deferred tax
liabilities are only provided to the extent that such profits are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

A lower 5% withholding tax rate can be applied to the immediate holding
company of the PRC subsidiaries, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, according
to the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group has unrecognised tax losses of RMB17,960,000 (2023:
RMB10,963,000) to carry forward against future taxable income. These tax
losses will be expired from 2025 to 2029.
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29. fg A 29. SHARE CAPITAL

BREEETHEBER ROBE

No. of shares

PN
RMB’000

Ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each

Authorised:
As at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023,
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024

SERE
20231 A18 - 2023124
31H ~ 2024F1 A1H &

20245E12 A31H 500,000,000 4,400
ERITRAR Issued and fully paid:
72023F1 A18 ~ 20235124 As at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023,

318 ~ 2024F1 1B & 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024

202412 A318 154,110,000 1,361

There were no movements in the authorised and issued share capital for both

REEERE + R BB BT IR A 3 12

g o years.
30. IR EEERGZANRS 30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS
(a) EATFHWERESE (a) Share Option Scheme granted by the Company

BRI R 201976 A 18 B B@EHA
EE —HEBRESEEAGER
N o WRIRREAERT B2 G - RAF]
AIMIBRAEREBERAL(BREASE
BEEARKEARNES - B8  af
BB - BR - EBAA - fHER - RE
ARER)ELERE - RITERE
FEARIERT B s AR RIER A 2 (E (R H A
BRET S E RN R ARETENME
BB AR TTRIR D =S T 5B
PR B2 B ETARD30% ©

BTSRRI IR BIEET 1018
RIBBIREFERLERE - BB
B TE R BB R AT AR AR
RIEEE - MBS RN 1ERE
R H B #RI0FER o

BRIETZE T 2B ZITEED
BERATZHESE  (IAAFZK
R B IR R P 3 H 2 B B3R
BRAHZERRTHE  ((IARFZ
A&t F BB H B B AT T B A P
AN R PTE 2 5 A RERTR
ZFHERWTE ¢ (i) A2 F A
ZMEfE -

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution passed on 18 June 2019, a share
option scheme was conditionally adopted. Pursuant to the terms of the
share option scheme, the Company may grant options at its discretion, to
any eligible person (including directors, employees, officers of any member
of the Group, advisers, consultants, suppliers, agents and customers of
any member of the Group). The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be exercised under
the share option scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from
time to time.

No options may be granted under the share option scheme after 10 years
since the adoption. The vesting periods, exercise periods and vesting
conditions may be specified by the Company at the time of the grant, and
the options expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant.

The exercise price of the option under the share option scheme shall be
no less than the highest of (i) the official closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (i) the average of the official closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five Stock Exchange business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)
(a) Share Option Scheme granted by the Company (Continued)
Details of the movement of the share options under share option scheme
are as follows:

SRR mE
THITEE

(L E T 5lR)
Weighted

average
exercise price
in HKD per share Number

720231 A18 As at 1 January 2023 15.7 9,470,000
FRRI Forfeited during the year 15.7 (400,000)

72023512 H31H ~ 7A20235  As at 31 December 2023, as at 1 January 2023
1H1B &% A2024512831H  and as at 31 December 2024 15.7 9,070,000

R2019F7 198 © KA FEARQ A
BEERARFREMBARE TR
BNRIRERT (201957188 H )
2,750,000 % 8,700,000 Zx A &) A% A
AR &A% T {E0.01)8 Jo AR 10 HY BE AR 4 -
SR BRI AU B 515.36
BTT o [M{E B 1% H #98,700,00017 BE I%
e K [\ AN A R E P #92,750,000
HERENEHBHE —ERNER
THIAF{E 5 Bl £62,564,0007% 7T &
22,241,000/ 7T °

On 19 July 2019, the Company offered to grant to the directors of the
Company and certain employees of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “July 2019 Grant”) of 2,750,000 and 8,700,000 share options
respectively, of HKD0.01 each in the capital of the Company. The closing
price of the shares immediately before the date of grant was HKD15.36.
8,700,000 share options granted to the employees and 2,750,000 share
options granted to the directors of the Company have a fair value at grant
date under the binomial model of HKD62,564,000 and HKD22,241,000,
respectively.
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30. U HEEERAZANRS )

(a) ADFRHBREE (5)
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(a) Share Option Scheme granted by the Company (Continued)
The valuations were based on the Binomial Option Pricing Model with the
following data and assumptions:

2019F7 H19H

19 July 2019

Es gax

Grant

Fair value under binomial model HKD84,805,0007% 7T
Closing share price at grant date HKD15.707%& 7T
Exercise price HKD15.70/%8 7T
Annual risk free interest rate 1.87%
Expected volatility 50.86%
Expected option life 10 yearsF
Expected dividend yield 1.15%

TERRIE T AR R RIBHE R L B ]
ERNAHZELKIEMETE © A
B M EEERE L B RITT RS
TR R -

“IRA R EERAC A ERTER
B2 NVE - TEREEAHEMA
ZAERERBRIIRES 2 &iEfh
qu S - BEEZEERETEER

RZ TR #REMAMSE - FHH
B B BIRIIIRIBE S BUREEE ©

REE202F12A3NBIEFE » &4
AR#369,0007TfE EERZERIE

R mEMESEEAIER
EREE] ARERECHNBTFE
THEB AR EZE2024F12831
I FE I EEREAERERS -
BEARN AR ZmMEREMNE
f& o

2024412 A 31 8 » 9,070,00017 & A%
R EIE TR B AR
F171# (20234 : 9,070,00017) °

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company's share price from the listing date to the grant date. The risk free
interest rate is equal to HKD swap rate over the exercise period at the
grant date.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Expected dividend yield are based on historical data.

In total, employee compensation expense amounting to RMB369,000 has
been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the corresponding amount of which has been credited to “Share
option reserve”. Since the share options were fully vested in prior years
and thus, no share option expense was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2024. No liahilities were recognised for the share based
payment transactions.

As at 31 December 2024, 9,070,000 of the outstanding options granted
under the share option scheme were exercisable (2023: 9,070,000).
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30. UREEERPZITRIR S ) 30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)
(a) ARATREBRETEI(SE) (a) Share Option Scheme granted by the Company (Continued)

R2ANBHRITEBRERE
Number of share options
outstanding as at 31 December

BRITEE 2024 2023
Exercise price
per share 2024 2023
BT
HKD
202047 A19F 2202947 A 18R 19/7/2020-18/7/2029 15.70 2,010,000 2,010,000
20217198 2202997188  19/7/2021-18/7/2029 15.70 2,010,000 2,010,000
20227 F198 2202997188  19/7/2022-18/7/2029 15.70 1,950,000 1,950,000
2023%F7 H198 22029477 4188 19/7/2023-18/7/2029 15.70 3,100,000 3,100,000
9,070,000 9,070,000
(b) EBAERATRENERESTE (b) Share option scheme granted by the ultimate holding
company
RI5201996 514 H @@ IR B R Pursuant to the shareholder’s resolution passed on 14 June 2019, a post
= —HEANARBERERERE IPO share option scheme is terminated and the new share option scheme
BRI - AR ER 2B 20195 is conditionally adopted with effective from 14 June 2019. Pursuant to the
6 A 148 RRIER B M - RIBER terms of the share option scheme, the board of directors of Kaisa Holdings
HERTEI 260 - EREERESET may, at its discretion, grant options to any eligible person (including
KIEREREERAT(BIEEKSE directors, employees, officers of any member of Kaisa Holdings, advisers,
PEREFRKEARNES - BE - & consultants, suppliers, agents and customers of any member of Kaisa
WE%E - B - A HEE R Holdings).

BARER )R BRE -
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme granted by the ultimate holding

30. UREZERDZMANRS o

(b) BARZERDFRHNBRER S (4)

FEH - TEHRBEBRM AR EK
R HRIEE - MBRES T
BIMERIR H B HRI10FEW - AR
RRTEA T 2 BREZ TEETEE
RUATZ&RE « (1EREERZ K
R B R A h 2 & A
BRABZIERRTE  (i)EREE
B2 By i S B IR B A A T (g 22
e ARBRMEL 2 BRAMER
PRz FHIENWHE - (i) ERE
PR < E1E °

RN ETEIIE T 2 AR E Eh a5
™

R023E1 /18 ~ 2035128318 R

company (Continued)

The vesting periods, exercise periods and vesting conditions may be
specified by Kaisa Holdings at the time of the grant, and the options expire
no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant. The exercise price of
the option under the share option scheme shall be no less than the highest
of (i) the official closing price of Kaisa Holdings" shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii)
the average of the official closing price of Kaisa Holdings' shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
Stock Exchange business days immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii)
the nominal value of a share of Kaisa Holdings.

Details of the movement of the share options under share option scheme
are as follows:

FhmeE
TR
(B HIR)
Weighted

average

exercise

price in HKD
per share Number

As at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and

20241818 as at 1 January 2024 344 4,129,708
FRRIK Forfeited during the year - -
2024128318 As at 31 December 2024 344 4,129,708
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30. UREEERPZITRIR S ) 30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(b) BRARERATEHNBRESTE(H) (b) Share option scheme granted by the ultimate holding
company (Continued)

ZIEA B EEER D B MG TR The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate the fair
2 NFE s EEREATEERE value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
A SRERBREIVIEEE 7 SEE fair value of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
HEY BEREZ7EERETTIE® The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
Rz FRASEETARNE - assumptions.
FA20244612 318 » 4,129,70817 B 1% As at 31 December 2024, 4,129,708 of the outstanding options granted
T EIIE MR R S AR TR AR E ] under the share option scheme were exercisable (2023: 4,129,708).

T 171 (20234 : 4,129,70817) °

Rk HERR BB AR IS T Terms of share options at the reporting date were as follows:

R2ANBHRITEBRERB*
Number of share options
outstanding as at 31 December*

BRATEE" 20244F 20234F

Exercise price
per share* 2024 2023

BT

HKD
201857 A 198 £202747H188 19/7/2018-18/7/2027 3.44 825,942 825,942
2019F7 198 2202747 H188  19/7/2019-18/7/2027 3.44 825,942 825,942
202057 198 2202747 H188  19/7/2020-18/7/2027 3.44 825,942 825,942
20214F7 A198 2202757 A18H  19/7/2021-18/1/2027 3.44 1,651,882 1,651,882
4,129,708 4,129,708

* B E RITEERZEIERAR * The number of options and exercise price was adjusted upon the ultimate holding

MR202155 A7 A FERHERR 18 T AT - company's completion of rights issue on 7 May 2021.
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. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant service period. There is no forfeited
contribution that may be used by the Group to reduce the existing levels of
contributions.

The Group's PRC subsidiaries also participate in defined contribution retirement
schemes covering its full-time PRC employees. The schemes are administered
by the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group and the PRC
employees are required to make contributions based on certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and
the relevant government authorities undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the PRC subsidiaries.
There is no forfeited contribution that may be used by the Group to reduce the
existing levels of contributions.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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33. AR ER 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
33.1 BiEEBEE 33.1 Financial risk factors
(a) EREEREGEER (a) Categories of financial assets and liabilities

20244 20234
2024 2023

AR®TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

BB RARESTEM  Financial assets at amortised cost,

SREE: less impairment:

U E 5ERK Trade receivables 455,570 393,552
H b fE U FRIE Other receivables (excluding prepayments)

(TBEENFIE) 64,235 56,105
REFPAH Payments on behalf of residents 135,873 95,107
JEUS BE A T FE Amounts due from related parties 8,562 6,697
ZRRHIIRE Restricted cash 7,062 450
BeMReSEEER Cash and cash equivalents 243,300 286,774

BRATERKLEMEEYE  Financial assets at FVTOCI:
ARNESREE !
JELETMRAEE Unlisted equity investment - _

BAFELEBZARN Financial assets at FVTPL:

SREE

Hih & ph& &= Other financial assets 94,481 184,306
1,009,083 1,022,991

BB ATEN Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

sRIEE:
JERTE 8RR Trade payables 206,574 194,032
H b pE A~ F0E Other payables (excluding other tax payables)

(T EfEE M B FIE) 326,383 356,589
FESTRAE A +5RIE Amounts due to related parties 2,620 4,081
HERE Lease liabilities 4,229 12,061

539,806 566,763
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W R IR @R o

72024912 A 31 H }%20234F
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Financial risks management policies and objectives

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: interest
rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and other
price risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk
mainly arises from restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents,
lease liabilities and loan to a third party. Restricted cash
and cash and cash equivalents at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Lease liabilities and
loan to a third party at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group closely monitors trend of
interest rate and its impact on the Group's interest rate risk
exposure. The Group currently has not used any interest rate
swap arrangements but will consider hedging interest rate risk
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group’s
exposure to interest rate is considered immaterial.

(i) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to
the Group. The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of its
operations and from its investing activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 is the
carrying amount as disclosed as above.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continved)
33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Internal risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customers, taking into account their financial position,
past experience and other factors. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverability of these receivables
at each reporting date based on historical settlements
records and experience and adjusts for forward-looking
information, to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables and contract assets.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the past due status. The ECL also
incorporate forward-looking information.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group considered that
there was an increase in credit risk of trade receivables
having considered the effect of delay in settlement of
trade receivables resulting from the slow recovery of
the PRC's economy. An ECL amount of approximately
RMB94,897,000 (2023: RMB621,414,000) was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2024 in
respect of the trade receivables based on the principle
of prudence.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

2)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The contract assets in relation to smart solution services
primarily relate to the Group's rights to consideration
for work completed but not hilled at the reporting date.
The contract assets are transferred to receivables
when the rights become unconditional. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for
trade receivables in relation to customers from smart
solution services are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group considered that
there was an increase in credit risk of contract assets
from related parties having considered effect of delay
in settlement of trade receivables resulting from the
slow recovery of the PRC’s economy. An ECL amount of
approximately RMB289,000 (2023: RMB61,447,000) was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2024 based
on the principle of prudence.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

For cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash,
the Group has assessed that they were placed at
state-owned banks and other medium or large size
listed banks and other financial institutions with high
credit rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. The risk of default is low based on market
information and the Group considers the credit risk to be
insignificant.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)

(3)

Amounts due from related parties for trade nature

Since year 2021, the Group considered that there was a
significant increase in credit risk of amounts due from
related parties having considered the effect of delay in
settlement of trade receivables resulting from: (i) slow
recovery of the PRC’s economy (in particular the real
estate sector) in recent years, based on the publicly
available information obtained by an independent
professional qualified valuer, Win Bailey Valuation
and Advisory Limited in the process of estimating the
ECL provision for the Group's trade receivables from
the related parties, the market sentiment towards the
buying of properties in the PRC had remained negative
in years 2023 and 2024 which inevitably affected the
ability of PRC developers to generate cash flows to
settle their liabilities, including their trade payables; and
(i) Kaisa Holdings is in the process of restructuring its
debts and a winding up petition has been filed against
Kaisa Holdings, which remains outstanding.

An ECL amount of approximately RMB54,464,000 (2023:
RMBG608,011,000) for amounts due from related parties
for trade nature, was recognised to the profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2024 based on the
principle of prudence.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)

(4)

Deposits, other receivables other than those from
related parties and payments on behalf of residents

The Group has monitoring procedures and follow-up
actions to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverability of these receivables at the
reporting date to ensure that adequate ECL are made
for irrecoverable amounts. The Group considers the
probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis at the end of each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition.

Forward-looking information is incorporated in the ECL
model. The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and ECL. It also considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating
e external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower's ability to meet its obligations
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)
(i)  Credit risk (Continued)
(4)  Deposits, other receivables other than those from
related parties and payments on behalf of residents
(Continued)

e actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of individual property owner or
the borrower

e  significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the individual property
owner or the same borrower

e significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
borrower
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33. IR ERE 5
33.1 BiISEKREE (&)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) BEEBREEHRERBESE) (b) Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)
(i) 1EEREE (&) (i) Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the loss
allowance provision was determined as follows:

72024912 A 31 H 20234
12A31H @ EBEEEEE
BT

U5 NBE
2024 3

BAERE

Expected loss rate

REAE
Gross carrying
amount
AR%TT
RMB'000

FREERERE
Loss allowance
provision
ARETR
RMB'000

FOgE BRERERE
Grosscarrying ~ Loss allowance
amount provision
ARETL  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000

WS R (FEEEWRE  Trade receivables (excluding trade
BATEZRF) receivables from related parties)
WESHTERE Neither past due nor impaired 0.87%/0% 8,518 ! 8072 -
AH-FR Overdue within 1 year 751%/5% 339,058 25,452 301,022 15,051
BH-EWE Overdue 1o 2 years 26.15%/25% 82,393 21,545 55,150 13788
BEME=F Overdue 2 to 3 years 418%/35% 51,793 21,648 38613 13,515
BHER=F Qverdue over 3 years 61.9%/60% 45,460 28,140 23453 14072
521,222 96,859 426,310 56,426
EUEZES(BEAL)  Trade receivables (related parties)
TERSTERNE Neither past due nor impaired 0%/0% - - - -
jal e Overdue within T year 97.25%/97.25% M 313564 362,862 372,333
BH-EWE Overdue 10 2 years 97.25%/91.25% 204529 198,905 247,644 240,834
BEME=F Overdue 2 to 3 years 97.25%/97.25% 167,083 162,488 222,681 216,557
el c ke Overdue over 3 years 97.25%/97.25% 222,593 216,472 7446 7241
916,636 891,429 860,633 836,965
1,443,858 988,268 1,286,943 893,391
e HttEKFTER Deposits, other receivables and
REAEAR payments on behalf of residents
(FEERMNTE) (excluding prepayments)
e Deposits 1%/1% 21,193 218 23538 235
EfRMTIER Other receivables and payments on
REEPRAF behalf of residents
aH-FR Overdue within 1 year 5%/5% 120229 6,011 89,364 4469
AE-EWE Overdue 102 years 25%/25% 51,488 12872 B 8,29
BHmE=F Qverdue 2 to 3 years 35%/35% 24,705 8,647 24,375 8532
BHER=F Overdue over 3 years 60%/60% 24,102 14,461 5,722 3433
42317 12,209 176,176 24,954
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The management of the Group determines the expected
loss rate by reference to several key inputs such as the
Group's historical probabilities of the default risk of debtors,
the credit risk exposure of the receivables and forward-
looking information. At the end of each reporting period, the
management of the Group reassesses these inputs regularly
and considers whether the input used in the determination of
the expected loss rate significantly improved or deteriorated.



306 EIEEFEBAR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 43 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

R MR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

33. IR ERE 5
33.1 BiISEKREE (&)

(b) MEERBEERBREBZ(H)
(i) 1sERER (&)
2024412 A 31 B 520234
172A3AH EBREZER
LHEHMEKRIE Fek
REEPNRCIBIEERN
IR ) B R B R T
ZBENEIBEEHER

(b) Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)

(1)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the loss
allowance provision for trade and other receivables, deposits
and payments on behalf of residents (excluding prepayments)
reconciles to the opening loss allowance for that provision as
follows:

mF
W E 2R
(R
EhEEAL EREEAL
EAEH) EZEN HtEKEE AREFAXR
Trade
receivahles Trade
(excluding trade receivables Payments on
receivables from from related Other hehalf of
related parties) parties receivables residents  Contract assets Total
ARB T ARET T ARBT ARBT T ARET T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RUBEI AR As at 1 January 2023 43023 28,954 487 10677 16,010 303,541
MR HERNEE%E  Provision for loss allowance recognised
R E(E0) in profitor loss (note 10} 13403 608011 2847 6,563 67,738 698,562
PUBE12ANER Asat31 December 2023 and
NWEF1A1A 1 January 2024 56,426 836,965 1724 17,240 83,748 1,002,103
MBS THEAREIEE  Provision for loss allowance recognised
BRE(ED0) in profit or loss (note 10} 40433 54,464 2058 14,87 4507 116,649
R0UF12A8318 As at 31 December 2024 96,859 891,429 10,182 32021 88,255 1,118,752
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)
(iii)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade payables, other payables (excluding other tax
payables), amounts due to related parties, lease liahilities
and also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid
assets and committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities as at 31 December 2024
and 31 December 2023. When the creditor has a choice of
when the liability is settled, the liability is included on the
basis of the earliest date on when the Group can be required
to pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which the
Group is committed to paying.
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33. MIEMEE ) 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
33.1 BIRAKREZ(E) 33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) BEEMEERERBEE) (b) Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)
(i) FEEIMEE R () (iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
AHRNEAST LS HE The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the
BEZARMBHREREAE undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.
B o
—FR REEH
REX -E@WF MERE BRIE HERELH REE
Total
Within 1 year Between 1 Between 2 undiscounted Carrying
or on demand and 2 years and Syears Over 5 years cash flow amount
ARB T ARMTR NS ARBT T ARBTR ARBT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RauF127318 As at 31 December 2024
ENESEN Trade payables 206574 - - - 206,574 206,574
HEMTZIE(TEIEE  Other payables (excluding other tax
hIERTE) payables) 371,950 4,433 - - 326,383 326,383
JEftEEA LA Amounts due to related parties 2620 - - - 2620 2620
HEER Lease liabilities 3,261 1116 - - 431 4229
534,405 5,549 - - 539,954 539,806
RA23F12A318 As at 31 December 2023
ENEHHX Trade payables 194,032 - - - 194,032 194,032
EMERFUE(TAER  Other payables (excluding other tax
thRERTIE) payables) 350,713 5,876 N - 356,589 356,589
ER@EALZE Amounts due to related parties 4,081 - - - 4,081 4,081
HERR Lease liabilities 6,084 5,078 1,561 - 12723 12061

554,910 10954 1,561 - 567,425 566,763
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
33.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Financial risks management policies and objectives (Continued)
(iv]  Foreign currency risk

(v)

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposures to currency risk arise from its financial assets which
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") and United
States Dollar (“USD"). They are not the functional currencies
of the group entities to which these transactions relate.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in respective notes. As at 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group is mainly exposed to
exchange rate fluctuations of USD. As Hong Kong dollar is
pegged to USD, hence, the Group's foreign currency exposure
against USD is not significant.

The same % depreciation in the group entities’ functional
currencies against the respective foreign currencies would
have the same magnitude on the Group's profit/loss for the
year and equity but of opposite effect.

Other price risk
The Group did not expose to material price risk for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.
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33. Ejz%mﬂﬁ%fﬂ(%\ 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
33.2 D EEMAF 33.2 Fair value estimation

TR ITARFEQ T ERIBHER
M ABRERIRAFEDIR - ~
FIBAEERINT

o HAEEXBRELARTISN
B CRERR) (F1EBR) -

s BRBFBANBENEEXAR
MR BRBARE  RERAD
Er)kEE(BVREER) X
MEREXTAIBRE ARE
(2B »

o EBEXABBIIFAKEAER
IS HRIENEARE(BNEAT
ABRBABR) (FIER) °

333 AR EER
AEEERRAE D fEFT RRE -

RELE 2024512 A31H 202345
ANBLEFE - F1 - F2RE
3 2 B ER - REERK
KERAFEELR 2 HBrER
BENHRE BHE H T UER -

Financial instruments carried at fair value, by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liahilities (level 1).

e |nputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and not using significant
unobservable inputs (level 2).

e |nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, significant unobservable inputs) (level 3).

33.3 Fair value hierarchy
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,
there were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3. The Group's policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
reporting date in which they occur.

1R F2R FIR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ARET T ARET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FA2023F 124315 As at 31 December 2023
RAFELEFARA  Financial assets at FVTPL
SREE - - 184,306 184,306
R20245E12A31R As at 31 December 2024
A TELERSARS  Financial assets at FVTPL
SREE - - 94,481 94,481
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BHRE - BEA TR BREARE
A A FEFESEAFIRNTA
M AEESRBELSERME
BT E - TRIBHRBBIAERE
ZECREENAFENER

REFENATE

Description Fair value at
2UF 20035
2024 2023
ARBTR ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB000
BATEERMEE TER -
WE RS REE NA

Financial asset at FVTOCI
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33.3 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. For the Group's financial instruments with fair value
measurement that are categorised under Level 1, the Group reference
to the quoted market price in active markets for identified assets. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs and hence the fair
value measurements are categorised under Level 3, the Group engages
independent qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are

determined.

fEERM EXTTBRRAYE

Significant
unobservable inputs

Valuation technique

WNE-FRFARR SRS
FREGRBEBEIRERR
I EEREME AR R E
FEEHRIE ©

Income approach — Discounted
cash flow method was used to

Wi R R AER (2023
F N F8%EW) - BRE
REBENRRIT2ZET
RERMEMEFETED
THITRAN

Revenue growth rate ranged from

TURTHARE
EATENER
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

Wi REYS - &8

Higher the revenue growth
rate would increase the
fair value of financial
assets

capture the present value of

the expected future economic
benefits to be derived from the
asset with suitable discount rate.

N/A (2023: 8% to 9%), taking
into account the management's
experience with reference to the
independent qualified valuer's

knowledge of market conditions
of the specific industries.

PR &Y @M (20235 -

FREXWE  cREE

205%) F B REAER  ATEHER
BETEBUBTHIMET  Lower the discount rate
YERR would increase the fair

Discount rate of N/A (2023: value of the financial
20.5%), taking into account assets

weighted average cost of capital

determined using a Capital Asset

Pricing Model.
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33. B ERERE & 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
333 AFEEH(B) 33.3 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
SRMTEWAFEESE(E) Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments (Continued)
TAEERAZE
RZEENATE fERM EXTABEHAHE EALENRR
Relationship of
Significant unobservable inputs to
Description Fair value at Valuation technique unobservable inputs fair value
20245 2023
2024 2023
AR¥TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BAFEE RS AR 94,481 184306 WAE-EARRRALRE FEEMEREFR(08 EELRIYS 2R
SREE EEGRBAEMRERE F 0)NBEEMEREMEG EEATEES
Financial asset at FVTPL LEERGNERANRGCE &6 S REREWNLE Higher the selling price
FlRMBRE BULEBUABHRMAERM  growthrate would
Income approach - Discounted S FETEMINAM - increase the fair value of
cash flow method was used to  Estimated selling price with the financial assets
capture the present value of expected growth rate for non-
the expected future economic residential properties by 0%

benefits o be derived from the (2023: 2%) p.a., taking into

asset with suitable discount rate. ~ account the management's
experience with reference to the
independent qualified valuer's
knowledge of market conditions
of the specific industries.

TREBB(202BF  12%) ©  FHEWE  £HEE
EHRRERELAEETE ATEES
ERET A IMEFEARK  Lower the discount rate

Ko would increase the fair
Discount rate of 13% (2023: value of the financial
12%), taking into account assets

weighted average cost of capital
determined using a Capital Asset
Pricing Model.
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34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flow as cash
flows from financing activities.

HEEE
Lease liabilities
AR%T
RMB'000
20231 318 As at 1 January 2023 15,413
RERSHREST ! Changes from financial cash flows:
BAFE Interest paid (673)
EEAEARE Repayment of lease liabilities (5,922)
BERSREEHAE Total changes from financial cash flow 8,818
Hin# g Other changes:
BILHE Termination of leases (2,694)
HEAEEN Increase in lease liabilities 5,264
BEMKA(HIFES) Finance cost (note 8) 673
72023512 4318 20241 F1H As at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 12,061
MERSHRELE Changes from financial cash flows:
BEFIE Interest paid (326)
BEHEESRE Repayment of lease liabilities (4,966)
RERSRELHEE Total changes from financial cash flow 6,769
Hit# 8 Other changes:
BIFHE Termination of leases (7,455)
HESELM Increase in lease liabilities 4,589
BEMA(HIEES) Finance cost (note 8) 326
20245123318 As at 31 December 2024 4,229
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35. i
AERR
REBMBEEA
RSB - AR TARENT

e —F

Within one year

35.

COMMITMENTS

Lease commitments

The Group as lessee

At the reporting date, the lease commitments for short-term leases are as
follows:

20244
2024

20234F
2023
ARETIT
RMB'000

AR®TR
RMB'000

3,507 1,272

2024512 A31 B K20235F12 A318 » A&
EfAMETIEE R AEMNMELY AL —
E2+=EA -

R2024F12A3NH - AEEEAHEHEAE
ITEEERBAE(RERKAR) - 25
AENRRRESRHBEEAZ(2023F ¢
) BEfALE -

AEBHHAA

2024512 A31 80 K% 2023512 A31H » A&
ERET A A A EREFTRE 2 K
RS ERENT ¢

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group leases staff quarters
and offices with a lease period of one to twelve months.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had committed to leases for staff quarters
and offices in which the leases had not yet commenced. The total future cash
outflows for these leases amounting to nil (2023: Nil) in aggregate which are
included in the table above.

The Group as lessor

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
buildings as follows:

2024 20234

2024 2023

AR¥T T ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TBiB—F Within one year 1,442 2,142
F_ERF In the second to fifth years 1,652 1,350
3,094 3492

MO H/B—E20F - WREH B
AEEREHFPHEBENRHAEES
BREOYEHERGER - BOBTEEX

The lease run for an initial period of one to five years, with an option to renew
the lease and renegotiate the terms at the expiry date or at dates mutually
agreed between the Group and respective tenants. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.
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36. FAEALRS 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
MEAMSENFTIREE N - NEE R E A Except as disclosed in elsewhere, the Group entered into the following
TETHZ ST ¢ transactions with related parties as follows:

(a) FEEIRE H (a) Key management compensation
20245 20234
2024 2023
AR%T T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BEEMe Directors’ fee 1,680 1,513
He hHEMEHRERET Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 4,420 5,618
IRIRETBIHER Retirement scheme contributions 432 862
ARSHEAE B IRID L89B SL  Equity-settled share-based payment expenses - 1,230

6,532 9,223
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36. FEATRS »)
(b) ERIEALHIRS

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

20245
2024

AR®BTR
RMB000

20234
2023
ARET T
RMB'000

R EEERK Provision of property management

services
REERRRMERA Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (i) 56,616 53,258
RIZEMBARRESZME  Joint ventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (ii) 18,296 12,335
BEEIRATIRIEGZ AT Associates of the ultimate holding company (i), (ii) 4,334 5,223
REEFRERY Provision of property owners

value-added services
REBHRZRMWEBAR Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (i) 21 5,174
RIZMBARIANSE{E  Joint ventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (i) 730 150
BRPIRAREEEE AT Associates of the ultimate holding company (i), (i) - 2
REEEFRERE Provision of value-added services to

non-property owners
AEENRZREKB AR Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (i) 65,398 95,419
RAZRMBATINAEME  Jointventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (i) 28,206 73,299
ERIKVEAR A BRIV &2 F]  Associates of the ultimate holding company (i), (i) 14,246 19,200
HEMAX Lease expenses
AEEHRZRKHEAF] Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (i), (i) 8,586 11,559
RZBATIHIESEME  Joint ventures of fellow subsidiaries (i), (i) 549 314
BIRIRATIEEEZ AT Associates of the ultimate holding company (i), (i) 235 -
ETEAMAX Staff welfare expenses
AEEHRRKBA R Fellow subsidiaries of the Group (iii) 142 20
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Property management services income, pre-delivery and consulting services
income, smart solution services and rental expenses for car parks and office
are charged at prices and terms no less favourable than those charged to and
contracted with other third parties of the Group.

Except for related party transactions related to the provision of community
value-added services amounting to RMB950,000 (2023: RMB626,000) which
are exempted from disclosure, the other related party transactions constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or independent non-executive director or shareholder’s
approval (where applicable) requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These related party transactions constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
those transactions are exempt from the disclosure, reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or independent non-executive director or shareholder’s
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are
conducted on normal commercial terms or better and not secured by the assets of
the Group under Rule 14A.90.
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37. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

37.1 General information of subsidiaries
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023 are as follows:

37. TEMB R EIE#1E
37.1 B AR —RER
FTEWMBRAIR2024F128318 &
2023F12 AN BB

HEREY/ R/
BendRAH
Place and date

of incorporation/

i/ BRI
HERA

ARELRHE
ERRAEN EREEAY
Percentage of
ownership interests
held by the Group

establishment/
operations

Registered/lssued

Name of company Type of legal entity and fully paid capital Principal activities

RARERRNE
Directly held by the Company

BRAERRAT

Xie Mao Investment Company Limited

FRAHEEE
Indirectly held by the Company

EBRA(RR)ARLT

Profit Victor Investments {Hong Kong) Limited

ERENFEEERAA
Kaisa Property Group Company Limited

ERENFER(RIERAR
Kaisa Property Management (Shenzhen Co., Limited.

MITEREBEENEERARAR
Kaisa Commercial Property Management
Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd.

BT ARDT

Shenzhen Jiake Intelligence Technology Co., Limited

MITAEE TREEREARAR
Shenzhen Dapengehe Enginesring Maintenance
Sevice Co,, Ltd.

ERARE
W0757A%A
BV, 26 July 2007

B EAA
Hong Kong,
2 Apiil 2012

e
M2ENRNE
The PRC,
21 December 2012

e -
199910808
The PRC,
20 October 1999

HE - MIFSABHE
The PRC,
8 May 2013

48
WIYE12ANBAE
The PRC,
23 December 2013

48
NILENANE
The PRC,
27 November 2014

BREARA
Limited liability company

EREARA
Limited liability company

BREARA
Limited liability company

ERELAT
Limited liability company

BREARA
Limited liability company

BREARA
Limited liability company

EREARA
Limited liability company

e
Ushz

100007
HKD10,000

ARH85723 0007
RMBE5,723.000

3100000007
B310,000,000

AFRHE50,000 00070
RMB50,000,000

ARB2,0000007
fIB20,000,000

AR 500000007
RIIB0,000,000

uE
a

100%

100%

99%*

99%*

99%*

99%*

99%*

1BE
m

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

RARR

Ivestment holding

RETR

Ivestment holding

UL

Property management

NEER

Property management

NEER

Property management

RlERx
Equipment installation

BERRFR

Repair and maintenance
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37. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

37.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

37. T EMEB L TFHBE -

371 MIBATMN—RER (&)

HRRL/RL/ ith/ERAR AREREME
FehyRAS EERRER HERA BREAAL
Place and date
of incorporation/ Percentage of
establishment/ Registered/lssued ownership interests
Name of company operations Type of legal entity and fully paid capital held by the Group Principal activities
unE  ABE
024 YA
REMEAFNEEERRAR RENVEIABE  AREMLH ARE100000007 W 0% HEER
Kaisa Property Management (Dongguan Co., Lid. The PRC, Limited liability company R\B10,000,000 Property management
18 July 2007
BB FERERART REABEIANE  BREMAF ARE00000007 W 0% HEER
Kaisa Property Management (Chengd) Co., Ltd. The PRC, Limited liability company RB30,000,000 Property management
30 January 2008
ERTEAENEERARAA hENFIANE  AREALR ARE30000007C W 0% HEER
Kaisa Property Management (Chongging) Co., Ltd. The PRC, Limited liability company RIIB3,000,000 Property management
11July 2013
BMERENEERARAR RENIEIAE  AREMLE ARE3000007 W 0% HEER
Kaisa Property Management (Huizhou) Co,, Ltd. The PRC, Limited liability company RMB500,000 Property management
16 July 2013
IR ZERARAR REWIEATE BREMAF AREs0007 W 0% HEER
Kaisa Property Management Liuzhou) Co., Ltd. The PRC, Limited liability company R\B500,000 Property management
27 Apil 2017
MRS AR RARART RE - NNFIN0ABA BREFLT ARE00M0T  5940%* % NEREREERH
Hebei Changrunda Environmental Engingering The PRC, Limited liability company RIIB10,000,000 Property management
Co., Limited 28 October 200 related busingss
AREKENFERARAR RE - NBEATE  AREMLH ARBS000T  5049%* % MEER
Taiyuan Kaisa Property Management Co, Ltd. The PRC, Limited liability company RMB500,000 Property management
27 June 2018
ERERRNEREARAR REBENASE  BREMAF ARESI00OT  5049%* 5% MEER
Ningbo Kaisa Property Senvice Co,, Ltd The PRC, Limited liability company R\B500,000 Property management

6 November 2018



320 EIEEFEBAR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 43 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

A BB IRARMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

37.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

37. T EMBLEFEw

37.1 HBARN—RER(E)

Name of company

LewdRAH
Place and date
of incorporation/

establishment/
operations

itfh/BRIR

ERRRE HERA

Registered/lssued

Type of legal entity and fully paid capital

ARBREHE
BRERDL

Percentage of
ownership interests
held by the Group
wuE nE
04 02

Principal activities

FEREMEERARLA(RAAREE)) hE WEANE  BREFLT ARES0000007T 59.40%* 0% EEE

Jiaxing Dashu Property Management The PRC, Limited liability company RB5,000,000 Property management
Company Limited ("Jiaxing Dashu Group’) 30 July 1999

RETRAEEERARAA((RRAHER)) T8 20FANR  BRELLA ARBI00000  5940%* % HEER

Jiaxing Rongshu Hotel Management Co, Ltd. The PRC, Limited liability company RMB1,000,000 Property management
['Jiaxing Rongshu Group'| 11 September 2007

THERNZERARAT(TRER]) hENUESABE  AREMLR ARENOOMOT 5048t B MEER

Jiangsu Hengyuan Property Management The PRC, Limited liability company RB10,000,000 Property management
Company Limited ("Jiangsu Hengyuan’) 29 June 2004

BERREREERAR RE0TEAR BREMAF AREO000T  5049%* % HEER

Yancheng Hengyuan Sanitation Service The PRC, Limited liability company RMB1,000,000 Property management
Company Limited 9March 2017

ERFRNEREERAT(ERAE)) hENBFIAE  ARERLE ARB200007  5940%* 0% HEER

Ningho Langtong Property Service Company The PRC, Limited liability company RMB2,000,000 Property management
Limited "Ningbo Langtong") 9 January 2013

HDRENEERARAT(IRE]) hENREFIANE  EREMLR ARENOOMOT 5% 0% MEER

Ihejiang Ruiyuan Property Management The PRC, Limited liability company R\B10,000,000 Property management

Co,, Limited (‘Zhejiang Ruiyuan')

170Uy 2002

LRI ARAESRAT B SR
SE AR EEE A S
MARAMBRRF - ARAEHR
B BB ATHEEE ST
RIEBRTTE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

* HE2024F 12 B ILFE - EIREYD *
EEEGRARNBE L IFERBEE
& ARE1,328,0007T - AHEREIREY
EEBMARARI%RAE - REBERE
KEMEEEFRAANMHEBERFN
RSN ERERD

During the year ended 31 December 2024, an independent non-controlling
shareholder of Kaisa Property Group Company Limited injected RMB1,328,000,
which represented 1% equity interest of Kaisa Property Group Company Limited.
The Group's indirect interests in subsidiaries of Kaisa Property Group Company
Limited have also been reduced accordingly.

RER - BB B AR EITER

RISRES -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.
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37. TEMBATEE - 37. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
372 A EARFEERESWIEDSHEEH 37.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
BARHE material non-controlling interests

REEBIENRESB ERIFFER R
([FFEmER DB AREE @ 5%
BREENEHEATNITBETEHR
FIaAT

The Group includes four subsidiaries group with material non-controlling
interests ("NCI"), the details and the summarised financial information,
before intragroup eliminations, are as follows:

RNUE12ANE
As at 31 December 2024
REAHER IHEREE BB HIRR
Jiaxing Jiangsu Ningbo Zhejiang

Dashu Group Hengyuan Group Langtong Ruiyuan
ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR AR%TT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

IERMRERSEMIEARER  Proportion of ownership interests and

e il voting rights held by the NC| 40.6% 19.51% 40.6% 406%
REEE Current assets 19,836 63,999 17,954 97,391
FRBEE Non-current assets 8,085 40,924 2593 21,033
nEaE Current liabilities (50,819) (47.201) (9,526) (51,885)
Fraak Non-current liabilities (1.421) (151) (290) (1,929)
BEFE Net assets 36,481 56,111 10,731 64,610
FRERERREE Carrying amount of NCI 14592 21,494 4,292 25,844
W Revenue 167,288 165,436 63,776 176,802
EFtd Total expenses (162,586} (158,328) (64,036) (164,469)
EREF(ER) Profit (loss] for the year 4,702 7,108 (260) 12333
FREZ AN Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
EN2EME(FZ)EE  Total comprehensive income (expenses)

for the year 4,702 7,108 (260) 12333
SEHERERIE(ER(E8)  Profit (loss) attributable to NCI 1,881 3482 (104) 4932
FHEREREE2E Total comprehensive income [expenses)

Wa (%) 28 attributable to NC! 1,881 3482 (104) 4,932
QETHAE(FE)ES  Netcash flows generated from

MEFE (used in) operating activities 1233 2201 (76) 5,858
RETH(FE)MERS  Netcash flows (used in) generated from

RETE investing activities (103) 5,067 (112) 2,940
BETHFAAELAEEE  Netcash flows used in financing activities (4,500) (2,200) - (6,000)
HeRBALZEER Net increase (decrease) in cash and

ENORD ) FE cash equivalents 2,630 5,068 (188) 2,19
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37. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
37.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

37. T EMBLEFEw

372 B ERFERERNIZERBH
BARFEEE)

R2023E12A31H
As at 31 December 2023

IR AR EARER  Proportion of ownership interests and

REAMKE

Jiaxing
Dashu Group
ARETT
RMB'000

PR ENESE
Jiangsu
Hengyuan
Group
ARETFT
RMB000

ERB

Ningho
Langtong
ARBFT
RMB'000

LR

Zhejiang
Ruiyuan
AREFT
RMB'000

REREL voting rights held by the NCI 40% 49% 40% 40%
RBEE Current assets 68,329 61,822 19586 94,439
FERBEE Non-current assets 10,476 377 3082 22686
TEEE Current liabilities (40,849) (46,498 11,250 (56,275)
EREEE Non-current liabilities (1677) (1,89) (387) (257)
BETE Net assets 36,279 51,205 10991 58279
R ERERE Carrying amount of NCI 14512 25,090 439 23312
gz Revenue 164,088 173212 57,150 179,408
EhE Gk Total expenses (159,562) (166,066 (57,352) (185,610)
FREF(ER) Profit (loss) for the year 4,526 7,146 (202) 13,798
FREMZERE Other comprehensive income

for the year - - - -
FREEWE(FES) Total comprehensive income (expense)

B for the year 4526 7,146 (202) 13798
SEIRRRIE SR R Profit (loss) attributable to NCI

(B8) 1811 3,501 (81) 5520
FEREREN2E Total comprehensive income (expenses)

Yk (FIs0) 88 attributable to NCI 1811 3,501 (81) 5,520
@%iﬁﬁﬁiﬁi (FiFR) Net cash flows generated from

AeREFR (used in] operating activites 16,179 (2.660) 190 11,456
REEBAARGRE Net cash flows used in investing
FE activities (173) (1,131) (743) (678)
REEBHARERE Net cash flows used in financing

e activities (5,500) - - (6,099)
fﬁ%&iﬁé%ﬁjﬁ ! Net increase (decrease) in cash and

BEIORD)#8 cash equivalents 10,506 (3791) (253) 4479
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38. LXK S 38. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

AREEFIY NIERGIRE MR E TS - The Group entered into the following non-cash investing and financing activities
HWAAEGEEBE S RERNM which are not reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows:
REE2024F12A31BILEE - AEEET During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered into certain
UAEFRAEEENTHEAENETHE lease contracts in which additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
%4 ©E A ARKA589,0007T (20234 © A amounting to RMB4,589,000 (2023: RMB5,264,000) was recognised at the lease
R #52640007T) © B RTERA A HiRE commencement date.

REE0UFE12ENBIEEE - AEW During the year ended 31 December 2024, the addition of property, plant and
¥ mERBEERENEWKRE SESM equipment represent carrying amount of RMB3,923,000 arose from settlement of

EAMEREE AKY3,923,0007T ° trade receivables.



324

=)
)

BA SRR RE

EIKEEFEBAR/A T KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED  “F 3R ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. AR AR R

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

20244
2024

PN
RMB’000

20234F
2023
ARBTIT
RMB’000

EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RBEE Non-current assets

KRB AR ZEZE Investment in subsidiaries 615,154 611,971
= NCIER ) Amount due from subsidiary 118,100 120,000
I NGIEoL:: Fa Interests in subsidiaries 733,254 731,971
REEE Current assets

HekReFEIER Cash and cash equivalents 774 3,950
REBEE Current liabilities

HAb eI 5IE Other payables 2,835 2,922
RE (BB EEFE Net current (liabilities) assets (2,061) 1,028
EELERABER Total assets less current liabilities 731,193 732,999
EEFE Net assets 731,193 732,999
e EQUITY

& Share capital 1,361 1,361
T Reserves 729,832 731,638
A Total equity 731,193 732,999
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39. AR BB AR R ) 39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COM PANY (Continued)
RATIEBEEHHMT - The movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows:
R ADR{E BRERRE REEAF st
Share
Share options Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2023F1 A18 Asat 1 January 2023 524,211 58,401 154,320 736,932
FEBERZEMZEE  Lossand total comprehensive expenses
for the year - - (5,663) (5,663)
AN E R STTE)  Recognition of equity-settled share-based
35 (FHi7E30() payment transactions (note 30(a)) - 369 - 369
M023E12A318 K As at 31 December 2023 and
02451718 1 January 2024 524,211 58,770 148,657 731,638
FEFEREEHAYTEE  Lossand total comprehensive expenses
for the year - - (1,806) (1,806)
20245124318 As at 31 December 2024 524,211 58,770 146,851 729,832
40. F{HEHAER TR 40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
B EGAMERREMEOTIEES Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
HN  REFBRFEAEHEYEIMEARS Group did not have any significant events after the reporting date.

18 o



326 EIKEEFEBABR AT KAISA PROSPERITY HOLDINGS LIMITED 23 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

I F M BEE

Five-Year Financial Summary

Rk EtEE KSR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HENANALEE
Year ended 31 December
00F 20016 000F JIVRES AUE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ARETT ARETE AR®ETE ARETT AR¥ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Wi Revenue 1,730,149 2,666,440 1,783,883 1,794,267 1,735,421
BERERY Direct operating expenses (1,202510) (1,877.541) (1,312.776) (1,312,920) (1,290,941)
EH Gross profit 521,639 768,899 47,107 481,347 444,486
A (B18) ke 548 Other (losses) and gains, net (7323) 4890 24,391 (370) (7.022)
HERTSRERX Selling and marketing expenses (8,595) (13,249) (10,39) (12590) (10,854)
THHEY Administrative expenses (185,293) (245,359) (229,366) (189,859) (171,250
SREENANEBE Provision for loss allowance on
ERERRE financial assets and contract assets (10,986) (142.441) (125,372) (698,562) (116,649)
&g (BR)aR Operating (loss)/profit 315,442 392746 130,365 (420,034) 138,711
EIEBERTEE Share of results of associates 675 18,846 10530 6,306 16,573
RATELESE AR Change in fair value on financial assets at
SREENTEED fair value through profit or loss (7,150) (53,549) (1,215) (143,425) (89,825)
REE AR ZREREER Impairment loss on investment in associate - - - (24,070) -
HERE Impairment of goodwill - - - - (24,378)
RIEHEMBE A7 Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary 1192 - - - -
HERLLELEREAR Gain/{loss) on disposal of financial assets at
SRAEKE/ (B]E) fair value through profit or loss 1,202 (159.301) - - -
RIEKBRINER Loss on termination of an acquisition transaction - (63,920) - - -
BEWA/ (B%)%E Finance incomey(expenses), net 1223 228 (770) 673) (326)
BRETEHIAT(B518) /8 (Loss)/profit before income tax 312,584 135,050 138910 (581,89%) 40,755
FriEfEs,/ (Fx) Income tax credit/{expenses) (83,059) (66,929 (32.315) 144312 (15,192)
FR(ER) &R (Loss)/profit for the year 29525 68,121 106,595 (437,584) 25,563
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FABRBREMREKRSR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Continued)

BENANALEE

Year ended 31 December

20205 M 2005 03%
2020 2021 2022 2023

ARETL  ARRTL  ARETRT  ARETR
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000

Hit2E(BI%), /W3 4%  Other comprehensive (expense)/income,

ENOENE including reclassification adjustments
BT e EH A7 /E2  ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently
EH : to profit or loss:

BATESEM2EYEEAE  Fairvalue loss on financial assets at fair value

MeRAEATEDE through other comprehensive income,
MBHIE net of tax - - - (11,250 -

EREMPEMS - BHEEH  Other comprehensive expense for the year,
DR including reclassification adjustments - - - (11.250) _

EREMPE(EL),MzE Total comprehensive (expense)/income

ok for the year 229,525 68,121 106,59 (448,834) 25,563
UFATEEFAZE Total comprehensive (expense)/income
(%) st . for the year attributable to:
ARAERA Owners of the Company 21,91 56,806 93,38 (461,234) 14,576
R Non-controlling interests 7574 11315 13210 12,400 10,987
229,525 68,121 106,59 (448,834) 25,563
T ALTEGEER Profit/(loss) for the year
w7/ (B8) : attributable to:
AREBEEA Owners of the Company 221,951 56,806 93,385 (449,984) 14,576
JERER Non-controlling interests 7574 11,315 13210 12,400 10987
229,525 68,121 106,59 (437 584) 25,563
KRREEAELER (Losses)/earnings per share attributable to
(B1R)/BHERK owners of the Company (expressed
ARHTHIR) in RMB per share)
HE Basic 151 037 061 29 0.09

&g Diluted 148 036 0

=x

(2.92) 0.09
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AL E - EXRAaE CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES
M2A318
As at 31 December
20204 20214 20224 20235 2045
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE Assets

EREEE Non-current assets 145,237 894,724 908,389 927,046 842,638
TEEE Current assets 1,829,995 1,325,557 1,340,275 901,710 989,366
EEAE Total assets 1,975,232 2,220,281 2,248,664 1,828,756 1,832,004

ERKEE Equity and Liabilities
b Total equity 1,283,168 1,286,930 1,396,762 939,533 955,140
EREAE Non-current liabilities 32,643 57,388 40,463 22,793 14,533
TBARE Current liahilities 659,421 875,963 811,439 866,430 862,331
BiEAH Total liabilities 692,064 933,351 851,902 889,223 876,864

BEREEEHE Total equity and liabilities 1,975,232 2,220,281 2,248,664 1,828,756 1,832,004
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